
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Rochdale Township 
Committee

Enquiries to: Michael Garraway
Telephone: 01706 924716
Date: Tuesday, 19th July 2016

Dear Councillor

Rochdale Township Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Rochdale Township Committee to 
be held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Wednesday, 27th July 2016 commencing 
at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Rochdale Township Committee Membership 2016/17
Councillor Ali Ahmed
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Surinder Biant
Councillor Allen Brett
Councillor Lynne Brosnan
Councillor Wendy Cocks
Councillor Ian Duckworth
Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Michael  Holly

Public Document Pack



Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Jane Howard
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman



Rochdale Borough Council

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 27th July 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Presentation - Rochdale Hub for Refugees and Asylum Seekers 

On behalf of the Refugee Support team at the British Red Cross.

3.  Presentation- Rochdale Township in Bloom 

Director of Neighbourhoods to report.

4.  Open Forum 

Up to half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to 
raise any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township.

5.  Minutes 4 - 9

- To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale 
Township Committee held on 1st June 2016.

6.  Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub-Committee 10 - 14



- To note the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action & 
Resources Sub-Committee meeting held on 28th June 
2016

7.  Rochdale Township Planning Sub-Committee 15 - 19

- To note the minutes of the Rochdale Township Planning 
Sub-Committee meetings held on 7th June and 5th July 
2016.

8.  Disposal of Surplus Land adjacent to 9 Leach Street, Rochdale 20 - 22

9.  Asset Strategy 2016/2019 23 - 124

10.  Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable 125 - 139



P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 3



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
1st June 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor O'Neill (in the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, Brett, Cocks, 
Duckworth, Farnell, Heakin, Holly, Hornby, Howard, Meredith, Nickson, Rashid, 
Sheerin, Sullivan, Wazir, Winkler, Zaheer and Zaman

OFFICERS:   P. Gregory (Economy Directorate), V. White and R. Hudson 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate), M. Garraway (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   Inspector Nicholson (Greater Manchester Police), 7 
members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Ahmed, Councillor Brosnan and Councillor 
James Gartside

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR
86 DECIDED – That Councillor O’Neill be appointed the Chair of Rochdale 
Township Committee for the Municipal year 2016/17.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR
87 DECIDED – That Councillor Sheerin be appointed Vice Chair of the 
Rochdale Township Committee for the Municipal year 2016/17.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
88 There were no declarations of interest.

PRESENTATION - LOCAL POLICING CHANGES
89 Inspector Nicholson addressed the Township Committee presenting changes 
to the organisational structure for the Township policing team.  The Committee were 
informed that Greater Manchester Police was in the process of changing its approach 
to local policing.  This was being presented as a positive development, in that the 
exercise was intended to result in police “neighbourhoods” being more closely 
aligned with the Council’s current Township structure.  This was meant to yield two 
significant benefits: elected members will have more clearly defined points of contact 
within local police teams – hopefully leading to improved communication at a senior 
level; and greater accountability with senior police staff being responsible for a 
particular local patch.  The Township were further advised that the reorganisation of 
the officers shift pattern has resulted in more officers being on duty at peak times and 
more police visibility locally.   

Greater Manchester Police had previously briefed Members of the Council on the 
proposals on 6th April 2016, prior to these new arrangements coming into force in 
early May 2016. The purpose of the presentation to the Township was so that the 
local police Inspector could introduce himself to the Township Committee and 
provide further information on how Members could access the new policing teams.

DECIDED – That the presentation be noted.

OPEN FORUM (6.15-6.45PM)
90 The following matters were raised in the open forum: 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



a) Mandale Park
Mr Fielding addressed the Township Committee detailing anti-social 
behaviour at Mandale Park, Rochdale.  Mr Fielding referred to the use of 
motorbikes and quadbikes in the park which was causing disturbances to 
local residents and safety concerns.

The Chair invited Inspector Nicholson of Greater Manchester Police (GMP) 
to advise the Township Committee on the police strategy for tackling the 
stated problems at Mandale Park.  A Member questioned as to the 
availability of the GMP motorised Off Road Unit for deployment in 
Rochdale.

DECIDED – That Greater Manchester Police and the Community 
Safety Team employ a strategy to tackle the anti-social behaviour at 
Mandale Park including improving the local intelligence available to 
the police and publicising actions such as the identification of 
individuals responsible and the crushing of offending vehicles.   

b) Former Turner Brothers Site
Mr M. Coats addressed the Township Committee requesting that the 
former Turner Brothers site at Spodden Valley be turned into a nature 
reserve and the Township Committee commit to a policy of not permitting 
housing development on the site due to concerns of asbestos 
contamination.  

The Leader of the Council and Lead Members for Regeneration assured 
Mr Coats that the Council was undertaking a substantial land survey to 
provide detail of the site.  With this information the Council will then be 
able to continue to work with the Department for Environment, Food and 
Rural Affairs to develop a solution for the site which will ensure it is utilised 
safely for the benefit of local people.    

MINUTES
91 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale Township 
Committee held on 9th March 2016 be approved as a correct record.

MINUTES -  ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES SUB 
COMMITTEE
92 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Sub Committee held on 15th March 2016 be noted.

MINUTES - ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE
93 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meetings of the Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub Committee held on 23rd February, 22nd March and 12th April 2016 
be noted. 

DISPOSAL OF UNDER-PERFORMING GARAGE SITES - BROAD LANE
94 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy 
which sought approval to proceed to dispose of a garage site at Broad Lane on the 
open market.

Page 5



At the Rochdale Township Committee meeting held on 16th July 2014, the Township 
Committee resolved to dispose of a number of under-performing garage sites, 
including the site at Broad Lane, Rochdale.  However, this approval gave consent to 
sell the site on the open market, only after the opportunity had been offered to the 
existing tenants.  The report sought approval to remove the condition to offer the land 
to the existing tenants on the grounds that - 
a) Retaining the site in its current use would be less likely to resolve the existing fly-
tipping problem, 
b) There was an opportunity to change the area of the land on offer to make it more 
marketable and attractive to potential developers, and;
c) Occupancy rates on the site have fallen meaning the site is under-utilised and the 
income it generated had reduced.

Alternatives considered: Members considered the five alternative options detailed 
within the submitted report which included consideration of retaining the decision of 
the Township Committee at the meeting held on 16th July 2014.  

DECIDED – That (1) the garage site at Broad Lane, Rochdale, as identified 
within the submitted report be marketed for sale on the open market and to 
dispose of the site at the earliest opportunity;
(2) the Buyer pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs in respect of any 
agreed disposal of the site;
(3) the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be authorised to 
carry out the legal work in connection with any disposal of the site. 

FORMER FALINGE PLAY BARN, FALINGE PARK, ROCHDALE
95 The Director of Economy introduced a report requesting approval for the 
Former Falinge Play Barn to be declared surplus to the Council’s requirements and 
that it be released for disposal together with appropriate access rights through the 
park, to an appropriate end user. Furthermore the report sought to allow rental 
options for the site where deemed appropriate to account for local needs, restrictions 
on the Title as to the use of Falinge Park.

Alternatives considered: that the facility remain closed to use.

DECIDED – That (1) Falinge Play Barn be approved for disposal as part of any 
community asset transfer of the park;
(2) should it become necessary or desirable to pursue the disposal or letting of 
the building for another use, including interim uses, authority be delegated to 
the Director of Economy on consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair, to 
approve the alternative disposal options;
(3) the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be 
authorised to carry out a Title Check, prior to any negotiations being entered 
into for the disposal, to ensure there are no restrictions that would prevent a 
disposal or to identify any restrictions that may impact on any proposed use.

FORMER GOWER STREET YOUTH BASE, GOWER STREET, ROCHDALE
96 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy 
which requesting that the Former Gower Street Youth base be declared surplus to 
requirements and that it be released for disposal.  Authority was also sought to allow 
rental options where deemed appropriate to account for local needs and or market 
conditions.

Alternatives considered: that the facility remain closed to use.

Page 6



DECIDED – That (1) the Former Gower Street Youth base be declared surplus 
to requirements and that it be released for disposal;
(2) the Director for Economy in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair, be 
authorised to allow rental options for the site where deemed appropriate to 
account for local needs;  
(3) the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be 
authorised to carry out a Title Check, prior to any negotiations being entered 
into for the disposal, to ensure there are no restrictions that would prevent a 
disposal or to identify any restrictions that may impact on any proposed use.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS 2016/17
97 The Director of Resources sought the consideration of the Committee to its 
delegated decisions arrangements for the 2016/2017 Municipal Year. 

DECIDED – That (1) the Sub-Committee structure of the Rochdale Township 
Committee, comprising the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Sub- 
Committee and the Rochdale Township Planning Sub-Committee be confirmed;
(2) the delegation arrangements to the Rochdale Township
Action and Resources Sub-Committee, as contained within the Scheme of 
Delegation to Township Committees be approved;
(3) the terms of reference of the Rochdale Township Planning
Sub-Committee, contained within the Schedule of Delegation Arrangements for 
Development and Related Matters, be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE – APPOINTMENTS 2016/17
98 The Township Committee was invited to consider various appointments for 
the duration of the 2016/2017 Municipal Year, namely the appointment of Members 
to the Township’s Sub-Committees and the Chairs and Vice Chairs of those Sub-
Committees; and the appointment of Members to various other working groups and 
bodies associated with the Township Committee.

DECIDED – That (1) Members be appointed as follows: – 
(a) Rochdale Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee: 

Councillors – C. Biant (Chair), Shakil Ahmed (Vice Chair); Heakin, Zaman, 
Nickson, Sheerin, Sultan Ali, Sullivan and Winkler;
Substitute Members - Councillors Rashid, Zaheer, O’Neill and Holly;
The opposition spokesperson be Councillor Sullivan;

(b) Rochdale Township Planning Sub-Committee:
Councillors Sheerin (Chair), Wazir (Vice Chair), Rashid, Brett, Meredith, S. 
Biant, Iftikhar Ahmed, Duckworth and Gartside.
Substitute Members - Howard, Zaheer, Cocks and Ali Ahmed

(c) The relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to attend their respective Ward 
Forum; 

(d) Clean and Green Priority Group - Councillors Zaheer (Chair), Hornby (Vice 
Chair), Heakin, Brosnan, Nickson, Cocks, Ali Ahmed, Howard and Holly;
Substitute Members – Winkler, Rashid, C. Biant, O’Neill; 

(e) Communities and Engagement Priority Group – Councillors Wazir (Chair), 
Nickson (Vice Chair), Daalat Ali, Zaheer, Rashid, Cocks, Ali Ahmed, 
Gartside and Duckworth;
Substitute Members – Sullivan, Sultan Ali, C. Biant, Zaman;  

(f) Rochdale Regeneration Members Group – Councillors O’Neill (Chair), C. 
Biant (Vice Chair), Brosnan, Zaheer, Farnell, Sheerin, Sultan Ali, Holly and 
Sullivan;
Substitute Members – Duckworth, Brett, Shakil Ahmed, S. Biant;

Page 7



(g) Rochdale United Charities  – Councillors Zaheer and C. Biant be nominated 
as the Trustees; 

(h) Norman Barnes Charity – Councillors S. Biant, O’Neill and Sheerin be 
appointed for a period of four years commencing from 11th July 2016;

(i) Township Older Persons Champion – Councillor Sheerin.

(2) any amendments to the appointments be delegated to the Chair of the 
Rochdale Township Committee.

TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2015 & 2016
99 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhood’s which sought agreement of the priorities contained within the 
Township’s Plan 2015 and 2016. The Township’s Plan included strategies and 
objectives to meet the priorities identified by the Township. The Plan was intended to 
guide and direct the use of devolved budgets, including the Township Funds, for the 
financial year 2016/17. The report also advised that Members were to be consulted 
on the development of a new three-year Township Plan following the introduction of 
the Council’s new Corporate Plan. 

In terms of the Council’s defined Corporate Priorities, the Township’s Plan was to be 
developed in line with the new Council wide Corporate Plan. The Townships Plan 
was intended to focus on the Council’s three key priorities of Prosperity, People and 
Place.

Alternatives considered: None.

DECIDED – That (1) the Township Plan 2015 and 2016 be approved;
(2) the Committee notes that the Township Plan applies to the end of the 
calendar year 2016, when a new Townships Plan is proposed to be developed 
in line with the Council’s new Corporate Plan, and in line with the Council’ 
Corporate Priorities;
(3) the Committee approves the Township Plan for the purpose of allowing the 
Township to focus on local priorities in line with the Council’s three key 
priorities – Prosperity, People and Place.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17
100 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which reviewed revenue and capital expenditure during 2015/2016 
and provided options for the allocation of funds in 2016/2017. The Committee were 
requested to approve the terms and conditions to the Rochdale Township Fund, and 
to agree to delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

Management of the Rochdale Township Fund is a function that is delegated to the 
Rochdale Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee.

The recommendations in the report were presented as Rochdale Township Funds 
were allocated to projects and schemes that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, realise the Township priorities and enable the Committee to monitor 
and review the use of the Rochdale Township Funds to ensure their continued 
efficient and effective use.

Alternatives considered: in considering the report, Members were requested to 
determine whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to funding streams as 
appropriate.

Page 8



DECIDED – That (1) the Committee notes the expenditure, commitments and 
balances for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds at the end of the 
2015/2016 financial year, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted 
report;

(2) the Committee notes the findings of the review of Township Funds 
2015/2016, as detailed at Appendix 3 of the submitted report, and feedback 
received to date on projects that were funded during 2015/2016, as detailed at 
Appendix 4 of the submitted report;

(3) the Committee approves the allocation of Rochdale Township Funds 
to funding streams in 2016/2017 as detailed at Appendix 5 of the submitted 
report;

(4) the Committee approves the terms and conditions for the Rochdale 
Township Revenue and Capital Funds for 2016/2017, as detailed at Appendix 6 
of the submitted report;

(5) the Committees approves the delegation arrangements for Rochdale 
Township Funds in 2016/2017, as detailed at paragraph 3.6 of the submitted 
report;

(6) the Committee agrees that any uncommitted/unspent funds be 
reallocated to a central revenue or capital funding stream as appropriate before 
the end of the January 2017 financial year to enable Members of the Committee 
to spend and/or commit all Rochdale Township Funds during the 2016/2017 
financial year.

Page 9



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 28th June 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Cecile Biant (Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Farnell, Heakin, 
Rashid, Sheerin, Sullivan, Winkler and Zaman.

OFFICERS:  V White (Neighbourhoods Directorate) S Shahid (Resources 
Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillors Daalat Ali, Duckworth, Howard, O’Neill and 
approximately 37 members of the public. 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Shakil Ahmed

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1 There were no declarations of interest. 

MINUTES
2 DECIDED – that the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Committee held on 15th March 2016, be approved as a correct 
record. 

BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT COMMUNITY MEETING
3 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Balderstone and Kirkholt
Community Meeting held on 8th March 2016, be noted.

BAMFORD AND OAKENROD AREA FORUM
4 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Bamford and
Oakenrod Area Forum held on 14th March 2016 and 13th June 2016, be noted.

BRIMROD, MARLAND AND SUDDEN AREA FORUM
5 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Brimrod, Marland and
Sudden Area Forum held on 17th March 2016, be noted.

CASTLETON AREA FORUM
6 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Castleton Area Forum
held on 17th May 2016, be noted.

CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM
7 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Central Rochdale
Area Forum held on 10th March 2016, be noted.

HEALEY AREA FORUM
8 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Healey Area Forum
held on 24th March 2016, be noted.

KINGSWAY AREA FORUM
9 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Castleton Area Forum
held on 26th May 2016, be noted.

MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH AREA FORUM
10 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Milkstone and

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Deeplish Area Forum held on 7th March 2016, be noted.

NORDEN AREA FORUM
11 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Norden Area Forum
held on 16th March 2016, be noted.

SPARTH AREA FORUM
12 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Sparth Area Forum
held on 24th March 2016, be noted.

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
13 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Spotland and Falinge
Area Forum held on 25th February 2016, be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17
14 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods
which updated the Sub-Committee on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 
and balances of Rochdale Township Fund 2015/2016, to enable the Sub-Committee 
to allocate funds to proposed projects.

The recommendations contained in the report were presented as the management of 
the Rochdale Township Fund was a function delegated to this Sub-Committee to 
determine. The Rochdale Township Funds were designed to be allocated to projects 
that benefit the Township’s communities and environment and which realise the 
Township’s stated priorities. The Sub-Committee monitors and reviews the use of the 
Rochdale Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the 
Township’s Funds.

The Sub-Committee were asked to note the expenditure, commitments and balances 
for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1 and 2, 
the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3 to the 
submitted report and to consider and approve, defer or refuse the allocation of funds 
to proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

Members of the Rochdale Township Action and Resource Sub-Committee were 
requested to note the Principal Townships Officer’s assessment of the proposed 
projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the Rochdale 
Township Fund, priorities of the Township and any specific risks identified.

Alternatives considered - in considering the report, Members were asked to decide 
whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects/schemes as appropriate.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of PC P Jones in relation to application 
TC/06/16 – Marne Crescent, Rochdale - waiting restrictions scheme. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr B Brown on behalf of the residents 
and Bamford Ward Councillors Jane Howard and Ian Duckworth in relation to 
application TC/32/15 – Half Acre Lane, Rochdale -  road closure scheme.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mrs S Iqbal, a resident in relation to 
application TC07/16 – Longfield Road, Rochdale - investigation and Traffic 
Regulation Orders scheme. 

Page 11



The Sub-Committee considered the views of Healey Ward Councillor, Shaun O’Neill 
in relation to application TC/40/15 – Mizzy Road Rochdale – 20mph zone and traffic 
calming scheme and RP/01/16 – Syke Chapel, Rochdale – parking bays scheme. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of R Buckley in relation to application 
TC/08/16 Bury Road, Rochdale – shopping parade parking provision. 

DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township Revenue and Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the 
submitted report be noted;

(2) the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed at
Appendix 3 of the submitted report be noted;

(3) it be noted that the Principal Township Officer had assessed the 
proposed projects to be considered for funding, against the criteria of the 
Rochdale Township Fund, priorities of the Township Plan and any specific 
risks had been identified, (as detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report);

(4) the Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice Chair and opposition spokespersons of the Committee, be given 
delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects

(6) applications for Township Funds, (as outlined in appendix 4 of the 
submitted report); and as, verbally updated by the Township Management 
Officer, be dealt with as follows:- 

APPLICANT PROJECT/SCHEME DECISION
Councillor Cecile Biant Marne Crescent Waiting 

Restrictions scheme.
Approve an allocation of 
£4,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Marne 
Crescent waiting 
restriction scheme.  

Township Officer Half Acre Lane, 
Rochdale – road closure 
scheme.

The application for the 
Half Acre Road, 
Rochdale – road closure 
scheme be deferred 
pending an investigation 
into alternative options

Councillor Cecile Biant Longfield Road, 
Rochdale – investigation 
and Traffic Regulation 
Orders Scheme.

Approve an allocation of 
£3,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the 
investigation element of 
the Longfield Road, 
Rochdale – investigation 
and Traffic Regulation 
Orders scheme - with 
the view to applying for 
further funds should a 
full scheme be deemed 
necessary. 

Councillor Cecile Biant Cutgate Road, Rochdale 
- traffic calming and 
20mph zone scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£36,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Cutgate 
Road, Rochdale – traffic 
calming and 20mph zone 
scheme.

Ex-Councillor Jane War Office Road, An allocation of £4,175 

Page 12



Gartside Rochdale – grass verge 
scheme. 

be approved from the 
Capital Fund for the War 
Office Road, Rochdale – 
grass verge scheme. 

Councillor O’Neill Mizzy Road, Rochdale - 
20mph zone and traffic 
calming scheme.

Approve an allocation of 
£30,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Mizzy Road, 
Rochdale – 20mph zone 
and traffic calming 
scheme. 

Ward Councillors Bury Road, shopping 
parade, Rochdale – 
parking scheme. 

The application for 
£43.450 from the Capital 
Fund in relation to the 
Bury Road, Rochdale – 
shopping parade 
parking scheme be 
Declined and a request 
be submitted for a 
scheme to be designed 
within the cost of 
£18,470 previously 
allocated from the 
Capital Fund in 
consultation with 
Councillor Sullivan and 
residents.

Councillor Shakil Ahmed Muriel Street – turning 
point.

The application for the 
Muriel Street – turning 
point be declined. Ward 
Councillors be 
requested to consult 
with the local school to 
explore other options.

Councillor Ali Ahmed Fox Street, Rochdale – 
lighting scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£5,749 from the Capital 
Fund for the Fox Street, 
Rochdale – lighting 
scheme.

Councillor Sultan Ali Foxholes Road, 
Rochdale – grass verge 
removal scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£12,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Foxholes 
Road, Rochdale – grass 
removal scheme. 

Highways and 
Engineering

Elbut Lane, Rochdale – 
parking restrictions 
scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£3,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Elbut lane, 
Rochdale – parking 
restrictions scheme. 

Councillor Shakil Ahmed Moss Avenue, Rochdale 
– waiting restrictions 
scheme.

Approve an allocation of 
£4,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Moss 
Avenue, Rochdale – 
waiting restrictions 
scheme. 

Page 13



Councillor O’Neill Syke Chapel, Rochdale – 
parking bays.

The application for the 
Syke Chapel, Rochdale – 
parking bays scheme be 
deferred pending a site 
visit to rule out any the 
safety issues and the 
final decision be made 
by the Chair of the Sub-
Committee, in line with 
the scheme of 
delegation. 

Highways and 
Engineering

Removal of a Zebra 
Crossing outside 126 
Ings Lane, Rochdale.

The application for the 
removal of a Zebra 
crossing outside of 126 
Ings Lane be declined. 

Eligible for call in: yes

Page 14



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 7th June 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Sheerin (Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, Surinder Biant, 
Brett, Duckworth, James Gartside, Meredith, Rashid and Wazir

OFFICERS:  M Woodward (Economy Directorate) and S Shahid (Resources 
Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  J Groves (Economy Directorate) and approximately 30 
members of the public 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:  None. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, the Chair of the Sub-
Committee, Councillor Sheerin, declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
relation to agenda item 3, planning application 15/01050/FUL for a proposed change 
of use of land to the garden and the erection of a 1.6m fence (retrospective) at 19 
Eskdale Avenue, Rochdale. He left the room during consideration of this item taking 
no part in the discussions or voting on this matter and vacated the Chair in favour of 
the Vice Chair, Councillor Wazir. 

MINUTES
2 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub-Committee, held 22nd March 2016 and 12th April 2016 be approved 
as a correct record.

CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO A GARDEN AND THE ERECTION OF A 1.6M 
FENCE (RETROSPECTIVE) AT 19 ESKDALE AVENUE, ROCHDALE.
3 The Director of Economy presented a report that detailed application number 
15/01050/FUL which was for a change of use of land to a garden and the erection of 
a 1.5m fence (retrospective) at 19 Eskdale Avenue, Rochdale. 

In introducing the application, the Planning Officer referred to the site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee and advised Members of a correction within the 
report in relation to the details and number of objections and letters of support. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Ms K McMonagle and Mr J McHale who 
addressed the Sub-Committee in objection to the application. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant’s agent who addressed 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

The applicant was advised by Members to make contact with the Planning 
Department to address the concerns raised.

DECIDED - That the application for planning permission be refused in 
accordance with the recommendation and reason set out within the submitted 
report. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



REAR DORMER EXTENSION INCLUDING AN INCREASE IN THE RIDGE HEIGHT 
OF THE ROOF OF THE DWELLING (RETROSPECTIVE) AT 11 FRANKLIN 
STREET, ROCHDALE.
4 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application number 16/00342/HOUS which was for a rear dormer extension including 
an increase in the ridge height of the roof of the dwelling at 11 Franklin Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 5JP. 

In introducing the application, the Planning Officer referred to the site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee and reported an additional letter of objection to 
the application which had been received since the preparation of the Committee 
report.  

The Sub-Committee considered the views of objectors who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of residents, objecting to the application. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the Ms S Hussain and Mr Mohammed 
on behalf of the applicant, who addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the 
application.

DECIDED – That the application for planning permission be refused for reasons 
detailed within the submitted report.  

APPLICATION FOR WORKS TO TREES WITHIN TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 
TPO 256 AT HEALEY HALL MILLS, HEALEY DELL, DELL ROAD, ROCHDALE.
5 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed planning 
application number 15/01291/WTTPO which was for an Application for works to trees 
within Tree Preservation Order TPO 256 for the felling and removal of two Sycamore 
trees and one Willow tree at Healey Hall Mills, Healey Dell, Dell Road, Rochdale, 
OL12 6BG. 

There were no objectors present at the Sub-Committee.

The applicant was not present to make representations in relation to the application 
at the Sub-Committee meeting.

DECIDED – That authorisation for works to trees within Tree Preservation 
Order TPO256 for the felling of two Sycamore trees and one Willow tree at 
Healey Hall Mills, Healey Dell, Dell Road, Rochdale, OL12 6BG be approved 
subject to the conditions detailed in the submitted report. 

APPLICATION TO MODIFY THE TERMS OF THE PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
CONTAINED WITHIN THE SECTION 106 AGREEMENT AT LAND WEST OF 
BROAD LANE, ROCHDALE.
6 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed a planning 
application number 16/00080/S106 which was for an Application to modify the terms 
of the planning obligations contained within the Section 106 Agreement pursuant to 
outline planning permission 12/55581/OUT at Land West of Broad Lane, Rochdale. 

The applicant was not present to make representations in relation to the application 
at the Sub-Committee meeting.

DECIDED – That Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that Rochdale 
Township Planning Sub-Committee would be minded to authorise the 
modification of the terms of the planning obligations contained within the 

Page 16



Section 106 Agreement pursuant to outline planning permission at Land West 
of Broad Lane as detailed within the submitted report. 

 

APPLICATION FOR WORKS TO  ONE ASH (T2) AND TO FELL ONE GOAT 
WILLOW (T1) AND ONE ASH (T3) SUBJECT TO TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 
NO. 146 (1196) AT 11 CONVENT GROVE, ROCHDALE.
7 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed application 
number 16/00197/WTTPO which was for an application for works to one Ash (T2) the 
felling of one Goat Willow (T1) and one Ash (T3) subject to Tree Preservation order 
No. 146 (1196) at 11 Convent Grove, Rochdale, OL11 4LT. 

There were no objectors present at the Sub-Committee.

The applicant was not present to make representations in relation to the application 
at the Sub-Committee meeting.

DECIDED – That the application for works to one Ash (T2), the felling of one 
Goat Willow (T1) and one Ash (T3) subject to Tree Preservation order No. 146 
(1196) at 11 Convent Grove, Rochdale, OL11 4LT be approved, subject to the 
conditions detailed in the submitted report. 

PLANNING APPEALS
8 The Director of Economy presented a report which detailed current planning 
appeals in the Township.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

Page 17



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 5th July 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Sheerin (in the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, Surinder 
Biant, Gartside, Howard (substituting for councillor Duckworth), Rashid, Wazir and 
Zaheer (substituting for Councillor Brett).
 
OFFICERS:  P. Ambrose (Economy Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Two members of the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Brett, Duckworth and Meredith.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
9 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
10 DECIDED – that the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub-Committee, held 7th June 2016, be approved as a correct record.

ERECTION OF EXTERNAL LIGHTING COLUMNS AT ROYLE BARN ROAD, 
ROCHDALE
11 The Director of Economy presented a report that detailed planning application 
number 16/00078/FUL which was for the erection of three external lighting columns 
to a yard (part retrospective application) at the site of Woolworths PLC, Royle Barn 
Road, Rochdale.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr. T. Brogan who addressed the 
meeting on behalf of the objectors to the application.

Representatives of the applicants were not in attendance at the meeting.

A Member requested that the application be deferred to a future meeting of the Sub-
Committee, to allow time for the Planning Officer to negotiate with the applicants the 
issues raised by the objectors at the meeting, namely clarification on the proposed 
use of lighting at the application and mitigating factors that can be taken to lessen the 
noise levels for residents living close to this location.

DECIDED – That consideration of this planning application be deferred to a 
future meeting of the Sub-Committee.

CHANGE OF USE AT MOLESWORTH HOTEL, MOLESWORTH STREET, 
ROCHDALE
12 The Director of Economy presented a report that detailed planning application 
number 16/00432/FUL which was for a change of use of part of the ground floor to 
create a day centre (D1) and part of the basement to create an office associated with 
a day centre; HMO use will remain in force for part of the ground floor, all of the first 
floor and all the second floor at Molesworth Hotel, 80 Molesworth Street, Rochdale.

Representatives of the objectors and of the applicants were not in attendance at the 
meeting.

Page 18



DECIDED – That the Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that this 
Sub-Committee is minded to grant planning permission for this application.

Page 19



 

Subject: Disposal of Surplus Land adjacent to 
9 Leach Street, Rochdale

Status: For Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Environment

Date: Wednesday, 27 July 2016
 

Ward: Kingsway

Report of: Director of Economy

Author Email:    
mohammed.nadeem@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Mohammed Nadeem

Tel: Tel: 01706 924170

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision: No 

1 Purpose of the report

1.1The purpose of this report is to obtain Township’s approval for the release of the 
land adjacent to 9 Leach Street, Rochdale for disposal as set out in the attached plan 
at Appendix 1 

2 Recommendations

2.1 That the land is declared surplus to the Council’s requirements and released for 
disposal. 

2.2 That the Head of Legal Services be requested to carry out the legal work in 
connection with the disposal. 

2.3 That the purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs. 

3 Background

3.1 The site is approximately 0.02 hectares in size and under the Unitary Development 
Plan it is classed as being within the Defined Urban Area.  

3.2 The site is located at the end of Leach Street and comprises predominately 
hardstanding with two grass verges. The site is surrounded by residential development 
to the north and east, open space to the south and industrial development to the west.   

3.3 Consultation with Planners has highlighted that residential development of this site 
would be supported

Alternatives considered
3.4 Retain this site in its current use. Retention of this site will not secure capital 
receipts or beneficial development, nor reduce the Council’s financial and/or 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



environmental liabilities. In its current condition, the site adds little to the recreational or 
visual amenity of the area.

3.5 The site is currently vacant. Retaining this site in its current use carries the risk of 
liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour and regular or ad hoc maintenance 
obligations

4 Financial Implications

       4.1 The implementation of the recommendations within this report will result in a reduction 
in future management costs and will yield capital receipts for the Council. 

5  Legal Implications

5.1 A check has been undertaken on the Council’s legal title to the site. No issues 
have been identified that in the opinion of the Head of Legal Services, would prevent a 
successful disposal.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications 

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The disposal will meet the objectives of the Council’s Asset Strategy by reducing 
the number of Council owned assets and financial liabilities. 

7.2 The Council is committed to releasing surplus assets and to continually review its 
need to hold land and property assets. Disposal of surplus assets assists the Council 
in its provision of services by producing capital receipts, reducing borrowing, reducing 
grant reliance and assists in achieving the efficiency targets. The disposal of surplus 
assets reduces the Council’s liabilities and the release of development opportunities 
encourages economic activity in the Borough.  

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There are no risk assessment implications arising from this report

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 21



 

BILBERRY STREET

4
6

2
1
0

2
8

2
6

1

4
8

2
0

LEACH STREET

17

3
4

3
6

M
O

S
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

LB1
8

1
0

4
5

7

MOSS TERRACE

9

1

128
SM

116

Land adj to 9 Leach Street, Rochdale 

Scale - 1:500             Date of plot: 22/06/2016

0 1 2 3 4 5 60m

Based on the Ordnance Survey mapping with

the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright

and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Rochdale Borough Council LA076279 2016. Page 22



 

Subject: Asset Strategy 2016/2019 Status: For Publication

Report to:   Middleton Township Committee
                    Heywood Township Committee
                    Rochdale Township Committee
                    Pennines Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for
Business, Skills and Employment

Date: Monday 21st July 2016
                    Wednesday 27th July 2016
                    Wednesday 27th July 2016
                    Wednesday 3rd August 2016

Report of: Director of Economy

Author Email:    peter.gregory@rochdale.gov.uk 

Author: Peter Gregory

Tel: 01706 923323

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision:        No

1 Purpose of the report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to, and to advise members concerning the 
Cabinet’s adoption of an amended Asset Strategy for 2016-2019

2 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that members note the approved Asset Strategy, which provides 
the framework by which the Council intends to manage its property assets during the 
financial years 2016-2019.

3 Background

3.1 The Council’s current Asset Strategy is due to expire on 31 March 2016. Over the last 
three years the Strategy has helped to focus property management activities and has 
driven some significant changes and improvements. Progress against this Strategy 
was presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11 November 2014 and 29 
July 2015, and some of the achievements are summarised in Section 5 of the new 
Strategy.

3.2 The revised Strategy presented with this report is designed to replace the current 
Strategy and builds on its achievements. It considers the challenges the authority is 
likely to face over the next three years and how asset management might support 
service delivery. It seeks to establish the benefits the Council wishes to achieve from 
its property and recommends the overall direction of travel for property management 
activity. Finally, it provides a clear framework of objectives to support decisions 
affecting the management of assets and identifies a series of work streams and 
actions designed to develop the property portfolio and its contribution to Council 
objectives during the next three years.

Page 23

Agenda Item 9

mailto:peter.gregory@rochdale.gov.uk


3.3 The Strategy provides a governance framework for the whole portfolio of land and 
building assets held by the Council. It affects all the Council Services that are 
accommodated in Council-owned premises as well as public and voluntary sector 
partners and business tenants. The portfolio extends to approximately 5,000 separate 
property interests, valued for financial accounting purposes at almost £700m (valuation 
date 01 April 2015). The annual running costs are substantial and are only partly offset 
by the income generated through third party lettings.

3.4 The Council’s current Asset Strategy comprises 21 work streams, some of which are 
project focused. This was the right approach at the time as the Council was seeking to 
achieve a significant change in the direction of and approach to asset management, 
and to engage its services more effectively in the process. This revised Strategy 
moves from that project-based emphasis to a more overtly asset-led approach and 
sets achievable but challenging objectives for each property in the portfolio.

3.5 The focus on the Council’s main asset groups emphasises the importance of asset 
management but also aims to achieve significant improvements in fitness for purpose, 
data requirements, and the policies and procedures required to ensure effective 
management. The Council also has regard to the risks inherent within its asset 
portfolio and seeks, wherever practical, to mitigate those risks effectively.

3.5 It is also acknowledged that seizing all opportunities for improving the efficiency of 
assets must involve the effective use of available technology and new ways of 
working, and therefore requires a partnership between property managers and the 
Council’s ICT and HR Services.

Alternatives considered

3.6 There is no mandatory requirement for the Council to adopt an Asset Strategy. 
However, it is recognised that this represents best practice in asset management. The 
Council wishes to secure maximum value from its portfolio, reduce portfolio size and 
deliver savings against property operating costs. The adoption of a coherent property 
strategy will continue to provide direction to all members and Council services in the 
achievement of those aims.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 This report has no direct financial implications. However, the approved strategy does 
set out broad principles and objectives for income and expenditure of revenue and 
capital budgets.  

4.2 The Council has set a revenue savings target of £300,000 to be achieved from the 
management of assets in 2016/17, and this reduction in costs is addressed as part of 
the Asset Strategy.

5 Legal Implications

5.1 This report has no direct Legal Implications. Any changes to the Asset Strategy during 
this period would need to be carried out in accordance with the Council’s governance 
framework. 

5.2 The Director of Economy will continue to report to the Head of Legal Services for 
advice and transactional assistance in terms of the management of its Asset Strategy.

6 Personnel Implications

Page 24



6.1 This report has no direct personnel implications. However, Council employees who 
deliver services from Council property assets may be indirectly affected by the 
requirements of the Asset Strategy, which encourages continual review of the 
Council’s use of assets, leading in some cases to changes of use of property occupied 
by Council staff.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1.1 The Asset Strategy is produced with deference to a number of Council policies 
including the following:

 Corporate Plan
 Vision and Blueprint
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Rochdale Borough Renaissance Masterplan
 Rochdale Borough Compact

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There are many and varied risks related to the ownership of property. A 
comprehensive review of the high level risks, set against each component of the 
Council’s property portfolio is set within the Strategy.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 This report has no direct equality/community issues. However, the approved Asset 
Strategy does raise issues as set out in the Equality Impact Assessment and 
summarised below:

 The Strategy aims to provide a property portfolio that is increasingly more 
suitable for the purposes of the Council’s service delivery, leading to buildings 
that are increasingly more accessible for service users, and are in better 
condition generally.

 The uniform implementation of the Strategy will result in consistent treatment of 
all groups and communities.

 The Strategy promotes inclusion by recognising that the Council’s partnerships 
with the voluntary sector and with other public sector organisations are critical 
to service delivery.

 The Strategy advocates review and disposal of assets which fail to perform 
effectively against financial or suitability criteria and/or by their contribution to 
Council service objectives.

9.2 There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Not applicable

Page 25



Asset Strategy 
2016/2019 

Fewer assets, costing less, that support 
Council Services more effectively and  
are used to increase prosperity for our 

communities 

Page 26



Asset Strategy 2016/2019 

Document Control
Document Title: Asset Strategy 2016-2019 

Summary 

Publication Date 06 June 2016 

Related Legislation / Applicable 
Section of Legislation 

Related Policies, Strategies, 
Guideline Documents 

- Corporate Plan 2015-16 
- Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council 2014-15 
- Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014-18 
- Rochdale Borough Renaissance Masterplan 

Replaces Asset Strategy 2013-16 

Joint Strategy (Yes/No) No 

Name of Partner(s) if joint 

Strategy Owner (Name/Position) John Searle, Director of Economy 

Strategy Author (Name/Position) Peter Gregory, Senior Property Manager, Estates & Assets 

Applies to All Council Directorates and Key Partners, e.g. RDA, Link4Life.

Review of Strategy 

Last Review Date 

Review undertaken by 

Next Review Date 01 April 2017 

Document Approvals 

This document requires the following approvals.

Name Title Date of Issue Version Number 

Cabinet 1 

John Searle 
Cllr Neil Emmott

Directory of Economy 
Portfolio Holder Housing 
& Environment 

All subsequent versions 

rochdale.gov.uk 

06 June 2016

Page 27



Our Mission 
Fewer assets, costing less, that support Council Services more effectively and are 

used to increase prosperity for our communities 

Our Core Ambitions 
• To hold fewer but more efficient assets

• To facilitate improving Council and partner services

• To realise maximum value from the estate

• To support economic growth

Our Strategic Objectives 
• To improve front-line service delivery and to maintain a high profile presence

within the community.

• To contribute to the borough’s economic growth, and to its social and
environmental well-being.

• To develop a more efficient property portfolio, increasingly fit for purpose.

• To realise asset values through capital receipts and maximising rental income.

• To deliver revenue savings and to reduce property owner’s liability from a
programme of asset rationalisation.

Page 28



Our Three Year Plan 

Throughout 2016/19 we will: 

 Invest in our asset portfolio to achieve regeneration and revenue objectives

 Use Council assets to support developments for housing, employment and town centre growth.

 Achieve an overall reduction in asset numbers and costs

 Continue to review assets to ensure that they are aligned with Council objectives and priorities

 Bring in capital receipts from a continual pipeline of surplus assets.

 Deliver savings and efficiencies from joint working with public sector partners

 Bring disused allotments back into use

 Improve the management of properties let to the voluntary sector

In 2016/17 we will: 

 Complete implementation of the
recommendations of the internal audit of
Atrium

 Adopt an Asset Investment Strategy

 Develop proposals for investing in further
industrial units to let

 Demolish Telegraph House and oversee
planning consent for Town Centre East

 Complete a strategic review of the
investment portfolio

 Adopt a Playing Pitch Strategy

In 2017/18 we will: 

 Renew suitability surveys for operational
properties

 Complete the disposal of selected farms,
shops and garage sites

 Relocate Rochdale Market to a
permanent site

 Action the recommendations from the
internal audit of statutory compliance

 Complete the implementation of the
approved allotments strategy

 Put a Heritage Asset Management Plan
in place

In 2018/19 we will: 

 Complete the mapping of all our assets

 See the building of Town Centre East

 Have in place a long term strategy for the
Town Hall

2018-20192017-20182016-2017

P
age 29



Contents 
Foreword by Councillor Neil Emmott Portfolio Holder for Housing and Environment….........…… 3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY….……………………………………………………………………………….. 

4 PART A: INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT.………………………………………………………… 

5 1 Introduction……………………………………………………………………………5 

2 Corporate Context……………………………………………………………………5 

3 Policy Context…………………………………………………………………………6 

4 Quality Context……………………………………………………………………… 7 

5 Looking Back: 2013/16………………………………………………………………8 

PART B: STRATEGIC OUTCOMES……………………………………………………………......... 10 

6 Mission Statement and Core Ambitions…………………………………………. 10 

7 Strategic Objectives 2016/19……………………………………………………… 10 

8 Assessing Outcomes…………………………………………………………………11 

PART C: STRATEGY…………………………………………………………………………………… 13 

9 Portfolio Scrutiny…………………………………………………………………… 13 

10 Workstreams………………………………………………………………………… 18 

Workstream 1: Acquisitions, Investments and New Developments 18 

Workstream 2: Assets for Growth and Prosperity………………………………. 20 

Workstream 3: Assets Supporting Council Services…………………………… 24 

Workstream 4: Assets Held for Sale……………………………………………… 27 

Workstream 5: Assets and the Environment………………………………………29 

Workstream 6: Assets in the Community………………………………………… 31 

Workstream 7: Assets Adding Value……………………………………………… 33 

Workstream 8: Assets for Education……………………………………………… 35 

PART D: MONITORING COMPLIANCE AND EFFECTIVENESS………………………………… 37 

11 Consolidated Action Plan……………………………………………………………37 

12 Property Performance Indicators 2016/19…………………………………………47 

PART E: STRATEGY GOVERNANCE.……………………………………………………………… 51 

13 Responsibilities……………………………………………………………………. 51 

14 Strategy Review Date……………………………………………………………… 51 

APPENDICES…………………………………………………………………………………………………52 

Appendix A: Organisational Governance Structure for Asset Management…….  53 

Appendix B: Property Performance Indicators 2013/16…………………………… 54 

Appendix C: Disposals Procedure………………………………………..……………56 

Appendix D: The Property Review Process………………………………………… 60 

Appendix E:  Accommodation Protocol……………………………………………… 61 

Appendix F:  AMG Budget Procedures………………………………………………  63 

Appendix G: Corporate Landlord Protocols……………………………………………64 

Appendix H: Asset Schedules……………………………………………………….. 70 

i: Assets for Growth and Prosperity…………………………………….. 70 

ii Assets Supporting Council Services.………………………………… 74 

ii: Assets in the Community……………………………………………… 79 

iv: Assets Adding Value…………………………………………………… 84 

Appendix I: Properties Disposed of, 2013-2016…………………………………… 85 

Appendix J: Property Information Strategy…………………………………………. 87 

2 Page 30



Foreword 

Rochdale Borough Council exists to provide services to its residents and local communities. We recognise the 

critical role that property assets play in delivering quality public services and believe that they can be used to 

enable People to access services, create a better Place to live and work and contribute to the borough’s growth 

and Prosperity. We work on the principle that operating out of efficient buildings, of appropriate design, located 

in the right place, enhances the support we can offer to our residents. We have a vision of our assets 

supporting jobs growth and investment, of an improving property portfolio being used in new ways to 

accommodate and enable effective services.  

2016-2019 is likely to be a time of significant challenge for the Council, with unprecedented financial cuts, 

requiring budget reductions of £37m between 2016/17 – 2017/18, coming alongside the demands of economic 

growth and targets for new developments for housing and employment and participation in the agenda of the 

Greater Manchester Combined Authority. 

Faced with such challenges we recognise that the Council’s ability to afford to manage its portfolio effectively is 

diminishing continually, and that as well as being a valuable resource, our buildings can exert a significant pull 

on our resources.  

Therefore, we aim to see continual improvements in the way our property assets are managed in order that 

they may be put to the best available use and that maximum value may be realised from them. We are seeking 

to reduce the costs of holding property and to use what the Council has as effectively as possible. We want to 

move away from our traditional approach to asset management and adopt an innovative perspective on how 

our assets can help us to meet our challenges.  

The Asset Strategy sets out the way we intend to manage our property assets over the next three years in 

order to achieve our objectives. It presents a demanding programme of actions and targets that will alter 

radically how assets are regarded by Council Members, staff and stakeholders in the community. 

Councillor Neil Emmott

Portfolio Holder Housing and Environment 

Rochdale Borough Council 

3 Page 31



Executive Summary 
The Council holds property to support and enable Council Services to achieve their organisational objectives. 
It will do this by managing its property assets to improve services, reduce costs, and generate wealth for the 
Borough. Its property will generate finance, provide accommodation for staff, make services accessible to the 
local community, and enable development and service contributions by third parties. 

Over the lifetime of the Strategy the Council’s property portfolio will change. By 2019 the Council will hold fewer 
and more efficient assets, and will have a track record of realising maximum value from the estate and of 
contributing to economic growth targets by the use of its assets.

Sharing the 
Organisational Vision 
The Council recognises that 
its property managers need 
to understand the 
objectives and priorities of 
the organisation and of its 
separate Services. It will 
structure its asset 
management activities to 
ensure they are aligned to 
the organisation’s overall 
vision and strategy 

Innovation 
The Council will be 
innovative in its use of 
assets, and will seek to 
manage them to support an 
organisation facing massive 
challenges and rapid and 
radical change 

Challenging the 
Portfolio 
The Council will continually 
question its reasons for 
owning each property asset 
and will challenge poor 
performance in condition, 
running costs, suitability 
and utilisation 

Generating Income 
The Council will use its 
property assets to realise a 
financial return to invest 
into its services 

Stimulating Economic 
Growth 
The Council will use its 
property resources and 
strategic acquisitions to 
stimulate inward 
investment, development, 
and support to business and 
job creation 

Driving Savings and 
Efficiencies 
The Council will aim to 
reduce the number, extent 
and liabilities of its asset 
portfolio, whilst improving 
the efficiency of each of its 
retained assets 

Collaboration 
The Council will work with 
its partners from the public 
and voluntary sectors to 
enhance service delivery 
and to produce efficiencies 
in the use of property 

Transformational 
Data 
The Council recognises that 
appropriate and high 
quality property data is the 
evidence that drives 
transformation in asset 
management 

4 Page 32



PART A: INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT 

1. Introduction
1.1 This Strategy replaces the Asset Strategy for 2013/16 and reviews and builds on its achievements. It

considers the challenges the authority is likely to face over the next three years and how asset
management might support service delivery. It seeks to establish the benefits the Council wishes to
achieve from its property and recommends the overall direction of travel for property management
activity. Finally, it provides a clear framework of objectives to support decisions affecting the
management of assets and identifies a series of workstreams and actions designed to develop the
property portfolio and its contribution to Council objectives during the next three years.

1.2 The Strategy provides a governance framework for the whole portfolio of land and building assets held
by the Council. It affects all the Council Services that are accommodated in Council-owned premises as
well as public and voluntary sector partners and business tenants. The portfolio extends to
approximately 5,000 separate property interests, valued for financial accounting purposes at almost
£700m (valuation date 01 April 2015). The annual running costs are substantial and are only partly
offset by the income generated through third party lettings.

1.3 The general direction of travel for asset management has been to reduce the number and costs of
property assets. Whilst this remains the case, the Asset Strategy emphasises the need for investment,
acquisitions and development of the portfolio in order to meet effectively the needs of the Council into
the medium and long term.

1.4 The Council’s previous Asset Strategy, which was in force for the three years to March 2016,
comprised 21 workstreams, some of which are project focused. This was the right approach at the time
as the Council was seeking to achieve a significant change in the direction of and approach to asset
management, and to engage its services more effectively in the process. This revised Strategy moves
from that project-based emphasis to a more overtly asset-led approach and sets achievable but
challenging objectives for each property in the portfolio.

1.5 The focus on the Council’s main asset groups emphasises the importance of asset management but
also aims to achieve significant improvements in fitness for purpose, data requirements, and the
policies and procedures required to ensure effective management. The Council also has regard to the
risks inherent within its asset portfolio and seeks, wherever practical, to mitigate those risks effectively.

1.6 It is also acknowledged that seizing all opportunities for improving the efficiency of assets must involve
the effective use of available technology and new ways of working, and therefore requires a partnership
between property managers and the Council’s ICT and HR Services.

2. Corporate Context
2.1 Over the lifetime of this Asset Strategy the Council faces unparalleled challenges. The way that the

organisation manages its property assets to meet those challenges will be determined by a number of
key factors:

 Financial Limitations – Reductions to public sector spending seem likely to continue throughout
the lifetime of this Strategy. Increasingly the Council will have to manage property with fewer
resources, and will need to learn to target those resources where they will make the greatest
positive impact. Prudent asset management can contribute to the Council’s financial resources,
improve returns and secure capital receipts.

 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority – GMCA will drive closer working links with the
other GM local authorities and public sector partners. Membership of GMCA, particularly
through the GM Spatial Framework and the Land Commission, will provide opportunities to
make the asset ownership more efficient as well as present the Council with challenges to the
use of assets for economic growth.

 Market Conditions – at the time of the preparation of this strategy economic conditions are
improving slowly. Rochdale’s challenge is to maximise its outcomes against the backdrop of a
local economy that struggles when compared nationally and regionally.

 Economic Growth – The emphasis of devolution and of the Greater Manchester Combined
Authority is economic growth, the attraction of new investment, development and income into
the regional economy. It is recognised that Rochdale should participate fully in the GM Growth
Strategy in order that it might take maximum benefit from the opportunities presented.

5 Page 33



 Devolution and Public Service Reform – there are significant national and regional drivers to
increase collaboration, shared services and shared assets with the Council’s public sector
partners. The Council is participating in the Greater Manchester initiative that has, to date,
successfully bid for funds under the government’s One Public Estate Phases 2 and 3.

 Voluntary Sector – the Council shares with central government a focus on increasing the
responsibilities and extent of services delivered by the voluntary sector and on greater levels of
co-operation and partnership between local authorities and voluntary organisations.

2.2 Conflicting Goals – The external and internal demands upon the use of the Council’s asset portfolio are 
varied and are at times in conflict with one another, a fact that is reflected in the actions and objectives. 
It is for the Council to steer a course that achieves a balance between those demands. 

3. Policy Context

Corporate Plan 

3.1 The Corporate Plan sets out the 
Authority’s vision to be “a Council 
which builds success and prosperity 
with our citizens and partners, whilst 
protecting our vulnerable people”. The 
Plan sets out the emphasis upon the 
transformation of Council services and 
its three priority areas: People, Place 
and Prosperity.  

3.2 The principles in the Corporate Plan cover issues such as: 

• Creating a high quality built and natural environment that is fit for purpose,

• The importance of new housing and commercial development

• The maintenance of open spaces and parks,

• Supporting businesses to invest, grow and create jobs

Vision and Blueprint 

3.3 The “Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council for 
2014/15” advocates the direct link between service 
delivery and our asset portfolio as a means by which 
Council services can be supported and improved. This 
link is adopted as a recurring theme throughout this 
Strategy. 

3.4 The Vision and Blueprint sets out the concept of Place 
and recognises that Council assets can contribute to 
facilitating high quality buildings and open spaces, 
accessible and used countryside and places where 
people want to live and stay. It emphasises the balance 
required between access to services and the need to 
reduce expenditure on buildings, the need to encourage 
the creation of more and good quality jobs at a local 
level, the importance of the Council’s working 
relationships with the voluntary sector, and how the 
disposal of surplus assets can help to promote economic 
and urban regeneration and successful local 
communities. 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014:2018 

3.4 The Council’s “Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014:2018” (MTFS) recognises the important role 
played by capital assets, including land and building assets, in helping to achieve the Council’s key 
priorities. In particular: 

• Support to the Council’s concept of “Place” by helping to deliver high quality buildings and
public spaces, accessible and used countryside and places where people want to live and stay.

“We will need a 
significantly reduced level 
of assets and use our 
assets to deliver quality, 
efficient services” 

Vision and Blueprint for 
Rochdale Council for 
2014/15 

6 Page 34



• Well-run buildings can save running costs

• Capital receipts from disposals can be used to fund services, other assets, or reduce debt and
the costs of borrowing, although cannot supplement ongoing revenue spend.

• The quality of assets has a significant impact on customer access and experience of services.

• The quality of the public realm and infrastructure influence how we feel about the borough

• Assets can help to transform the way that the Council works.

The MTFS endorses the focus of the property team on providing a suitable and sufficient property 
portfolio which is adaptable and supports the delivery of the core services of the Council and partner 
organisations. 

Rochdale Borough Renaissance Masterplan 

3.5 The Renaissance Masterplan was introduced in 2005 to set out the Council’s direction for the physical 
development of the borough, setting out the vision of how the borough will look into the future. 

The document sets out a number of key themes: 

• Creating sustainable neighbourhoods

• Developing 21st century employment sites

• Establishing thriving town centres

• Capitalising on our environmental assets

• Focussing on strategic gateways and corridors

• Accessible and integrated transport

• Improving design and image

The Renaissance Masterplan has served the Borough well over the last 10 years and remains relevant 
and challenging. However, a review and refresh are currently underway to ensure that the plan can 
continue to drive transformation effectively. 

Revenue Savings 

3.6 The Council aims to continually reduce the costs of buildings where possible, a goal that will drive a 
robust and continuous property review programme and require the Council to come to some hard 
decisions concerning the future of assets. 

3.7 The Council has set a revenue savings target of £300,000 to be achieved from the management of 
assets in 2016/17. It is clear that the source of these savings will only be achieved through the closure 
and disposal of property assets. 

4. Quality Context
4.1 Asset Management seeks continual improvement in the quality of the property portfolio and its

outcomes for the benefit of the borough. An important aspect of this is to consider critically the
effectiveness of the way that property is managed.

Internal Audits

4.2 The purpose of the internal audits is to critically examine the quality of asset management activity and
to drive improvements through the successful implementation of the recommendations and actions
arising. The asset Strategy acknowledges the sound foundations recognised by the audits, whilst also
seeking an approach that will improve the areas of identified weakness.

4.3 A number of aspects of asset management have been subjected to internal audits in recent years. The
key findings of those audits and the successful implementation of actions arising have contributed to
the continual development of the Council’s approach to asset management.

7 Page 35



 

Audit Final 
Report 
Issued 

Ranking 
1= v.good 

5= unsatisfactory 

Key Findings 

Commercial 
and 
Industrial 
Estate 

24 Apr 13 2 Good and effective controls are in place to manage the 
risks, but a number are inconsistently applied and need 
more robust procedures, namely contract monitoring, 
inspection regime and debt collection 

Asset 
Management 

18 Feb 14 3 The Council should introduce some initiatives which are 
recognised as best practice. These include 
improvements to governance arrangements, better links 
between Services and Property, the development of 
improved performance information. 

Atrium 02 Oct 15 =>3 The system is fit for purpose, and is generally sound in 
managing risks. However, steps should be taken to 
ensure the system is used to its full capacity and 
capability in areas such as Schools Net capacity, 
Legionella, Asbestos surveys, Fire Risk Assessments, 
DDA Surveys, mobile working. Work is also required to 
improve both access and security. 

Disposals 23 Dec 
15 

=>3 Disposals policy and procedures are required to assist 
reduction in asset numbers and to provide transparency 
and consistency in the process. 

Scheme of Delegation should be reviewed. 

Consider whether improvements can be made to 
information reported to Members. 

Issues concerning VAT, fees and valuations. 

4.4 It is understood that the Director of Resources is to schedule in 2016/17 an internal audit of the 
Council’s approach to statutory compliance in relation to building safety. It is anticipated that this audit 
will make an important contribution to the Council’s approach to risk management. 

 

5. Looking Back: 2013/2016 
Review of Asset Strategy 2013/16 

5.1 This document builds upon the objectives and achievements of the 2013/16 strategy, which has given 
the Council a more definite direction of travel over the last three years. The following table provides a 
flavour of what has been accomplished through that previous strategy. 

5.2 The previous Asset Strategy, covering the financial years from 2013/14 to 2015/16, was formally 
approved by members on 09 February 2014. It set out a high level framework for the review of the 
Council’s land and buildings portfolio. The portfolio was split into a number of workstreams for the 
purposes of review. Progress against the workstreams has subsequently been reported to the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 11 November 2014 and 29 July 2015. 

Property Review – 
Surplus and 
Front-line Assets 

Continual property review activity has brought forward an extensive pipeline of 
potential disposals. Asset disposals generated the following capital receipts: 
£1,233,500 (2013/14); £1,541,500 (2014/15); £2,274,575 (2015/16). 

A schedule of the properties disposed since 01 April 2013 is attached as 
Appendix J. 

 

8 Page 36



 
Homelessness 
Service 

The Homelessness Service and Leopold Court were successfully transferred to 
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing in July 2014 

Parks, 
Countryside and 
Open Spaces 

A strategy for the improved management of the 
Council’s allotment sites has been approved by 
Members, and a Playing Pitch Strategy is currently 
being developed. 

Work has commenced to identify sites for additional 
allotments and community gardens 

 

Adult Services 
Social Enterprise 

Five assets have been leased to the social enterprise, with a further six 
properties declared surplus to requirement and disposed of. 

Corporate 
Landlord 

Budget management has been achieved within £10k for the last two years. 

Efficiencies have been delivered by extending the number of premises in scope 
by c.20%*, with no increase in the budget provided. 

Stakeholder survey registered a dissatisfaction rating with the corporate 
landlord model of only 1%. 

Statutory compliance has been significantly improved with the issue of new 
statutory log books to each building. 

Regeneration 
Assets 

The Council is actively pursuing the sale and development of sites to secure 
specific objectives of growth and regeneration (see Appendix I.i).  

Objectives secured through this programme are new housing developments 
(homes for sale and to rent, including affordable housing), release of 
employment land, and locality developments such as new infrastructure on 
Kirkholt estate. 

Leased-in Assets The number of leased-in assets has reduced from 13 to 8, a reduction of 38%* 

The rental liability of leased-in assets reduced by £207k per annum, or 37% 

The range of potential dilapidations on vacated properties has reduced from 
£116-222k to £0. 

Properties 
Occupied by 
Link4Life 

 

The terms of the leases to L4L have been 
reviewed and appropriate changes 
introduced. 

Industrial Estates The estate has been fully let since 2013/14, which compares with a north west 
benchmark of 93% (measured in 2013/14). 

Managed 
Workspace 

The transfer of the properties to in-house management was achieved from 01 
April 2014. 2014/15 saw a budget out-turn of £58k over 2013/14, overturning a 
deficit of £51k. Despite a challenging environment this improvement was 
sustained in 2015/16 with a budget surplus of £3k. 

Lock 50 achieved an occupancy rate of 100% for approximately 12 months. 

 

9 Page 37



PART B: STRATEGIC OUTCOMES 

6. Mission Statement and Core Ambitions 
6.1 The Council’s Mission is to own fewer assets, costing less, that support Council Services more 

effectively and are used to increase prosperity for our communities. Its Core Ambitions are:  

• To hold fewer but more efficient assets 

• To facilitate improving Council and partner services 

• To realise maximum value from the estate 

• To support economic growth 

 

7. Strategic Objectives for 2016/19 
7.1 In the implementation of this Asset Strategy the Council aims for the continual improvement in the 

performance of its Services and of its property portfolio in order to respond to the demands imposed by 
the rapidly and radically changing business environment in which it operates.  

7.2 During its lifespan this Asset Strategy will focus upon the performance of its property managers and the 
transformation of its property portfolio in order to meet the following Strategic Objectives: 

• To improve front-line service delivery and to maintain a high profile presence within the community. 

• To contribute to the borough’s economic growth, and to its social and environmental well-being. 

• To develop a more efficient property portfolio, increasingly fit for purpose. 

• To realise asset values through capital receipts and maximising rental income. 

• To deliver revenue savings and to reduce property owner’s liability from a programme of asset 
rationalisation. 

 
7.3 To achieve these objectives, and to deliver continual improvement, the Council recognises the 

interdependence of Services and of the property portfolio: that excellence in one area can drive 
transformational performance in another. The Council therefore expects: 

• Property managers to understand the Corporate and Service objectives and to produce innovative 
and challenging proposals to meet those targets. 

• Service Heads to constantly review how their services are provided from assets under their control. 

Revenue Savings and 
Reduced Liabilities 

Capital Receipts 
Rental Income 

Efficient Portfolio, Fit 
for Purpose 

Economic, Social, 
Environmental 

Wellbeing 

Improved Service 
Delivery and 

Community Presence 

Improving Property 
Management and 

Portfolio 
Transformation 

10 Page 38



• Engagement of other specialists, such as ICT and HR, who are able to introduce new technology 
or new ways of working which contribute to building efficiency. 

7.4 The Council recognises that achieving its strategic objectives requires a method of governance that 
calls for prioritisation between conflicting goals. It must simultaneously 

• Cut costs and invest in physical improvements and maintenance 

• Reduce the number of assets and improve access to services 

• Dispose of some assets and acquire others. 

• Obtain capital receipts and provide non-financial benefits to the community. 

• Secure development and maintain the natural environment. 

• Encourage business growth and maximise rental income. 

7.5 In these respects, therefore, the governance structure for asset management should result in effective 
internal collaboration, team working and prioritisation involving the representation of all Services and 
appropriate means to make decisions despite conflicting agendas. 

 

8. Assessing Outcomes 
8.1 In order to deliver constant transformation, the Council will work within a Cycle of Continual 

Improvement, as demonstrated by the following diagram. The process will continually assess where the 
Council and individual Services need to be, and identify and address weaknesses in asset 
management. 

Cycle of Continual Improvement 

 

Policy 
Context 

Quality 
Context 

Understanding 
Corporate and 
Service Vision 

Understanding 
Property and 

Service 
Effectiveness 

Effective 
Property and 

Service 
Performance 

 

Improvements 
to Service and 

Property 
Performance 

 

Corporate 
Context 

11 Page 39



8.2 Data is crucial to the success of this process. During the lifetime of the former Asset Strategy the 
Council has significantly improved its capability of collecting, retaining and analysing data on the 
performance of its buildings. This data is used to prompt discussion about how individual properties 
and groups of properties might be improved to the benefit of the services being delivered. This data will 
be publicised and applied in order to: 

8.2.1 Assess and report the impact of this Strategy using the success measures attached to each action set 
out in Sections 9, 10 and 11. 

8.2.2 Inform a number of key performance indicators (KPIs), which will be used to measure the performance 
of the Council’s property portfolio and of its managers. During 2015/16 benchmarking has been set up 
for a number of these measures with other Council’s throughout the north-west, using the network of 
the Association of Chief Estates Surveyors. The results of these exercises are provided in Appendix B. 

For 2016/19 the Council has widened its KPIs to reflect the objectives and actions of this Asset 
Strategy. The KPIs are set out in Section 12 below. 

12 Page 40



PART C:  STRATEGY 

9. Portfolio Scrutiny 
9.1 In order to achieve its Strategic Outcomes the Council will scrutinise objectively eight separate areas of 

its property portfolio to identify how it should be using and transforming the assets within them. Each of 
the workstreams represents one segment of the Council’s property portfolio. Each workstream is 
examined for the  

• effectiveness of its governance  

• sustainability of its assets  

• opportunities for reducing costs and/or numbers of assets  

• quality of data available. 

9.2 The Council recognises that its four scrutiny areas themselves need to be subject to continual 
improvement in issues that cut across the different workstreams, and has therefore identified a number 
of actions to ensure the continual application of good practice. 

Scrutiny 
Function: 

Governance 

Objective: To establish and maintain efficient governance methods and key policies and 
procedures to achieve the effective management of the Council’s assets 

Issues for 
Consideration 

The Council recognises that it must produce optimum performance in two 
particular areas: 

Corporate Responsibility: The effective and efficient use of Council assets is a 
corporate responsibility that begins at the point of defining the service delivery 
objectives of the Council and its Services. Financial investment into 
improvements, repairs and acquisitions, rationalisation and disposal of property 
are to be informed by the extent and model of the services the Council wishes to 
deliver. Improvements to and rationalisation of property assets cannot be 
achieved in isolation from every aspect of service delivery. This strategy will 
therefore aim for closer working relations between property professionals, front-
line services, Council leadership and Members. 

 Asset Management 
Structure: Careful 
consideration needs to be 
given to how the Council’s 
asset management functions 
operate in relation to each 
other, but also in terms of the 
way it is able to understand the 
requirements of the 
organisation and direct and 
clarify the roles and objectives 
of its technical delivery teams. 
The Council recognises the 
importance of a definite and 
understood structure for its 
asset management activity, for 
the working of its forums, and 
for the management and 
prioritisation of its budgets.  

Organisational Governance Structure for Asset 
Management (provided in larger scale in Appendix A) 

13 Page 41



Action Plan A Ensure effective communication between Property 
teams and Council Services and to maintain a 
corporate overview of progress of the Asset 
Strategy objectives and achievements by 
presenting to the Council’s Corporate Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee and to Directorate SMTs on an 
annual basis 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measures: Presentations completed 

 B Ensure the correct balance of efficiency with 
transparency by reviewing the Scheme of 
Delegation for land and property  

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Head of Legal & 
Governance Reform 

  Success Measure: Improvements implemented or, 
if no changes, outcome of the review minuted at 
Strategic Asset Management Group 

 C Ensure best practice in the management of its 
assets by revisiting the Internal Audit of Asset 
Management to consider the implementation of 
recommendations not yet actioned  

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Recommendations implemented 
or, if no changes, outcome of the review minuted at 
Strategic Asset Management Group 

 D Ensure best practice in the management of its 
assets by reviewing the structure, roles and 
responsibilities of its property teams and forums 
and the various sources of funding available for 
property management and investment. 

Director of Economy 

  Success Measure: To minute the outcome of an 
annual review at Strategic Asset Management 
Group and to implement authorised changes. 

  

Scrutiny 
Function: 

Building a Sustainable Portfolio 

Objective: To improve the condition, fitness for purpose and utilisation of each property 
asset. 

Issues for 
Consideration 

Within the limits of its available financial resources the Council aims to possess a 
retained property portfolio that is fit for the purpose of the services being 
delivered from it. It aims for a physical condition that the Council can be proud of, 
services being able to operate without building constraints, and each asset being 
used to the optimum degree. 

The Council will maintain its asset management regimes under scrutiny, to 
ensure that processes and procedures are sound, opportunities for cost savings 
and realisation of value are recognised, and that the Council achieves a high 
standard of statutory compliance and quality control. 

Action Plan E Identify priorities for investment and to inform 
property performance by maintaining a five year 
rolling programme of condition surveys for all 
building assets 

Senior Property 
Manager (Technical & 
Building Surveying) 

  Success Measure: A condition survey exists for 
each building asset, which is no more than five 
years old. 

14 Page 42



 F Inform building performance by maintaining a 
three yearly programme of suitability surveys for 
all building assets 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: A suitability survey exists for 
each building asset, which is no more than three 
years old. 

 G Inform building performance by maintaining 
effective and accurate records on the utilisation 
of each Council building 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Heads of Service   Success Measure: Up to date and accurate 
utilisation data exists for each asset 

 H Safeguard the safety of its staff, customers and 
other building users by maintaining full statutory 
compliance in respect of the Council’s 
responsibilities for property maintenance 

Senior Property 
Manager (Technical & 
Building Surveying) 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: No health and safety 
incidents occur where the Council’s failure to 
maintain a satisfactory compliance regime is a 
contributory factor 

 I Build a sustainable portfolio, to support Services’ 
property needs, to improve Place and to bring 
forward growth projects by supporting the 
acquisition of property assets by agreement and 
compulsory purchase as appropriate. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Operations Director 
RDA 

Heads of Service   Success Measure: Acquisitions completed, with 
business case and anticipated outcomes 
recorded. 

  

Scrutiny 
Function: 

Asset Rationalisation 

Objective: To reduce the number of assets in order to reduce the costs and liabilities of 
property ownership 

Issues for 
Consideration 

The Council is committed to reducing the number and costs of its property assets. 
It will collect and analyse data on the performance of its assets and will seek 
alternatives to the retention of costly and/or under-utilised properties. The Council 
recognises that the declared and/or traditional reasons for property ownership 
need to be robustly and continually challenged and has charged its Services with 
the responsibility of continually reviewing the assets they occupy and their model 
of service delivery 

Action Plan J Maintain a prioritised schedule of building 
performance and to continually align this with 
Service objectives in order to challenge asset 
retention 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Heads of Service 
  Success Measure: Annual consideration by 

Leadership Team, and by Members as required. 

 K Ensure that ICT and HR functions are fully 
engaged in and contributing to the Asset 
Strategy objectives 

Director of Economy 

Head of ICT 

15 Page 43



  Success Measures: ICT innovation and new 
ways of working have contributed to the more 
effective use of assets. 

Head of Human 
Resources 

  

Scrutiny 
Function: 

Effective Property Data 

Objective: To continue to improve the available data on each of the Council’s property 
assets in order to support effective decision-making 

Issues for 
Consideration 

The Strategy acknowledges the 
centrality and importance of 
property data to achieve effective 
and efficient property 
management. The Council will aim 
to continually improve its property 
data, which is seen as crucial to 
the Council’s need for evidence to 
set effective budgets and 
meaningful savings targets, to 
inform decision-making and to 
persuade of the need for radical 
change 

 

 At the centre of the property data system is the Council’s land and property 
Terrier, that shows the Council’s property ownership in mapping form, and which 
provides the referencing for the Council’s title deeds. 

To complement the Terrier, the Council has an asset management database, the 
Atrium system. Individual assets have been defined from the Council’s 
ownership titles, providing a platform for all asset management data. The system 
is fit for the purpose of being used as an asset management tool for the core 
Property Services functions, and the quality of the data to support asset 
management decisions is now better than it has ever been. It is recognised, 
however, that there is no limit to the quantity of data that could be collected and 
that maintaining and improving data quality is a continual task, the core aspects 
of which are reflected in this Strategy. 

An internal audit of the capability of Atrium was completed in the Summer of 
2015. The findings and recommendations of this audit are reflected within the 
objectives of this Strategy. 

In 2014/15 the Council provided property information to central government as 
part of the Transparency Agenda. The need to provide updated and new data in 
the future is inevitable. 

Additionally, the Council is called upon to share its property data with partners. 
These include the drive of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority towards 
One Public Estate and the strategic estate planning across Rochdale’s public 
sector organisations.  

Action Plan L Complete the requirements of the Corporate 
Property Information Strategy by mapping each 
asset and creating a written record on Atrium 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: All assets are mapped, with a 
complementary written record. 

 M Complete the implementation of the 
recommendations from the Internal Audit of 
Atrium 

Director of Economy 

16 Page 44



  Success Measure: Recommendations 
implemented or, if no actions, outcome of the 
review minuted at Strategic Asset Management 
Group 

 N Keep the core property information systems up 
to date and accurate 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets   Success Measure: Key Performance Indicators 

to measure the efficiency by which the Council 
records changes to the property portfolio. 

 O Measure the impact of this strategy and the 
success of asset management activity by 
monitoring the changes in the portfolio and the 
portfolio’s contribution to wider Council 
objectives. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Positive changes to the 
baseline portfolio as at 01 April 2016. 

Success Measure: Progress against actions and 
Key Performance Indicators as set out in 
Sections 10 & 11. 

 P Respond to statutory and agreed requirements 
from central government, Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority or other statutory body for 
property information uploads for the 
Transparency Agenda, e-PIMS or similar 
initiative. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Successful response to all 
requests for data. 

 

 

9.3 Each workstream sets out the overall aims the Council hopes to achieve from the assets in-scope and 
articulates in a series of supplementary objectives how the workstream will contribute to accomplishing 
the Asset Strategy’s Strategic Objectives. It identifies a series of actions, collated in Section 10 below, 
required to improve the performance of the portfolio against the strategic objectives. 

9.4 The inherent risks of each workstream, along with their potential impact and likelihood, are identified. 
Actions designed to mitigate these risks are included within the action plans. 

9.5 There is also reference to existing and required policies and procedures. 

9.6 Workstream objectives and actions have been shaped by property management best practice 
principles, have considered the need to mitigate risks and are designed to ensure that asset 
management makes the best possible contribution to helping the Council to meet its anticipated 
challenges over the three year period. 

17 Page 45



10. Workstreams 
 

WORKSTREAM 1: ACQUISITIONS, INVESTMENTS AND NEW DEVELOPMENTS 

Scope: Land and property targeted for acquisition 

Existing assets identified as targets for 
additional Council investment for purposes 
of regeneration or revenue growth. 

 

Lead Director of Economy 

Support Director of Resources 

Aims To take advantage of opportunities to provide tangible benefits to the borough through 
investment in property. 
To invest in improvements to existing assets to deliver regeneration and revenue 
benefits, to add value to Council assets and to attract private investment 
To undertake a programme of acquisitions of property by agreement or compulsory 
purchase in order to: 

• Support regeneration projects, including land assembly for development 
schemes 

• Support Service projects 
• Bring empty properties back into use 
• Improve investment values and revenue income  
• Provide better operational accommodation for Council services.. 

To use revised planning powers, or powers devolved to Greater Manchester as an 
opportunity to acquire properties to support regeneration. 

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Produce an Asset Investment Strategy in order to identify goals, criteria and objectives 
for a prioritised programme for acquisition and investment. 

Consider and develop innovative mechanisms for the acquisition and subsequent 
ongoing management of assets. 

To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Ensure that opportunities for “Invest to Save” are identified and that appropriate and 
prioritised bids are submitted for capital funding. 

Seek, where appropriate, to reinvest capital receipts and other funding into the 
acquisition and/or development of premises to meet the Council’s objectives. 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

Not applicable 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

Undertake due diligence in respect of each asset targeted for acquisition. 

Risk Management Assets, once acquired or invested in, fail to perform in terms of 
financial return and secured regeneration outcomes 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 The Council is unable to fund schemes that will make a significant 
and positive impact 

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Unless disposals are balanced by appropriate acquisitions and 
investment the overall quality of the portfolio, and its capacity to 

High 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

18 Page 46



meet organisational objectives and challenges will decline 

Policies and 
Procedures 

The Council is developing its Capital Investment Strategy 2016-2020, that seeks to 
set out the high level principles, processes and governance for the deployment of its 
capital resources. The Council will further develop the themes from this document to 
produce its Asset Investment Strategy that will specifically set out the objectives and 
criteria for investing in the development of the Council’s property portfolio. 

Action Plan 1.1 Consider the need for and, if appropriate, produce and 
obtain formal Council approval for a formal Asset 
Investment Strategy 

Director of 
Economy 

  Success Measure: Asset Investment Strategy in production 
or adopted by the Council 

 1.2 Complement the Asset Investment Strategy by producing 
and reviewing annually a schedule of sites and projects for 
acquisition and investment, understanding the options for 
funding and the intended outcomes. 

Director of 
Economy 

  Success Measure: Prioritised schedule of acquisitions 

 1.3 Produce detailed business cases for high priority 
acquisition/investment projects  

All Directors 

  Success Measure: Number and value of successful 
business cases. 

Success Measure: Number and value of successful bids for 
capital programme monies. 

 1.4 Examine the options available to the Council for investing 
to develop further industrial units to let 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets   Success Measure: Business case produced by 31 October 

2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19 Page 47



WORKSTREAM 2: ASSETS FOR GROWTH AND PROSPERITY 

Scope: 

 

Those land and buildings acquired using external funding, or existing assets 
appropriated to externally funded regeneration projects. 

Income generating assets that can make a strategic contribution to financial wellbeing 
and/or regeneration (industrial estates, managed workspace, commercial ground 
leases). 

Heritage assets, in respect of which the Council recognises that there are specific 
pressures to maintain the property in good order. 

 

 

Lead Director of Economy 

Support Director of Neighbourhoods 

Aims 

 

To deliver high quality buildings and public space 
To achieve the building of more new homes, including more that are affordable to local 
people, through deployment of its assets where this will secure the best outcome for the 
Council: 
To dispose of assets to promote economic and urban regeneration and to release capital 
or revenue income. 
To encourage businesses to invest and thrive in the borough, providing accommodation 
for small/starter businesses in order to create and support job creation. 
To enhance the borough as a tourist destination, and to make the best use of our assets 
as cultural attractions. 

To manage the income-generating assets to improve yields and financial return, to 
secure the assets’ value as an investment, making a defined contribution to the Council’s 
financial strategies. The Council will aim to improve the overall financial yield of the 
portfolio by reducing its management costs and improving its investment profile. 

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Monitor actions and progress through the Strategic Asset Management Group. 

 

20 Page 48

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCMjDgJCsi8kCFUM7FAodsqsIUQ&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.warburtonestates.co.uk%2F48206%2Fmillers-court-rochdale&bvm=bv.107406026,d.ZWU&psig=AFQjCNEa6LYrdW5qpRoAYoefkUYES3baRg&ust=1447433493938059
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCMjDgJCsi8kCFUM7FAodsqsIUQ&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.warburtonestates.co.uk%2F48206%2Fmillers-court-rochdale&bvm=bv.107406026,d.ZWU&psig=AFQjCNEa6LYrdW5qpRoAYoefkUYES3baRg&ust=1447433493938059


To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Within resources available to undertake efficient and planned management of each site 
to mitigate risks and liabilities and to make the assets available for supporting 
designated regeneration schemes. 

Retain assets which are expected to realise their strategic, financial or regeneration 
value in the future. 

Put in place an effective management regime to protect the Council’s heritage assets. 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

Dispose of its assets in a way that will deliver high quality outcomes in accordance with 
regeneration objectives; unlocking capital or revenue value where appropriate. 

Identify alternative uses or to dispose of assets no longer supporting a strategic 
objective. 

Participate in appropriate Greater Manchester regional initiatives designed to meet 
growth targets, eg common approach to disposals, GM Housing Investment Fund. 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

Maintain a record of each asset on SwiftMap and Atrium 

Risk Management Vacant sites represent a public health and safety liability, and are 
subject to maintenance costs and unlawful occupation. 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Capital and revenue value may remain “locked up” for many years 
by retaining assets for schemes that are slow to mature. 

Low 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 External funding may be subject to clawback on disposal Low 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Maintenance costs to put and keep heritage assets in good order 
and condition. Difficulties of securing a viable long-term use. 

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Legal and reputational risks due to deterioration of listed buildings. 
Assets need to be effectively managed to protect their value and 
to mitigate the impact on the local community. 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Heritage assets have particular management requirements and 
liabilities – poorly managed assets will diminish Council ability to 
attract funding in the future 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

Policies and 
Procedures 

The Council’s Borough Renaissance Masterplan is to be reviewed and updated 

A Heritage Asset Management Plan is to be prepared 

Action Plan 

 

2.1 Bring forward a pipeline of sites in the borough, privately 
owned and Council owned, that can be used to support 
regeneration and growth objectives. 

Head of Planning 

  Success Measure: Hectares of new development land 
formally identified and approved through the planning 
process. 

 2.2 Effectively manage the programme for the future use of 
each asset for regeneration purposes (for both housing and 
employment sites), setting clear timescales and outcomes 
for each site, subject to regular review to ensure that the 
objectives remain relevant and achievable; determining the 
best use of each site in the best interests of the Council. 

Operations Director 
RDA 

Head of Strategic 
Housing 

Head of Planning 

  Success Measure: Hectares of land sold that support 
designated regeneration projects. 

Success Measure: Hectares of land sold where sites no 
longer contribute to a defined regeneration project 

21 Page 49



 2.3 Participate in the growth strategy and objectives of the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority  

Operations Director 
RDA 

Head of Strategic 
Housing 

Head of Planning 

  Success Measure: The Council has achieved its 
contribution to the GMCA’s targets 

Success Measure: Allocation of New Homes Bonus and 
new Council tax for new housing schemes 

 2.4 Use the Council’s assets to contribute towards 
development targets for housing and employment uses. 

Director of 
Economy 

  Success Measure: The area (hectares) of Council land sold 
or self-developed for housing development. 

Success Measures: The area (hectares) of land sold or 
self-developed for employment uses. 

Head of Strategic 
Housing 

Head of Planning 

 2.5 Identify and release for general disposal and alternative 
operational uses sites that will realistically no longer 
support a regeneration scheme. 

Operations Director 
RDA 

Head of Strategic 
Housing 

Head of Planning 

  Success Measure: Number of sites released and capital 
receipts generated 

 2.6 Seek interim revenue generating uses on sites where 
regeneration schemes have been temporarily postponed. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets   Success Measure: Annual increase in revenue income 

from the in-scope assets 

 2.7 Support the development of the Town Centres and other 
regeneration initiatives through the use of Council assets 

Operations Director 
RDA 

  Success Measure: Hectares of Council land invested into a 
town centre scheme. 

 2.8 To use Council assets and private investment to deliver the 
development of Town Centre East 

Operations Director 
RDA 

  Success Measure: Grant of planning consent by 31 
December 2016 

Success Measure: Commencement of work on site by 30 
June 2017 

Success Measure: Completion of development by 31 
March 2019 

 

 2.9 Prepare a Heritage Asset Management Plan. Head of Planning 

  Success Measure: A plan is in place by 31 March 2017 that 
facilitates the effective and proactive management of the 
Council’s heritage assets 

 2.10 Implement a long-term strategy for the sustainability and 
viability of Rochdale Town Hall 

Operations Director 
RDA 

  Success Measure: Positive progress with the Council’s 
bids for funding 

 2.11 Provide small units for small and starter business growth 
and expansion. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets   Success Measure: Number of tenants vacating industrial 

estates and managed workspace for the purpose of 
business expansion. 

22 Page 50



 

 

2.12 Effectively undertake the 
day to day management of 
Telegraph House and 
Brook House, and to 
oversee the vacation of 
Telegraph House and its 
integration into the 
Rochdale town centre 
development. 

 

Operations 
Director RDA 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

  Success Measure: Telegraph House vacated and 
demolished. No health and safety incidents 

Success Measure: Brook House corporate budget 
completes each year in surplus. 

 

 2.13 Increase income and continue to exceed budget targets in 
respect of industrial units and managed workspace. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

  Success Measure: Deliver a year-end 
budget surplus from managed 
workspace. 

Success Measure: Increase rental 
income from the managed workspace, 
industrial estates and commercial 
ground leases. 

Success Measure: Maintain industrial 
estates occupancy rates in excess of 
95%  

  Success Measure: Achieve an occupancy rate for the 
managed workspace in excess of 70%. 

Success Measure: Reduce Council occupancy of 
investment asets 

 

 

 2.14 Review the strategic objectives and the management 
arrangements for the investment portfolio and present 
options and recommendations to Strategic Asset 
Management Group 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

  Success Measure: Report to Strategic Asset Management 
Group by 31 October 2016, and action plan identified, if 
appropriate  

 

 2.15 Undertake a verification exercise to ensure correct 
categorisation of Commercial ground leases. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets   Success Measure: Verification exercise complete and 

information able to be used to establish baseline portfolio 
information 

 2.16 Provide a permanent site for Rochdale market Operations 
Director RDA   Success Measure: Market relocated to a permanent site 

 

23 Page 51



WORKSTREAM 3: ASSETS SUPPORTING COUNCIL SERVICES 

Scope: All operational buildings 

 

Lead Director of Economy 

Support 

 

Director of Childrens Services 

Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing 

Director of Resources 

Director of Neighbourhoods 

Director of Adult Care 

Aims 

 

To make the portfolio 
increasingly fit for the purposes 
of service delivery 

To provide a property portfolio 
that brings accessible services 
into local neighbourhoods and 
communities. 

 To reduce portfolio size and costs, but to use retained assets to deliver quality, efficient 
services. 

To link with other local authorities and with public sector organisations within the 
borough to deliver efficiencies in property management and service delivery. 

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Use the Operational Asset Management Group (OAM) to monitor property management 
functions and to oversee continual property reviews and the creation of a pipeline of 
assets for disposal. OAM will provide the primary forum to enable effective joint working 
between corporate and front-line services in order to identify and realise the 
opportunities. 

To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Identify opportunities to invest in the portfolio in order to improve the experience of 
occupiers and/or increase the portfolio value. The Council will continue to develop and 
improve its Corporate Landlord model and will actively seek opportunities to “Invest to 
Save”, altering and improving properties in order to generate income and to reduce 
expenditure, including replacing properties that are no longer fit for purpose 

Identify opportunities for asset sharing with other public sector organisations and 
between Council services 

Ensure that all properties occupied by Council services are managed within a robust 
health & safety regime. 

Seek to improve the suitability of its property portfolio in terms of carbon emissions and 
energy consumption. 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

Undertake continual reviews of the portfolio to identify opportunities for the rationalisation 
of assets. Reviews will be managed jointly by Property and Service teams, and will 
include consideration of different ways of delivering services. 

Work with its public sector partners to identify opportunities for delivering efficiencies 
from the public estate. 

Take account of the opportunity for community asset transfer where this can offer benefit 
and retain services that may otherwise need to close. 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

Compile and continually update information on each asset designed to demonstrate 
comparative asset performance and identify opportunities for asset rationalisation and an 
appropriate business case for all retained assets. Asset data might include: condition, 
suitability, running costs, developability/marketability, capital value, utilisation. 

24 Page 52

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCM7cy7uri8kCFYNcFAod2dkKxw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fhistoricengland.org.uk%2Fresearch%2Fresearch-results%2Factivities%2F4a4%2F&psig=AFQjCNHYOvdtbxEUdkXHJ5r4kcXd8_p_1g&ust=1447433278492730


Risk Management Properties are not always fit for purpose in terms of location, 
design, capacity and condition, making services less efficient and 
effective. Maintenance backlog as at 31 January 2016 calculated 
at £7.1m. Insufficient funds available for appropriate 
improvements. 

Low 
Impact 

High 
L‘hood 

 Failure to fulfil statutory obligations of property ownership – 
exposure of others to risk; prosecution 

High 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Risk of significant property failures and expensive reactive repairs. High 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Leased-in properties have particularly onerous maintenance 
liabilities that need to be maintained continually in order to avoid a 
substantial dilapidations bill at the end of the lease. 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Failure to document terms of occupation with third parties results 
in missed responsibilities and/or unlimited liabilities. Uncertainty/ 
disagreement over statutory and maintenance responsibilities 
resulting in possible duplication or omissions 

Medium 
Impact 

Low 
L’hood 

 Properties may be insufficiently flexible to keep up with changing 
service needs 

Low 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

Policies and 
Procedures 

The procedure for Property Review is attached to this Strategy as Appendix D. 

An Accommodation Protocol, an Asset Management Group Budget Procedure and 
Corporate Landlord Protocols have been prepared and are attached to this Strategy 
as Appendices E, D and F. 

Action Plan 3.1 Invest in Council buildings, within available resources, by 
way of reactive and planned maintenance in order to 
improve their condition and  fitness for purpose  

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Senior Property 
Manager (Projects) 

  

  Success Measure: Reduction in backlog maintenance 
liabilities 

Success Measure: Efficient expenditure of the Corporate 
Landlord and Asset Management Group budgets 
demonstrated by budgets spent up to within +5% at 
financial year end. 

Success Measure: Improvements in the suitability 
assessments of buildings 

 3.2 Directors to report to SAM annually on actual and proposed 
developments to their service that will impact on the use of 
assets. 

Directors 

  Success Measure: Annual reports completed and 
opportunities and imperatives for improving or rationalising 
the portfolio are identified 

 

 3.2 Continually challenge the Council’s reasons for holding 
assets, by maintaining and presenting quarterly to 
Operational Asset Management Group performance data in 
respect of all assets. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Directors 

  Success Measure: Additional assets continually identified 
as surplus to the Council’s requirements.  

Success Measure: Corporate targets for asset 
rationalisation achieved.  

Success Measure: Reduced number of operational assets 
and property-related expenditure.  

25 Page 53



Success Measure: Clear business case in place for the 
continued retention of assets. 

Success Measure: Reduction in the number of the 
Council’s investment assets occupied by Council services 

Success Measure: Reduction in the number and financial 
liabilities of the Council’s leased-in assets 

 3.3 Review all agreements of occupation for assets shared 
with public sector partners 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets   Success Measure: Valid agreements of occupation in place 

for all assets shared with public sector partners. 

 3.4 Maintain links with partners at Estate Manager level – a 
function currently performed by the Strategic Estates 
Group, chaired by the Clinical Commissioning Group of the 
health service 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Joint initiatives are implemented that 
contribute to the efficiency of service delivery and/or the 
reduction in asset numbers and costs. 

Success Measure: The completion of the mapping of all 
public sector assets. 

Success Measure: The Council’s commitment to the 
Strategic Estates and Locality Plans developed by the 
Rochdale Strategic Estates Group are delivering positive 
benefits for asset management and service delivery 

 3.5 Undertake an internal audit of the Council’s statutory 
compliance regime in 2016/17 to ensure that all the 
Council’s obligations are being effectively managed and 
risks mitigated.  

Director of 
Resources 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Senior Property 
Manager 
(Technical) 

  Success Measure: All recommendations from the audit 
have been actioned or have been programmed for action in 
an appropriate timescale. 

 

26 Page 54



WORKSTREAM 4: ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

Scope: Assets that have been formally approved for disposal, and where disposal is being 
actively marketed or negotiated. 

 

Lead Director of Economy 

Support Director of Resources 

Aims 

 

To secure capital receipts, revenue savings and/or other community benefits from the 
disposal of Council land and property 

To generate resources to be reinvested 

To create a portfolio that is affordable and fit for purpose by removing expensive, sub-
standard and under-utilised assets 

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Delegate responsibility to the Operational Asset Management Group to monitor and to 
ensure the effective progress of the disposals programme. 

Clarify the mutual roles of Property Services and the occupying/vacating service 

Implementation of the findings and recommendations of the internal audit of the 
disposals process is underway. 

Work with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) to introduce an 
appropriate standardised marketing process to improve developer access to sites. 

To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Ensure that the disposal process is not unnecessarily delayed or prevented. We will 
invest in repairs to surplus assets where health and safety and/or property value need to 
be safeguarded. 

Protect the value of the assets and prevent anti-social behaviour by the use of a range of 
effective security measures and an appropriate standard of maintenance. 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

Dispose of each asset in the most appropriate way to achieve the objectives of the 
disposal and at the best possible speed. The Council will consider the objectives of 
capital receipts, regeneration, economic growth, support to the voluntary sector and 
other partners 

Consider ways in which to add value to each asset prior to sale. 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

Aid financial planning and the monitoring of the capital disposal programme by 
understanding the nature, the constituent parts and the likely financial and timescale 
outcomes of the assets in the disposals pipeline 

Maintain effective records of its assets under review, its disposal pipeline, and the 
progress of the disposal process to completion 

27 Page 55



Risk Management Poor market conditions continue to affect the ability to dispose of 
assets or to realise optimum value.  

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Unnecessary delays in disposal cases caused by Services and 
other third parties applying for and preparing a case for their use 
of surplus buildings. 

Low 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Disposals at less than market value require an assessment of the 
value of the alternative community benefit the disposal is 
designed to deliver. 

Low 
Impact 

Low 
L’hood 

Policies and 
Procedures 

A Disposals Procedure has been prepared and is included in this document as 
Appendix C for formal adoption by the Council. The procedure covers, amongst other 
things, the responsibilities for maintenance and security, dealing with internal Council 
interest, governance,  

Action Plan 

 

 

4.1 In each of the three financial 
years 2016/19 to avoid budget 
pressures by meeting or 
exceeding any Council target 
for capital receipts from the 
disposal of land and property 
assets 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Where capital receipts targets are set by 
the Director of Resources, to meet or to exceed that target.  

 4.2 Implement the recommendations arising from the Internal 
Audit report on disposals. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Implementation of all recommendations 
by 30 June 2016 

 4.3 Continue to work with GMCA to implement, if appropriate, a 
standardised marketing process across the Greater 
Manchester authorities. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: A reasoned decision as to the 
appropriate way for the Council to proceed. 

 

 

 

 

28 Page 56



WORKSTREAM 5: ASSETS AND THE ENVIRONMENT 

Scope: Parks, open spaces, sports pitches 
and pavilions, allotments, 
landscaped areas, playgrounds, 
cemeteries and crematoria, burial 
grounds, vacant and disused land, 
car parks. 

Non-strategic income generating 
assets 

 

Lead Director of Neighbourhoods 

Support Director of Economy 

Director of Resources 

Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing 

Aims 

 

To improve the management and maintenance of the Council’s “green” assets in order to 
maintain an acceptable standard of cleanliness and enhance the borough’s environment 
and health and well-being.  

To maintain a portfolio of assets that is suitable in terms of size, quality and accessibility 
to provide formal and informal recreation opportunities for residents of the borough 

To increase the number of parks with Green Flag status, to increase the attractiveness, 
usage and community involvement in the borough’s green spaces. 

To encourage community-led development and use of green spaces 

To continually review the portfolio to identify opportunities for realising value through 
investment, alternative uses, income generation, development, disposal, community 
asset transfer. 

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Use the Operational Asset Management Group to monitor property management 
functions and to oversee property reviews. 

Engage with local communities through Community Organisations and Friends Groups 

To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Explore creative and innovative solutions to the 
ongoing management of these assets and develop 
detailed management plans for each asset or group 
of assets 

Identify opportunities to invest in the portfolio in order 
to improve the experience of occupiers and/or 
increase the portfolio value 

Reduce portfolio maintenance costs and liabilities 
and maximise opportunities to generate additional 
income. 

 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

Service occupiers and property team to jointly undertake continual reviews of the 
portfolio to identify opportunities for the rationalisation of assets. The Council will aim to 
dispose of assets that are not fulfilling service objectives or which are otherwise surplus 
to requirements, with a focus on the quality of surplus provision rather than quantity. 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

Inspect every asset and create a clear picture of their individual components and 
attributes. 

Complete the mapping of all the assets and to create a management record in Atrium 

29 Page 57



Risk Management Erosion of estate through encroachments Low 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Failure to maintain an appropriate balance between 
maintaining assets for service provision and releasing sites for 
alternative uses. 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Loss of valuable sites / habitats through poor management due 
to scarce resources 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

Policies and 
Procedures 

A Playing Pitch Strategy is being prepared for 
completion in 2016. 

 

Action Plan 5.1 Prepare a Playing Pitch 
Strategy for the borough 

Senior Property 
Manager 
(Projects)  

  Success Measure: Playing 
Pitch Strategy in place and 
making a positive 
contribution 

 5.2 Continue to progress the mapping of all the assets and 
the creation of an Atrium record for each. Completion 
March 2019. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: All assets mapped and recorded by 
March 2019 

 5.3 Implement the allotments management strategy 
approved by the Council’s Township Committees in 
September 2015 

Head of Environmental 
Management 

  Success Measure: The implementation of the changes 
required by the strategy 

 5.4 Bring disused allotments back into use Head of Environmental 
Management 

  Success Measure: Amount of land of former allotments 
brought back into use. 

 5.5 Transfer land, as appropriate, into community 
management, eg village greens, community gardens 

Head of Environmental 
Management 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Amount of land (hectares) brought 
into community management 

 5.6 Continually challenge the Council’s reasons for holding 
assets and reduce the number of assets: 

Head of Environmental 
Management 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

  Success Measure: Additional assets continually 
identified as surplus to the Council’s requirements.  

Success Measure: Reduced area of land under direct 
management and maintenance.  

 

 

30 Page 58



WORKSTREAM 6: ASSETS IN THE COMMUNITY 

Scope: Assets leased out to voluntary 
sector/charitable organisations 

 

Lead Director of Public Health and Wellbeing 

Support Director of Economy 

Aims To provide land and buildings to 
facilitate the voluntary sector’s work in 
delivering services to their local 
community and/or complementing the 
Council’s core objectives. 

 To encourage groups and communities to run their own services and facilities 

Within the Council’s resources to provide ongoing property management support to its 
voluntary sector tenants  

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Determine the governance of the portfolio through Members, Leadership Team and 
Voluntary Sector Partnership. 

Seek to ensure that as far as possible its support for the voluntary sector is clear, 
transparent, consistent and equitable. 

Work in accordance with its obligations set out in the Rochdale Borough Compact, 
including supporting the voluntary sector through provision of Council land and 
buildings. The Compact will be reviewed as appropriate. 

To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Consider the benefits of and undertake appropriate transfer of Council assets to the 
community and voluntary sector. 

Ensure that there are valid agreements of occupation in place for all assets, and that 
the terms of the agreements are complied with. 

Seek to identify and implement the means by which the Council can increase its 
support to the voluntary sector to maintain the portfolio. 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

The Council has no plans to rationalise 
the portfolio. 

 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

Retain data on each letting appropriate to the Council’s role as Lessor. 

Risk Management 

 

Tenants’ failure to maintain statutory obligations of property 
management and maintenance could result in harm to building 
users and members of the public, with the Council being held 
accountable as lessor and being exposed to unplanned financial 
outlay and risk. 

High 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Valid agreements of occupation are not in place for all assets, 
and that the terms of the agreements are not followed. Lack of 
clarity on roles and responsibilities of property maintenance 
puts properties and the public at risk. 

High 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Financial support may be given to organisations whose aims do 
not accord with those of the Council 

Low 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Providing financial and support in kind to the voluntary sector 
without a clear understanding of benefits in kind provided by the 
organisation breaches statutory requirements. 

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

31 Page 59



 Lack of recognised budget provision to maintain properties in 
accordance with the Council’s obligations. 

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

Policies and 
Procedures 

The need for formal policies and procedures may emerge over time, but there are 
currently no plans for their introduction. 

Action Plan 

 

6.1 Engagement between Council Members and Officers to 
develop an approach to the management of these assets 
that balances the Council’s commitment to support the 
voluntary sector, financial considerations, statutory 
obligations and sound property management practice. 

Director of Public 
Health and 
Wellbeing  

Director of 
Economy 

  Success Measure: An agreed approach to the management 
of these assets that can be applied to new and existing 
lettings. 

  Success Measure: Reduction in the levels of “likelihood” in 
the risk assessment 

 

 

32 Page 60



WORKSTREAM 7: ASSETS ADDING VALUE 

Scope: Assets leased out and held for income generation 

 

Lead Director of Economy 

Support  

Aims 

 

To increase income generation. 
To rationalise the portfolio to improve yields and 
financial return. 
To manage the portfolio to secure maintenance of 
an aesthetic environment and to protect asset’ 
values. 

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Explore options to increase scrutiny of the portfolio in order to maintain and improve 
performance and long term sustainability. 

Review the overall management arrangements of the portfolio to allow best focus on 
achieving its objectives 

To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Consider alternative management models for the portfolio that will establish a proactive 
approach to its management as an investment. 

Maintain a portfolio that makes a contribution to financial objectives and environmental 
improvement. 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

Target cost reductions and the generation of Council receipts without compromising the 
investment value of the portfolio, focusing on level of financial return against costs 
through the disposal of those assets performing poorly in financial terms.  

• A programme of disposals has been agreed within the last 18 months – 
residential ground leases, garage sites, farms and shops. This disposal process 
will continue, but further disposals will depend upon a review of the portfolio’s 
strategic objectives and management arrangements. 

• Disposals will contribute to capital receipts and also improve the overall quality 
and yield of the portfolio. 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

To maintain a record of each asset and each lease on SwiftMap and Atrium 

Risk Management Continued erosion of the portfolio due to disposals may eventually 
leave a portfolio that needs to be managed, but which generates 
little income or other benefits, and which is not capable of 
disposal. 

Medium 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 Disposals from the portfolio may result in reduced capability to 
meet the portfolio’s income targets and create budget pressures. 

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 The market for certain kinds of assets is declining, which may 
result in reduced rental income. 

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

Policies and 
Procedures 

 

 

33 Page 61



 
Action Plan 

 

7.1 Complete the approved disposal 
programme for shops, farms and 
garage sites 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

  Success Measure: All approved 
assets in these categories have 
been exposed to the market by 31 
December 2017 

 7.2 Progress disposal programme for residential ground leases Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets   Success Measure: The first tranche of assets, those 

approved for disposal, exposed to the market by 31 
December 2016 (subject to a review of the portfolio’s 
strategic objectives and management arrangements). 

 7.3 Keep the portfolio under review in order to benefit from all 
opportunities for rental increases. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets   Success Measure: Achievement of the annual rental 

income target from the portfolio. 

Success Measure: Increase in the net rental income and/or 
yield from each category of asset in the portfolio 

 7.4 Undertake a verification exercise to ensure correct 
categorisation of Miscellaneous Assets and residential 
ground leases. 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

  Success Measure: Verification exercise complete and 
information able to be used to establish baseline portfolio 
information 

 

 7.5 Identify opportunities for reinvesting capital receipts to 
provide the Council with funding to improve its property 
portfolio or to invest into regeneration. 

Director of 
Economy 

  Success Measure: Discernible and measurable outcomes 
achieved from the funds that are reinvested.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

34 Page 62



WORKSTREAM 8: ASSETS FOR EDUCATION 

Scope: All school premises where the Council owns an interest in the buildings or ancillary land 
and/or exercises a statutory responsibility for the provision of school places. 

 

 

Lead Director of Children’s Services 

Support Director of Neighbourhoods 

Aims To contribute to delivering quality local schools 

To plan for the provision of school places to meet the demand from local communities in 
compliance with its statutory duty and provide the high quality  leaning environments 

To Govern the 
Workstream the 
Council will: 

Keep under review each year the demand and supply of school places, and in 
collaboration with schools prepare proposals to meet the identified needs prior to 
reporting to Cabinet  

Respond appropriately to the requirements of central government policy which aims to 
transfer all schools to academy status 

To Build a 
Sustainable Portfolio 
the Council will: 

Maintain premises fit for purpose by commissioning accurate and up to date information 
on the condition of schools and of investment requirements. 

Provide guidance to schools and to monitor effectively schools compliance with statutory 
maintenance obligations 

Where appropriate, seek funding for investment in repair and maintenance, 
refurbishment, extensions and new build. 

Seek to identify sites for new schools where and when appropriate or to expand current 
school sites as appropriate. 

To Rationalise its 
Assets the Council 
will: 

Work with school governors to identify and use, where appropriate, surplus space in 
school buildings. 

[Based on current projections the Council does not anticipate any school sites becoming 
surplus to its requirements before 2019] 

To Maintain Effective 
Property Data the 
Council will: 

Undertake annual Net Capacity Assessments (NCA) of schools in order to match school 
physical capacity with demand for places 

Analyse available demographic information and admissions data to identify the future 
trends for demand for school places 

Maintain up to date condition surveys on all maintained schools 

35 Page 63

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&source=imgres&cd=&ved=0CAkQjRwwAGoVChMIkJmv2p2LyQIVxFAUCh1xnAzd&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.rochdaleonline.co.uk%2Fnews-features%2F49%2Fschool-news-articles%2F83167%2Fmatthew-moss-high-school-requires-improvement-after-latest-ofsted-inspection&psig=AFQjCNEXXPFucPrG2EZQayYJi8TLKw1Kgg&ust=1447429633536428


Risk Management The Council fails in its statutory duty to provide sufficient school 
spaces to satisfy the need 

High 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

 The Council struggles with the resources for wholesale transfer of 
schools to academy status 

Medium 
Impact 

High 
L’hood 

 Split maintenance responsibilities between Council and schools 
reduce clarity of defined responsibilities and liabilities. Risk of 
failure to ensure that all stakeholders comply with statutory 
premises maintenance obligations 

High 
Impact 

Medium 
L’hood 

Policies and 
Procedures 

Public consultation on need for extra school places 

Consultation with schools and dioceses on condition surveys and maintenance priorities 

Action Plan 8.1 Compete the annual net capacity assessments Senior Property Manager 
(Projects) 

  Success Measure: Accurate completion of all NCAs 
in accordance with national guidelines and the 
timescale set by the Director of Childrens Services 

 8.2 Manage the process of transferring schools to 
academy status, whilst protecting the Council’s 
interests as landowner and as occupier of a number 
of schools buildings, eg libraries, childrens’ centres 

School Planning and 
Organisation Manager 

  Success Measure: Council and students’ interests 
have been satisfactorily protected through the 
transfer process 

 8.3 Commission and complete an annual programme of 
condition surveys 

School Planning and 
Organisation Manager 

Senior Property Manager 
(Projects)   Success Measure: Programme of condition surveys 

completed on time 

 8.4 Target available capital resources at those schools in 
greatest need. 

School Planning and 
Organisation Manager 

  Success Measure: No schools should close due to 
health and safety reasons or poor building condition 

 8.5 Plan and implement an effective annual programme 
to undertake maintenance responsibilities and to 
ensure that schools comply with their statutory 
obligations 

School Planning and 
Organisation Manager 

  Success Measure: Schools premises remain incident 
and injury free due to property failure. 

 8.6 Identify, as required, the means of providing 
additional school capacity, including capital 
investment, land appropriation, site acquisition and 
new build. 

School Planning and 
Organisation Manager 

Senior Property Manager 
(Projects) 

Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets 

  Success Measure: School capacity meets demand. 

 

 

36 Page 64



PART D:  MONTORING COMPLIANCE AND EFFECTIVENESS 

11. Consolidated Action Plan 
11.1 The following actions are derived from the analysis of each workstream. The success of the Asset Strategy across its lifetime will depend upon the Council 

progress in completing these actions. Along with the suite of Key Performance Indicators (Section 11), they will form the basis by which the Asset Strategy will 
be reviewed and reported to Senior Managers and Council Members. 

11.2 The following criteria have been used to prioritise each action: 

Priority Criteria 
1 Statutory, mandatory and/or health & safety critical 
2 Contractual obligation 
3 Supports growth and prosperity,  
4 Saves costs, raises income 
5 Delivers a more effective asset portfolio  

  

No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

Portfolio Scrutiny  

Governance 

A Ensure effective communication between 
Property teams and Council Services and to 
maintain a corporate overview of progress of the 
Asset Strategy objectives and achievements by 
presenting to the Council’s Corporate Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee and to Directorate SMTs on 
an annual basis 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

30 April 2017 
30 April 2018 
31 March 2019 

Presentations completed n/a 

B Ensure the correct balance of efficiency with 
transparency by reviewing the Scheme of 
Delegation for land and property 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 
Head of Legal & 
Governance Reform 

31 September 
2016 

Improvements implemented or, if no 
changes, outcome of the review minuted at 
Strategic Asset Management Group 

n/a 

C Ensure best practice in the management of its 
assets by revisiting the Internal Audit of Asset 
Management to consider the implementation of 
recommendations not yet actioned  

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 December 
2016 

Recommendations implemented or, if no 
changes, outcome of the review minuted at 
Strategic Asset Management Group 

n/a 

D Ensure best practice in the management of its 
assets by reviewing the structure, roles and 

5 Director of Economy 31 October 2016 To minute the outcome of an annual 
review at Strategic Asset Management 

n/a 

37 

P
age 65



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

responsibilities of its property teams and forums 
and the various sources of funding available for 
property management and investment. 

 Group and to implement authorised 
changes. 

Building a Sustainable Portfolio 

E Identify priorities for investment and to inform 
property performance by maintaining a five year 
rolling programme of condition surveys for all 
building assets 

4 Senior Property 
Manager (Technical & 
Building Surveying) 

Continual A condition survey exists for each building 
asset, which is no more than five years old. 

12.6 

F Inform building performance by maintaining a 
three yearly programme of suitability surveys for 
all building assets 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

30 September 
2017 

A suitability survey exists for each building 
asset, which is no more than three years 
old. 

12.10 

G Inform building performance by maintaining 
effective and accurate records on the utilisation of 
each Council building 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 
Heads of Service 

Continual Up to date and accurate utilisation data 
exists for each asset 

12.7 
12.8 

H Safeguard the safety of its staff, customers and 
other building users by maintaining full statutory 
compliance in respect of the Council’s 
responsibilities for property maintenance 

1 Senior Property 
Manager (Technical)  
Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual No health and safety incidents occur where 
the Council’s failure to maintain a 
satisfactory compliance regime is a 
contributory factor 

n/a 

I Build a sustainable portfolio to support Services’ 
property needs, to improve Place and to bring 
forward growth projects by supporting the 
acquisition of property assets by agreement and 
compulsory purchase as appropriate. 

3 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 
Operations Director 
RDA 
Heads of Service 

Continual Acquisitions completed, with business 
case and anticipated outcomes recorded. 

n/a 

Asset Rationalisation 

J Maintain a prioritised schedule of building 
performance and to continually align this with 
Service objectives in order to challenge asset 
retention 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 
Heads of Service 

Continual Annual consideration by Leadership Team 
and by Members as required. 

n/a 

K Ensure that ICT and HR functions are fully 
engaged in and contributing to the Asset Strategy 
objectives 

5 Director of Economy 
Head of ICT 
Head of Human 

Continual ICT innovation and new ways of working 
have contributed to the more effective use 
of assets. 

n/a 

38 

P
age 66



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

Resources 

Effective Property Data 

L Complete the requirements of the Corporate 
Property Information Strategy by mapping each 
asset and creating a written record on Atrium 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 March 2019 All assets are mapped, with a 
complementary written record. 

n/a 

M Complete the implementation of the 
recommendations from the Internal Audit of 
Atrium 

1 Director of Economy 30 September 
2016 

Recommendations implemented or, if no 
actions, outcome of the review minuted at 
Strategic Asset Management Group 

n/a 

N Keep the core property information systems up to 
date and accurate 

1 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Key Performance Indicators to measure 
the efficiency by which the Council records 
changes to the property portfolio 

12.17 
12.18 

O Measure the impact of this strategy and the 
success of asset management activity by 
monitoring the changes in the portfolio and the 
portfolio’s contribution to wider Council objectives. 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Positive changes to the baseline portfolio 
as at 01 April 2016 

n/a 

Progress against actions and Key 
Performance Indicators as set out in 
Sections 10 & 11. 

n/a 

P Respond to statutory and agreed requirements 
from central government, Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority or other statutory body for 
property information uploads for the Transparency 
Agenda, e-PIMS or similar initiative. 

1 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Successful response to all requests for 
data. 

n/a 

Workstream 1: Acquisitions, Investments and New Developments 

1.1 Consider the need for and, if appropriate, produce 
and obtain formal Council approval for a formal 
Asset Investment Strategy 

3 Director of Economy 31 March 2017 Asset Investment Strategy in production or 
adopted by the Council 

n/a 

1.2 Complement the Asset Investment Strategy by 
producing and reviewing annually a schedule of 
sites and projects for acquisition and investment, 
understanding the options for funding and the 
intended outcomes. 

3 Director of Economy Continual Prioritised schedule of acquisitions n/a 

1.3 Produce detailed business cases for high priority 
acquisition/investment projects 

3 All Directors Continual Number and value of successful business 
cases. 
Number and value of successful bids for 

n/a 

39 

P
age 67



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

capital programme monies 

1.4 Examine the options available to the Council for 
investing to develop further industrial units to let 

3 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 December 
2016 

Business case produced by 31 December 
2016 

n/a 

Workstream 2: Assets for Growth and Prosperity  

2.1 Bring forward a pipeline of sites in the borough, 
privately owned and Council owned, that can be 
used to support regeneration and growth 
objectives. 

3 Head of Planning Continual Hectares of new development land 
formally identified and approved through 
the planning process 

n/a 

2.2 Effectively manage the programme for the future 
use of each asset for regeneration purposes (for 
both housing and employment sites), setting clear 
timescales and outcomes for each site, subject to 
regular review to ensure that the objectives 
remain relevant and achievable; determining the 
best use of each site in the best interests of the 
Council. 

3 Operations Director 
RDA 
Head of Strategic 
Housing 
Head of Planning 

Continual Hectares of land sold that support 
designated regeneration projects. 

12.14 

Hectares of land sold where sites no 
longer contribute to a defined regeneration 
project 

12.14 

2.3 Participate in the growth strategy and objectives 
of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority  

3 Operations Director 
RDA 
Head of Strategic 
Housing 
Head of Planning 

Continual The Council has achieved its contribution 
to the GMCA’s targets 

n/a 

Allocation of New Homes Bonus and new 
Council tax for new housing schemes 

n/a 

2.4 Use the Council’s assets to contribute towards 
development targets for housing and employment 
uses. 

3 Director of Economy 
Head of Strategic 
Housing 
Head of Planning 

Continual The area (hectares) of Council land sold or 
self-developed for housing development. 

12.14 

The area (hectares) of land sold or self-
developed for employment uses. 

12.14 

2.5 Identify and release for general disposal and 
alternative operational uses sites that will 
realistically no longer support a regeneration 
scheme. 

4 Operations Director 
RDA 
Head of Strategic 
Housing 
Head of Planning 

Continual 
 

Number of sites released and capital 
receipts generated 

12.13 
12.15 

40 

P
age 68



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

2.6 Seek interim revenue generating uses on sites 
where regeneration schemes have been 
temporarily postponed. 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Annual increase in revenue income from 
the in-scope assets 

n/a 

2.7 Support the development of the Town Centres 
and other regeneration initiatives through the use 
of Council assets 

3 Operations Director 
RDA 

Continual Hectares of Council land invested into a 
town centre scheme. 

n/a 

2.8 To use Council assets and private investment to 
deliver the development of Town Centre East 

3 Operations Director 
RDA 

31 March 2019 Grant of planning consent by 31 December 
2016 

n/a 

Commencement of work on site by 30 
June 2017 

n/a 

Completion of development by 31 March 
2019 

n/a 

2.9 Prepare a Heritage Asset Management Plan. 5 Head of Planning 30 June 2017 A plan is in place by 31 March 2017 that 
facilitates the effective and proactive 
management of the Council’s heritage 
assets 

n/a 

2.10 Implement a long-term strategy for the 
sustainability and viability of Rochdale Town Hall 

3 Operations Director 
RDA 

Continual Positive progress with the Council’s bids 
for securing funding and in preparing 
sustainable plans for the building 

n/a 

2.11 Provide small units for small and starter business 
growth and expansion. 

3 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Number of tenants vacating industrial 
estates and managed workspace for the 
purpose of business expansion. 

12.5 

2.12 Effectively undertake the day to day management 
of Telegraph House and Brook House, and to 
oversee the vacation of Telegraph House and its 
integration into the Rochdale town centre 
development. 

2 Operations Director 
RDA 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 March 2017 Telegraph House vacated and demolished. 
No health and safety incidents 

n/a 

Continual Brook House corporate budget completes 
each year in surplus 

n/a 

2.13 Increase income and continue to exceed budget 
targets in respect of industrial units and managed 
workspace. 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Deliver a year-end budget surplus from 
managed workspace. 

n/a 

Increase rental income from the managed 
workspace, industrial estates and 
commercial ground leases. 

n/a 

Maintain industrial estates occupancy rates 12.2 

41 

P
age 69



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

in excess of 95% 

Achieve an occupancy rate for the 
managed workspace in excess of 70%. 

12.3 

Reduce Council occupancy of investment 
assets 

12.4 

2.14 Review the strategic objectives and the 
management arrangements for the investment 
portfolio and present options and 
recommendations to Strategic Asset Management 
Group 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 October 2016 Report to Strategic Asset Management 
Group by 31 October 2016, and action 
plan identified, if appropriate 

n/a 

2.15 Undertake a verification exercise to ensure 
correct categorisation of commercial ground 
leases. 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 October 2016 Verification exercise complete and 
information able to be used to establish 
baseline portfolio information 

n/a 

2.16 Provide a permanent site for Rochdale Market 3 Operations Director 
RDA 

30 June 2017 Market relocated to a permanent site. n/a 

Workstream 3: Assets Supporting Council Services  

3.1 Invest in Council buildings, within available 
resources, by way of reactive and planned 
maintenance in order to improve their condition 
and  fitness for purpose  

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 
Senior Property 
Manager (Projects) 
 

Continual Reduction in backlog maintenance 
liabilities 

12.6 

Continual Efficient expenditure of the Corporate 
Landlord and Asset Management Group 
budgets demonstrated by budgets spent 
up to within +5% at financial year end. 

12.1 

Continual Improvements in the suitability 
assessments of buildings 

12.10 

3.2 Directors to report to SAM annually on actual and 
proposed developments to their service that will 
impact on the use of assets. 

4 Directors  Annual reports completed and 
opportunities and imperatives for improving 
or rationalising the portfolio are identified 

n/a 

3.3 Continually challenge the Council’s reasons for 
holding assets, by maintaining and presenting 
quarterly to Operational Asset Management 
Group performance data in respect of all assets. 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 
Directors 

Continual Additional assets continually identified as 
surplus to the Council’s requirements.  

12.11 

Corporate targets for asset rationalisation 
achieved.  

n/a 

42 

P
age 70



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

Reduced number of operational assets and 
property-related expenditure.  

12.9 

Clear business case in place for the 
continued retention of assets. 

n/a 

Reduction in the number of the Council’s 
investment assets occupied by Council 
services 

12.4 

Reduction in the number and financial 
liabilities of the Council’s leased-in assets 

12.12 

3.4 Review all agreements of occupation for assets 
shared with public sector partners 

1 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 December 
2016 

Valid agreements of occupation in place 
for all assets shared with public sector 
partners. 

n/a 

3.5 Maintain links with partners at Estate Manager 
level – a function currently performed by the 
Strategic Estates Group, chaired by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group of the health service 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Joint initiatives are implemented that 
contribute to the efficiency of service 
delivery and/or the reduction in asset 
numbers and costs. 

n/a 

The completion of the mapping of all public 
sector assets by 31 December 2016 

n/a 

The Council’s commitment to the Strategic 
Estates and Locality Plans developed by 
the Rochdale Strategic Estates Group are 
delivering positive benefits for asset 
management and service delivery 

n/a 

3.6 Undertake an internal audit of the Council’s 
statutory compliance regime in 2016/17 to ensure 
that all the Council’s obligations are being 
effectively managed and risks mitigated.  

1 Director of Resources 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 
Senior Property 
Manager (Technical) 

31 December 
2017 

All recommendations from the audit have 
been actioned or have been programmed 
for action in an appropriate timescale. 

n/a 

Workstream 4: Assets Held for Sale  

4.1 In each of the three financial years 2016/19 to 
avoid budget pressures by meeting or exceeding 
any Council target for capital receipts from the 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Where capital receipts targets are set by 
the Director of Resources, to meet or to 
exceed that target. 

n/a 

43 

P
age 71



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

disposal of land and property assets 

4.2 Implement the recommendations arising from the 
Internal Audit report on disposals. 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

30 September 
2016 

Implementation of all recommendations by 
30 June 2016 

n/a 

4.3 Continue to work with GMCA to implement, if 
appropriate, a standardised marketing process 
across the Greater Manchester authorities. 

3 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 March 2017 A reasoned decision as to the appropriate 
way for the Council to proceed. 

n/a 

Workstream 5: Assets and the Environment  

5.1 Prepare a Playing Pitch Strategy for the borough 4 Senior Property 
Manager (Projects)  

31 December 
2016 

Playing Pitch Strategy in place and making 
a positive contribution 

n/a 

5.2 Continue to progress the mapping of all the 
assets and the creation of an Atrium record for 
each. Completion March 2019. 

1 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 March 2019 All assets mapped and recorded by March 
2019 

n/a 

5.3 Implement the allotments management strategy 
approved by the Council’s Township Committees 
in September 2015 

4 Head of 
Environmental 
Management 

31 December 
2017 

The implementation of the changes 
required by the strategy 

n/a 

5.4 Bring disused allotments back into use 4 Head of 
Environmental 
Management 

31 March 2019 Amount of land of former allotments 
brought back into use. 

n/a 

5.5 Transfer land, as appropriate, into community 
management, eg village greens, community 
gardens 

4 Head of 
Environmental 
Management 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Amount of land (hectares) brought into 
community management 

n/a 

5.6 Continually challenge the Council’s reasons for 
holding assets and reduce the number of assets: 

4 Head of 
Environmental 
Management 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Additional assets continually identified as 
surplus to the Council’s requirements.  

12.11 

Continual Reduced area of land under direct 
management and maintenance. 

n/a 

44 

P
age 72



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

Workstream 6: Assets in the Community  

6.1 Engagement between Council Members and 
Officers to clarify an approach to the management 
of these assets that balances the Council’s 
commitment to support the voluntary sector, 
financial considerations, statutory obligations and 
sound property management practice. 

1 Director of Public 
Health and Wellbeing  
Director of Economy 

31 March 2017 An agreed approach to the management of 
these assets that can be applied to new 
and existing lettings. 

n/a 

31 March 2017 Reduction in the levels of “likelihood” in the 
risk assessment 

n/a 

Workstream 7: Assets Adding Value  

7.1 Complete the approved disposal programme for 
shops, farms and garage sites 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 March 2017 All approved assets in these categories 
have been exposed to the market by 31 
December 2017 

12.16 

7.2 Progress disposal programme for residential 
ground leases 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 December 
2016 

The first tranche of assets, those approved 
for disposal, exposed to the market by 31 
December 2016 (subject to a review of the 
portfolio’s strategic objectives and 
management arrangements). 

n/a 

7.3 Keep the portfolio under review in order to benefit 
from all opportunities for rental increases. 

4 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual Achievement of the annual rental income 
target from the portfolio. 

n/a 

Continual Increase in the net rental income and/or 
yield from each category of asset in the 
portfolio 

n/a 

7.4 Undertake a verification exercise to ensure 
correct categorisation of miscellaneous assets 
and residential ground leases. 

5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

31 ADecember 
2016 

Verification exercise complete and 
information able to be used to establish 
baseline portfolio information 

n/a 

7.5 Identify opportunities for reinvesting capital 
receipts to provide the Council with funding to 
improve its property portfolio or to invest into 
regeneration. 

3 Director of Economy Continual Discernible and measurable outcomes 
achieved from the funds that are 
reinvested. 

n/a 

Workstream 8: Assets for Education 

8.1 Compete the annual net capacity assessments 1 Senior Property 
Manager (Projects) 

Annual Accurate completion of all NCAs in 
accordance with national guidelines and 

n/a 

45 

P
age 73



No. Action Priority Responsibility Target 
Completion 

Success Measure Key 
Performance 
Indicator Ref 
No 

the timescale set by the Director of 
Childrens Services 

8.2 Manage the process of transferring schools to 
academy status 

1 School Planning and 
Organisation 
Manager 

Continual Council and students’ interests have been 
satisfactorily protected through the transfer 
process 

n/a 

8.3 Commission and complete an annual programme 
of condition surveys 

5 School Planning and 
Organisation 
Manager 
Senior Property 
Manager (Projects) 

Annual Programme of condition surveys 
completed on time 

n/a 

8.4 Target available capital resources at those 
schools in greatest need. 

5 School Planning and 
Organisation 
Manager 

Continual No schools should close due to health and 
safety reasons or poor building condition 

n/a 

8.5 Plan and implement an effective annual 
programme to undertake maintenance 
responsibilities and to ensure that schools comply 
with their statutory obligations 

5 School Planning and 
Organisation 
Manager 

Continual Schools premises remain incident and 
injury free due to property failure 

n/a 

8.6 Identify, as required, the means of providing 
additional school capacity, including capital 
investment, land appropriation, site acquisition 
and new build. 

5 School Planning and 
Organisation 
Manager 
Senior Property 
Manager (Projects) 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates & 
Assets 

Continual School capacity meets demand. n/a 

 

 

46 

P
age 74



12. Property Performance Indicators 2016/2019 
12.1 The Council recognises the importance of measuring its performance as the means by which it can improve its asset management practices and delivery, and 

advertise its successes. Where possible we will look to benchmark our performance with other local authorities and public bodies. The following PPIs are 
proposed, which will contribute to assessing the success measures set out in Sections 9 and 10.  

Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Supporting 
Action 
No(s): 

Data Owner 

 Building a Sustainable Portfolio     

12.1 Bring in the Corporate Landlord Budget at financial year 
end within +/- £10,000 

Annual budget 
outturn limited to +/- 
£10,000  

To indicate the effectiveness of the 
management of the corporate landlord 
budget 

3.1 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.2 Industrial Portfolio – occupation levels at >95% when 
considered annually on 31 March by: 

• Percentage of Units 
• Percentage of Floor Areas 

Result in excess of 
95% annually on 31 
March 

To indicate the effectiveness of the 
Council’s estate management and the 
fitness for purpose of the industrial 
estate. 

 

2.13 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

     

12.3 Managed Workspace – Occupancy levels at >70% when 
considered annually on 31 March by: 

• Percentage of Units 
• Percentage of Floor Areas 

Result in excess of 
70% annually on 31 
March 

To indicate the effectiveness of the 
Council’s estate management and the 
fitness for purpose of the managed 
workspace. 

2.13 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.4 Reduction in the number of investment assets occupied by 
RBC or the voluntary sector. 

Percentage fewer 
assets so occupied 
annually on 31 
March 

To make more units available for small 
businesses and to increase rents payable 
from third parties 

3.3 
2.13 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.5 Industrial Units/Managed Workspace – number of tenants 
vacating for the purpose of business expansion. 

Number during 
each financial year 

To demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
properties in supporting small business 
growth. 

2.11 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 
 
 

47 

P
age 75



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Supporting 
Action 
No(s): 

Data Owner 

12.6 Reduction in backlog maintenance Priority 1 works. Percentage 
improvement over 
the previous 
financial year, 
measured annually 
on 31 March 

To demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
Council’s capital investment and routine 
maintenance activities. 

E 
3.1 
7.1 

Head of Property 
& Highways 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.7 Number One Riverside – number of staff in occupation as 
a percentage of the original design targets 

Percentage 
improvement over 
the previous 
financial year, 
measured annually 
on 31 March 

To measure the utilisation efficiency of 
the building. 
To consider opportunities for the 
rationalisation of other buildings 

G Senior Property 
Manager 
(Technical) 
Head of Finance 

 

 

 

12.8 Occupation rates/m2 for main office accommodation 
(Number One Riverside, Brook House, Green Lane Depot) 

Percentage 
improvement over 
the previous 
financial year, 
measured annually 
on 31 March 

To measure the utilisation efficiency of 
the main office buildings 
To consider opportunities for the 
rationalisation of other buildings 

G Senior Property 
Manager 
(Technical) 
Head of Finance 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.9 Annual running costs per person (Number One Riverside, 
Brook House, Green Lane Depot) 

Percentage 
variation over the 
previous financial 
year, measured 
annually on 31 
March 

To measure the financial efficiency of the 
main office buildings 

3.3 Senior Property 
Manager 
(Technical) 
Head of Finance 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

48 

P
age 76



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Supporting 
Action 
No(s): 

Data Owner 

12.10 Improvements in suitability assessments Percentage 
improvement in the 
average score 
compared with the 
previous suitability 
assessment. 

To measure the fitness for purpose of the 
asset for the delivery of the service 
accommodated 

F 
3.1 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

 Asset Rationalisation     

12.11 Number of assets Held for Sale on 31 March, as a 
percentage of assets held for sale 12 months previously. 
Target >90%. 

Achievement of 
target 

To measure the effectiveness of the 
Council’s property review processes in 
maintaining a pipeline of potential 
disposals. 

3.3 
5.6 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.12 For leased-in assets with less than 5 years unexpired 
and/or with contractual rent reviews and/or break clauses 
and/or subject to a sub-lease, percentage reduction of:  

• Number of Assets 
• Rental Liability 

Percentage 
reductions in 
number and rental 
liability measured 
annually on 31 
March 

To assess the reduction in property-
related costs and liabilities 

3.3 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.13 Disposals – total number of completed sales of assets with 
a market value in excess of £10,000 

Percentage 
increase over 
previous financial 
year 

To demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals programme. 

2.5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.14 Hectares of land sold for a) defined regeneration 
purposes, b) general disposal c) housing development d) 
employment uses 

Percentage 
increase over 
previous financial 
year 

To demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals programme. 

2.2 
2.4 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.15 Disposals – total capital receipts from completed sales of 
assets with a market value in excess of £10,000 

Percentage 
increase over 
previous financial 
year 

To demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals programme. 

2.5 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

12.16 Disposals – percentage of shops/farms/garage sites 
approved for sale exposed to the market. Target 100% 

Achievement of 
target 

To demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
Council’s disposals programme. 

7.1 Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

 Data Requirements     

12.17 Average length of time taken by the organisation to update 
the Terrier system and associated textual databases 
following receipt of the completion statement 

Average number of 
days, with 
percentage 
improvement over 
previous financial 

To assess how efficient the Council is at 
maintaining the property information 
systems up to date. 

N Head of Legal 
Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

49 

P
age 77



Number Measure Outcome Sought Purpose Supporting 
Action 
No(s): 

Data Owner 

year 

12.18 Average length of time (days) taken by the Estates Team 
to update the Terrier system and associated textual 
databases following receipt of the completion statement. 
Target <5 days 

Average number of 
days, with 
percentage 
improvement over 
previous financial 
year 

To assess how efficient the estates & 
assets Service is at maintaining the 
property information systems up to date. 

N Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets 

 

50 

P
age 78



PART E:  STRATEGY GOVERNANCE 
 

13. Responsibilities 

Responsible Director of Economy 

Accountable Director of Economy 

Ownership Strategic Asset Management Group 

Consulted (prior to formal approval) 

Cabinet 

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Portfolio Holder for Housing & Environment 

All Directors and Heads of Service 

Operations Director Rochdale Development Agency 

Council officers responsible for actions set out in the Strategy 

Property Services and Estates & Assets team members 

Informed (following formal 
approval) 

Directorate Senior Management Teams 

Township Committees 

Staff briefings for Property Services and Estates & Assets teams 

 

14. Strategy Review Date 
14.1 Progress against the Strategy will be presented to the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee on an 

annual basis. 

14.2 Strategic Asset Management Group will review the effectiveness and relevance of the contents of the 
Strategy on an annual basis. 

 

51 Page 79



APPENDICES 
 

 

52 Page 80



Appendix A: Organisational Governance Structure for Asset Management 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

53 Page 81



Appendix B: Property Performance Indicators 2013/16 

Performance Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Rochdale 
Council 

Benchmark 
with NW 
Councils 

Rochdale 
Council 

Rochdale 
Council 

Further Information 

Bring in the Corporate Landlord Budget at financial year end 
within +/- £10,000 

£2,915 n/a (£4,120) £10,006  

For leased-in assets with less 
than 5 years unexpired and/or 
with contractual rent reviews 
and/or break clauses and/or 
subject to a sub-lease, 
percentage reduction of: 

a) Number of Assets 17.6% n/a 42.9% O% The Council has taken a new lease of part of 
Nye Bevan House for Public Health 
Services. 

Dilapidations liability on vacated buildings 
has reduced to £0 for the first time in several 
years. 

b) Rental Liability 37.3% n/a 31.9% (9.2%) 

Industrial Portfolio – 
occupation levels at >95% 
when considered annually on 
31 March by: 

a) Percentage of units 100% 90.6% 100% 100% The industrial units support 64 separate 
businesses, plus providing storage 
accommodation for Two RBC services. b) Percentage of floor 

area 
100% 93.8% 100% 100% 

Retail Units – occupation 
levels at >50% when 
considered annually on 31 
March by: 

a) Percentage of units 100% 82.7% 33% 100% Two units either sold or declared surplus to 
requirements 

b) Percentage of floor 
area 

100% 90.4% 68% 100% 

Managed Workspace – 
Occupancy levels at >70% 
when considered annually on 
31 March by: 

a) Percentage of units 63% 57% 59% 44% The budget for the managed workspace 
units has broken even in 2015/16 for the 
second successive year. 

Three tenants, previously occupants of 
15.5% of the floorspace have vacated for 
reasons of business expansion. 

The business centres support 33 businesses 

b) Percentage of floor 
area 

69% 63% 65% 55% 

Disposals – total number of assets sold with a market value in 
excess of £10,000 

9 n/a 8 11  

 

54 

P
age 82



 
Performance Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Rochdale 
Council 

Benchmark 
with NW 
Councils 

Rochdale 
Council 

Rochdale 
Council 

Further Information 

Disposals – total capital receipts from assets sold with a value 
in excess of £10,000 

£1,233,500 n/a £1,541,500 £2,274,575  

Average length of time (days) taken by the Estates Team to 
update the Terrier system and associated textual databases 
following receipt of the completion statement (Target = 5 days) 

4.91 3.21 2.49 2.33  

 

55 

P
age 83



Appendix C:  Disposals Procedure 

Purpose 
The purpose of this process is to enable all stakeholders to understand their respective roles and responsibilities in declaring a 
property surplus to requirements, managing an empty property, and marketing and disposal. 

 

Key Stakeholder Responsibilities 

Heads of Service  

 

o To continually review the Service and the asset base used to deliver its services, with an emphasis 
on reducing property-related costs. 

o To manage the property until handover to the Senior Property Manager Estates & Assets. 

Operational Asset 
Management 
Group 

o To consider the future of all assets declared surplus to requirements, provide the overview of the 
capital disposal programme and the strategic direction for each disposal. 

o To consider all options for investment in alternative premises to facilitate asset closures. 

Disposals Group o To determine the strategy for the disposal of the property 

o To monitor the progress of the disposal 

Senior Property 
Manager Estates 
& Assets  

 

o To continually review the Council’s property portfolio to identify opportunities for reducing asset 
costs and numbers. 

o To investigate all available options for the future of the property 

o To prepare the property for market, to manage the disposal process and to instruct the Borough 
Solicitor as required 

o To manage the property following the formal handover by the vacating Head of Service 

o To conduct formal handover to the purchaser. 

o To notify stakeholders of the completion of the sale. 

Head of Legal 
Services 

o Title checks and early verification of issues 

o Effect transaction to legal completion and issue a Completion Statement 

Procedure 

Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets will:- 

Head of the Occupying Service 
will:- 

Notes and Guidance 

Property Review 

Respond to a trigger to 
undertake a Property 
Review  

Respond to a trigger to undertake a 
review of the services delivered 
from the property 

Review of Assets may be triggered by: 
• Review of the service provided from the property 

by the occupying Head of Service 
• Part of the proactive review programme by the 

Senior Property Manager Estates & assets 
• Poor property performance 
• Reactive review following a third party enquiry 

 Request Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets to undertake a 
Property review to complement 
Service Review 

It is recognised that successful review of a property 
asset requires joint input and mutual co-operation 
between the Head of service and the property team 

Check that a record of the 
asset exists in Atrium and 
SwiftMap. Create asset 
record if required. 

  

56 Page 84



Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets will:- 

Head of the Occupying Service 
will:- 

Notes and Guidance 

Request Service to 
undertake a Service Review 
to complement Property 
Review 

  

Undertake a Property 
Review – a statement of the 
asset’s potential alternative 
uses and value 
• Commission title check 
• Commission planning 

brief 
• Consult with Highways 
• Consult with 

Environmental 
Management 

• Consult with other 
Services to identify 
other internal interest in 
occupying the asset 

Undertake a Service Review – a 
statement of the asset’s role in 
service delivery, and whether or not 
it is surplus to requirements 

Title checks, planning briefs and Highway 
consultations are to be returned within a period of one 
month 
At any stage in the disposal process, an internal 
Council service may express an interest in taking over 
a vacant Council property. If the interest is approved 
by Operational Asset Management Group, a fixed 
period of time will be given, usually no longer than 
three months, to prepare a business case and to 
make a firm decision about occupation. This is to 
ensure that the progress towards disposal is not 
unnecessarily delayed. 

 Notify Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets of the outcome of 
the Service Review, providing a 
minimum of three months’ notice of 
a proposed building handover. 

 

Record outcome of the 
Property and Service 
Reviews on Atrium 

  

Approvals for Disposal 
Notify Disposals Group of 
the outcome of the Property 
and Service Reviews and 
recommendation for future 
actions 

 Disposals Group will decide the disposals strategy 
and timescales and any subsequent variations 

Report to Township for 
approval to release the 
asset for disposal 

 Township Committees have delegated powers to 
approve release for disposal but not the terms of any 
disposal 

Marketing and Negotiation 

Asset is entered into 
auction, marketed or offered 
directly in accordance with 
the Disposal Strategy and 
any views from Township 
Committee. May include 
outline planning application. 

  

Refer any deviation from 
agreed disposal strategy to 
the Disposals Group for 
review 

  

Agree terms of sale   

Secure any required formal 
approvals for the terms of 
the disposal  

 Approval of the terms of disposal may be by Cabinet 
or, where appropriate, by officer delegated approval. 

57 Page 85



Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets will:- 

Head of the Occupying Service 
will:- 

Notes and Guidance 

Ensure that clear deadlines 
are set for the purchaser for 
each of the key milestones 
in the disposal process, eg 
submission of planning 
application, exchange of 
contracts, completion. 

  

Vacation and Handover 

Arrange appropriate security 
measures for the vacant 
property. 

Communicate to the Head of 
Service the condition in 
which the property should be 
handed over. 

Undertake formal handover 
inspection and, if the 
condition of the property is 
appropriate, to accept the 
handover. 

On vacation to hand over the 
property to the Senior Property 
Manager Estates & Assets, having 
first: 

• Terminated all services and 
contracts managed by the 
Head of Service that are not 
required post-handover 

• Removed all furniture and other 
materials, unless approved by 
the Senior Property Manager in 
writing. 

• Ensured that no data of a 
confidential nature has been 
left in the building 

• Meter readings have been 
taken and heating and 
electrical systems left on 
appropriate settings 

• The building is safe and secure 

• All keys and access codes 
have been passed to the 
Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets 

• Transferred all building-related 
budgets to the Senior Property 
manager Estates & assets 

The Head of Service and the Senior Property 
Manager Estates & Assets should work together to 
agree the condition in which the property should be 
handed over and to achieve a successful and 
problem-free handover. A handover meeting and joint 
inspection of the property should take place. 

The Senior Property Manager Estates & Assets 
reserves the right to refuse to accept handover or to 
charge the Head of Service for costs incurred should 
the property not have been left in the agreed 
condition. 

At all times data security remains always the 
responsibility of the Head of Service. All files should 
be removed from the premises prior to handover. The 
Senior Property Manager Estates & Assets will refuse 
to accept the handover of any building where files 
have been left in-situ. 

The following arrangements are to be made for 
budgets relating to the premises:- 

1. On handover all budgets held by the Head of 
Service are to be transferred to the Senior 
Property Manager Estates & Assets,  

 Or 

 The Head of Service will continue to meet the 
ongoing costs of the building until the sale is 
completed.  

 [NB Savings proposals should always take 
account of the need for the continuation of 
budgets up to the point of sale]. 

2. In the case of leased-in buildings, where these 
are managed by the Corporate Landlord the 
Senior Property Manager Estates & Assets will 
meet the costs of dilapidations. Dilapidations 
costs for non-Corporate Landlord buildings will 
need to be met by the Head of Service. 

Consider and implement any 
options for revenue 
generating uses during the 
disposal process 

  

Completing the Disposal 

Instruct the Head of Legal to 
complete the disposal on the 
basis of the terms agreed. 

 In the case of disposal by auction, instructions to the 
Head of Legal will precede marketing and 
negotiations. 

Following completion of the disposal the Head of 
Legal will provide a Completion Statement for the 
Senior Property Manager and other stakeholders 

58 Page 86



Senior Property Manager 
Estates & Assets will:- 

Head of the Occupying Service 
will:- 

Notes and Guidance 

On completion to arrange 
handover to the purchaser 

  

On receipt of the Completion 
Statement to update 
SwiftMap and Atrium 

  

 

59 Page 87



Appendix D:  The Property Review Process 
 

Consideration of building factors 

Strategic 
objectives 

Suitability / 
fitness for 
purpose 

marketability condition Value for 
money sustainability 

 

Service delivery options 
IT / Technology Solutions Partnership outsourcing 

 

Building Options 
No change Relocate service to 

better building Upgrade building Stop service 
Sell Building 

 

Decision Making 
OAM SAM Leadership Team Members 

 

Implementation 
 

60 Page 88



Appendix E:  Accommodation Protocol 

The Need 

The Council’s Asset Strategy sets out to achieve the effective and efficient use of the council’s land 
and buildings assets.  It makes those assets a corporate responsibility and all services are tasked with 
reviewing accommodation to reduce the portfolio size and costs. It is acknowledged that as a 
consequence of down-sizing or otherwise improving their service delivery; Council Services will need 
to relocate from time to time to alternative premises. 

 

The Risks 

However, relocation creates the risks that: 

• The proposal does not represent value for 
money. 

• Unplanned or unco-ordinated moves may result 
in more expenditure as the initial proposals may 
not be deliverable or sustainable 

• There will be conflict with the aspirations of the 
asset strategy and with other properties or 
projects 

• Moves undertaken without a corporate overview may fail to make the best use of Council 
accommodation or to realise any proposed savings, and may expose Council staff to health 
and safety risks. 

 

Risk Management Protocols 

In order to manage these risks the Council will implement the following principles in respect of 
potential accommodation moves: 

• To use the clear governance framework in place for all asset decisions through OAM and SAM 
and onto Leadership team and / or members as required.  No relocation decisions should be 
taken without consulting these forums. 

• The rationalisation programme established Number One Riverside as the primary office 
location.  Number One Riverside should therefore be used to maximum capacity and should 
be the first location considered for any accommodation requirement.   

• Council service occupations of third party premises must always be supported by a) a written 
agreement setting out the terms of occupation, and b) the nomination of a Responsible Person 
for each property, being a senior Council officer based in the building in question. 

 

Process 

The process is shown graphically in the table below. Services identifying the need for relocation will be 
asked to provide OAM with an evidenced business case supporting and justifying the move. The 
following issues will need to be addressed: 

• Where the Service is proposing to move from/to. Particular issues need to be addressed in 
respect of occupation of a non-Council building 

• Number of staff/workstations 
• Special accommodation features and furniture requirements 
• The existence of an approved budget 
• Whether the proposed move relates to corporate and service plan objectives 
• How the proposed move contributes to the council’s savings or service modernisation 
• Staff consultation 
• Whether the existing building will be vacated altogether 

 

61 Page 89



Appendix E:  Accommodation Protocol (cont) 

   Service completes Accommodation Form - available on the Intranet under "A" - 
and returns to the Accommodation Officer, Estates & Assets (E&A) 

 

  

         
         
   E&A reviews the form and presents to Operational Asset Management Group 

(OAM), which will assess the request from a strategic point of view 
 

  

          
           
 Proposal authorised to progress for further 

assessment 
 

  OAM does not approve the move. Service 
informed of outcome by E&A.   

          
          

If the building is owned by 
a third party the Service is 

to commission E&A to 
commence provisional 
negotiations with the 

landlord on the terms of 
occupation 

 Accommodation Officer refers to 
IT Service desk. IT to assign the 
call to Consultation, Assessment 

and Design (CAD) queue 

  Service elects to appeal to Strategic Asset 
Management Group 

          
          

   CAD will review the request and 
allocate to an IT engineer for 

assessment 
NB. 3 months notice may be 

required for this task 

  Approved  Not approved 

           
           

E&A reports outcome to 
Accommodation Officer 

 CAD to review engineer’s 
recommendation and to advise 
Accommodation Officer of all 

costs and implications 

     

          
          
   Accommodation Officer to report to OAM 

for a decision to proceed 
 

     

             
              
 Move approved. Service 

and IT given authorisation 
to proceed 

  OAM does not approve the 
move. Service informed of 

outcome by E&A. 

   

          
          
 Accommodation Officer to 

arrange planning meeting 
with IT, appoint project 

lead and plan the move in 
more detail 

  Service elects to appeal to 
Strategic Asset Management 

Group 

   

             
             
 If the building is owned by 

a third party E&A are to 
complete formal written 

terms of occupation 

  Approved  Not 
approved 

   

            
          
 Move completed 

 
 

       

          
          
 Property Services 

instructed to put an 
appropriate statutory 

compliance procedure in 
place 

       

 

62 Page 90



 
Appendix F:  Asset Management Group (AMG) Budget Procedures 

 

The AMG budget is managed by the Senior Property Manager (Projects), 
is monitored through the Operational Asset Management Group and is 
available for capital works on the Council’s property portfolio. 

The priorities for allocating funding to specific schemes are derived from 
the results of the condition survey data the Council holds on its property 
portfolio. Any works that have a Priority 1 status must be undertaken 
within 12 months, and it is normal for the Priority 1 need to be greater 
than the available budget, so further prioritisation is required. Priority 1 
works generally include health and safety requirements, legislative 
compliance, consequential damage and business continuity. 

Other issues considered in the prioritisation process include future plans 
for the properties in question and impact on the public and services. 

Heads of Service may request additional funding for projects within their 
operational portfolio. The process is a brief application form which is 
considered by the Operational Asset Management Group (OAM). 
Applicants are asked to provide the following information and to present 
their case at an OAM meeting: 

• Why is the work required:  

• How does the issue affect the water tightness of the asset? 

• How will service delivery be affected by not undertaking this 
work? 

• Which legislation, regulation or council policy requires this work 
to be carried out?   

• What is the estimated amount of this work/project? 

• Have other sources of funding been explored e.g. 
s106/Townships/Corporate Landlord 

• Is the council liable for repairs to this asset and is the future of 
the asset certain? 

• What inspections, surveys or audits have identified the need for 
these works? 

 

 

 

Capital or Revenue? 

Capital expenditure is restricted to 
the costs required to acquire or 
improve a long-term asset such as 
land and buildings, or equipment.  
 
Revenue expenditure is an amount 
that is expended immediately on, 
for example, routine repairs.  
 
Even significant repairs that do not 
extend the life of the asset or do 
not improve the asset (ie the 
repairs merely return the asset 
back to its previous condition) are 
revenue expenditures. 
 

 

 

63 Page 91



Appendix G:  Corporate Landlord Protocol 
 
1. Purpose  

The purpose of this protocol is to document the responsibilities of The Corporate Landlord and of The 
Service in relation to The Service’s occupation and use of the Council’s operational property assets. 

 

2. Scope 

The scope of the protocol is the management of the properties shown in Schedule II, and defined as 
properties for which the Corporate Landlord holds a budget for reactive maintenance. 

 

3. Roles and Responsibilities 

The substantive roles and responsibilities assumed by The Corporate Landlord and Heads of Service 
are summarised in Schedule I. Broadly speaking the Corporate Landlord is responsible for reactive 
repair and maintenance and cleaning and caretaking, whilst the Heads of Service remain responsible 
for all other costs. 

However, effective property management within the context of the Council’s Asset Strategy requires a 
proactive approach by both the Corporate Landlord and by the Service in occupation. The protocols 
identify a number of issues that reflect obligations that are wider that simple budget administration; for 
example: 

Asset Rationalisation – the asset rationalisation objectives set by the Council from time to time are 
largely incapable of being met without the Corporate Landlord and Heads of Service working in 
partnership to identify surplus assets. The protocol reflects the need for both parties to undertake 
continual reviews of the pattern of service delivery, the need to hold property, proactivity in improving 
utilisation. 

Third Parties - for the purposes of effective risk management, where Council Partners or other third 
parties occupy Council property, or a Council Service occupies premises belonging to a Partner or 
other third party, the occupation must be subject to a documented agreement, negotiated and 
completed by The Corporate Landlord, which defines the parties’ responsibilities for the property. The 
release of part of a property for third party occupation will trigger a review by The Corporate Landlord of 
the asset’s management arrangements. 

Leasehold Interests - where the Council occupies a property by way of a leasehold interest, or has 
leased-out all or part of a property to a third party, the responsibilities of The Service and The 
Corporate Landlord may be complex. For example, the third party landlord or tenant may have 
contractual responsibility for aspects of repair or management of the building. Failure to properly 
manage the Council’s contractual obligations may result in unnecessary costs or missing statutory 
obligations. 

It should be noted that discussions between Council officers and Council landlord or tenants could 
inadvertently compromise the Council’s contractual or statutory position, and extend its liabilities and 
costs. The Service should therefore ensure that The Corporate Landlord leads on all discussions with 
Third Party Landlords and Tenants. This is particularly important in the event that the Council is 
considering terminating the lease. 

Health & Safety – Service managers have a statutory duty of care for their employees and properties 
they occupy that is undiminished by the fact that others have responsibility for managing more 
technical areas of statutory compliance. It is recognised, therefore, that The Corporate Landlord and 
Heads of Service must work together to ensure that there is full compliance with the Council’s statutory 
requirements, eg maintenance of statutory log books, health & safety risk assessments. 

 

64 Page 92



Appendix G Corporate Landlord Protocol (continued) 

Schedule I: The Corporate Landlord and Heads of Service: Roles and Responsibilities 
The Responsibilities of the Corporate Landlord  The Responsibilities of The Service 

Objective 1: To provide a property portfolio that is fit for the purpose of meeting the business plans of its Services 
Asset Review   

A.1. To consider and recommend alternative property solutions for service delivery  B.1. To review continually the assets in The Service’s portfolio against its business 
plan, with a view to a) developing a portfolio profile that is suitable for its service 
delivery requirements, b) using each property to its maximum efficiency, and c) 
improving the physical quality of each asset. 

A.2. To give careful consideration to all expenditure decisions, weighing value for money, 
the remaining useful life and potential liabilities of each asset 

 B.2. To consider alternative, less property-reliant methods of delivering services 

Acquisitions   

A.3. To negotiate agreements for The Service’s occupation or purchase of property. 
NB. The acquisition of property, whether by freehold acquisition or lease will normally require 
the approval of Cabinet. 

 B.3. To present the business case for the acquisition of additional property, should 
service delivery require the sourcing of additional accommodation, which is 
unavailable in the Council’s existing property portfolio.  

Capital Investment   

A.4. To advise the Operational Asset Management Group of any proposals or relevant 
factors that affect the decision of whether or not to invest in the property 

 B.4. To present the business case to Operational Asset Management Group for any 
proposals to alter or improve the suitability of a property for The Service’s 
purposes. 

A.5. To develop, manage and deliver the capital investment programme   

Repair and Maintenance   

A.6. Where The Corporate Landlord is the holder of the reactive repair and maintenance 
budget, to present to the Operational Asset Management Group the business case 
for any proposals for planned or reactive repair and maintenance for which a budget 
is not readily available. 

 B.5. Where The Service is the holder of the reactive repair and maintenance budget, to 
present to the Operational Asset Management Group the business case for any 
proposals for planned or reactive repair and maintenance for which a budget is not 
readily available. 

A.7. To be responsible for reactive maintenance and repairs to the structure of the 
building, including mechanical and electrical plant and machinery and external paths 
and driveways required for the effective operation of the property. 

 B.6. To maintain all exterior grounds, landscaped areas and ornamental paths and 
structures of each asset 

A.8. To  operate a service desk for placing orders for reactive repairs and maintenance 
and Service-funded development works 

  

Objective 2: To secure a reduction in the number of assets occupied 
Rationalisation   

A.9. To assist and support The Service in the process of asset review and rationalisation.  B.7. To reduce The Service’s use of property by undertaking continual reviews of its 
portfolio against the objectives in its business plan and by considering the need for 
specific property assets within its portfolio.  

65 

P
age 93



The Responsibilities of the Corporate Landlord  The Responsibilities of The Service 

A.10. To comply in all respects with the protocol for the disposal of property  B.8. To comply in all respects with the adopted protocol for the disposal of property 

A.11. To appraise the options available for the future of The Service’s portfolio.  B.9. On handover of the property, unless otherwise agreed with The Corporate 
Landlord, a) to leave the property clean and tidy and empty of furniture, waste and 
stored items, and b) to undertake the final meter readings for all the relevant 
utilities and settle the accounts up to the date of the handover 

A.12. To administer the disposal of property declared surplus to The Service’s 
requirements, and to accept the transfer of any remaining budgets relating to the 
property 

  

A.13. To be fully responsible for the management of surplus property from the date of 
handover, including the management of utilities. 

  

A.14. To manage and ensure the safety and security of any property transferred to 
Property Services for disposal 

  

Objective 3: To use property assets efficiently and economically and to reduce the Council’s property-related expenditure 

Day to Day Property Use   

A.15. To arrange and administer the Facilities Management SLA in accordance with the 
specification provided in Appendix C – where budgets are held by The Corporate 
Landlord. 

 B.10. To arrange and administer the Facilities Management works as required – where 
budgets are held by The Service. 

A.16. To administer the payment of NNDR – where budgets are held by the Corporate 
Landlord 

 B.11. To administer the payment of NNDR – where budgets are held by the Service 

  B.12. To manage the day to day use and occupancy of the properties, including safe and 
compliant furniture and layout, opening/locking up, ICT provision. 

  B.13. To administer and meet the costs of utilities and meter reading and the economic 
use of energy and water resources 

  B.14. To provide access to, and to co-operate with, staff and contractors appointed by 
The Corporate Landlord for the purposes of fulfilling its responsibilities under The 
Agreement 

Budget Management   

A.17. To manage effectively property-related budgets within the responsibility of The 
Corporate Landlord 

 B.15. To manage effectively all property-related budgets within the responsibility of The 
Service 

A.18. To consider opportunities for cost savings   B.16. To consider opportunities for cost savings 

Accommodation and Relocation   

A.19. To work with The Service to identify alternative accommodation, if required.  B.17. To present the business case for relocation for the approval of the Operational 
Asset Management Group and the identification of a budget to meet the costs. 

66 

P
age 94



The Responsibilities of the Corporate Landlord  The Responsibilities of The Service 

Utilisation   

A.20. To be aware of under-utilised accommodation and consideration of options for 
improving occupancy rates. 

 B.18. To manage the efficient use of the buildings it occupies, by ensuring that the 
available space is fully utilised. 

  B.19. To notify and liaise with The Corporate Landlord in respect of under-utilised 
elements of its portfolio. 

  B.20. To consider the options available for improving utilisation through Secondary 
Occupations and Partner Occupations 

Secondary Occupations   

A.21. To support the process of maximising utilisation by assisting to identify an 
appropriate Secondary Occupier 

 B.21. To identify opportunities to deliver savings and improving utilisation through 
sharing accommodation with a Secondary Occupier 

  B.22. To document the terms of all secondary occupations and to notify The Corporate 
Landlord accordingly 

Assets Shared with Partners   

A.22. To advise and negotiate appropriate terms of occupation  B.23. To identify opportunities to deliver savings and improving utilisation through 
sharing accommodation with Service Partners 

  B.24. To communicate with The Corporate Landlord to put in place an effective 
agreement of occupation 

Third Party Tenants   

A.23. To support the process of maximising utilisation by assisting to identify an 
appropriate Third Party tenant 

 B.25. To identify opportunities to deliver savings and improving utilisation through 
releasing accommodation for Third Party occupancy 

A.24. To advise and negotiate appropriate terms of occupation   

Objective 4: To manage effectively the Council’s exposure to the risks, liabilities and obligations of property ownership 

Due Care and Attention   

  B.26. To occupy and use the properties in such a way as to safeguard the building fabric 
and its day to day security, and so as not to prejudice the Council’s insurance 
cover 

Statutory Obligations   

A.25. To manage the Council’s responsibilities in respect of compliance with the statutory 
obligations of property ownership. 

 B.27. To nominate a main point of contact within the building with responsibility for The 
Service’s statutory compliance 

67 

P
age 95



The Responsibilities of the Corporate Landlord  The Responsibilities of The Service 

A.26. To support, advise and work with The Service to ensure a joined up and effective 
approach to statutory compliance 

 B.28. To operate a “Permit to Work” system and to make arrangements for access for 
service users and contractors, ensuring that The Corporate Landlord is aware of 
any reasonable restrictions on access or working arrangements. 

  B.29. To undertake health and safety risk assessments to protect staff and service users. 

  B.30. To hold and maintain the statutory building logbooks and reports that need to 
reside on site, keeping them in good condition and making them available to 
contractors and The Corporate Landlord, as appropriate 

  B.31. To provide information required by The Corporate Landlord for the purposes of 
statutory compliance.  

  B.32. To work with the Corporate Landlord to ensure that the appropriate management 
regime is in place to manage the risks to the Council. 

  B.33 To undertake specific tasks to ensure that all statutory responsibilities are fulfilled 

Leased Assets   

A.27. To advise The Service, as required, on the terms of the leases  B.34. To be aware that freedom of action may be restricted by the existence of a 
leasehold interest 

A.28. To take primary responsibility for the relationships with the Council’s landlords and 
third party tenants and will advise on the best course of action to protect the 
Council’s interests 

 B.35. To familiarise itself with the main lease terms to ensure that no RMBC 
responsibilities are overlooked and that no third party responsibilities are carried 
out 

  B.36 To meet any routine costs due to the Council’s landlord, eg rent, service charge, 
insurance premium costs 

 

68 

P
age 96



Appendix G Corporate Landlord Protocol (continued) 

Schedule II: The Corporate Landlord – In-Scope Properties 

 

Adult Services Directorate 

Alkrington Day Centre 

Hanson Corner 

Newbold Buildings 

Springhill Resource Centre 

Tudor Court 
 

Childrens Services Directorate 

Bridgefold Lodge 

Children's Home, Middleton 

Children's Home, Rochdale 

Children's Home, Rochdale 

Falinge Park Play barn 

Fashion Corner 

Hollin Children's Centre 

Kirkway Children's Centre 

Matthew Moss Youth Centre 

Milnrow Youth Centre 

Moss Street Youth Base  

Newbold Children's Centre 

Queen Street Contact Centre 

Rhodes 
Youth 
Centre 

 
Springvale Youth Centre 

Wardle & Hamer Youth Base (Gower St) 

Youth Zone, 15 The Strand 
 

Economy Directorate 

Employment Links, Drake Street 
 

Neighbourhoods Directorate 

Alkrington Bowling Club 

Alkrington Library 

Balderstone Library 

Belfield Library 

Boarshaw Cemetery & Crem/Middleton Crem  

Bowlee Nursery 

Bowlee Pavilion 

Brassey Clough Bowling Club 

Broadfield Depot 

Broadfield Park Pavilions 

Buersil Park Bowling Club 

Bullough Moor Bowling Pavlion 

Castleton Community Centre 

Castleton Library 

Chesham Park 

Darnhill Library 

Falinge Park Bowling pavilion 

Falinge Park Depot/ Gardeners store  

Firgrove Pavilion 

Green 
Lane 
Depot 

 
Hare Hill Depot 

Hare Hill Park Bowling Pavilion 

Heady Hill Community Centre 

Heywood Cemetery 

Heywood Central Library 

Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre 

Hopwood Rec Bowling Pavilion 

Jumbo Community Centre 

Junction Library/jumbo 

King George V Bowling Pavilion 

Kirkholt Bowling green 

Langley Library 

Limefield Pavilion 

Littleborough Library 

Middleton Library 

Milnrow Library 

Milnrow Memorial Depot/Pavilion 

Norden Library 

Queens Park Bowling Pavilion 

Queens Park Lodge 

Renaissance House 

Rhodes Bowling Club 

Richard Street/Unison 

Rochdale Cemetery & Crematorium 

Smallbridge Library 

Smithybridge Library 

Spotland 
Library 

 

Stannycliffe Community Centre 

Summit Bowling Green 

Syke Bowling Club/Cronkeyshaw 

Thistleyfield Bowling Green 

Truffet Park Depot 

Wardle Library 

Wardle Park Pavilion 

Wardle & Smallbridge Community Centre 
 

Resources Directorate 

Richard Street/NSL 

 

69 Page 97



Appendix H:  Asset Schedules 

Appendix H.i - Assets For Growth and Prosperity 

 

Development Sites 

site ref: Key Initiative Sites: Area / Project Disposal Process 
Potential 
Development 
Timetable (Start on 
site) 

HMRF 45 
(part) Dean Street  ECR Cabinet  2015 

   

 

HMRF 7 Site of Former Millerain ECR Delegated decision 2020-2025 

HMRF1 Nile Street  ECR Delegated Decision 
Panel 2015 

HMRF 15 / 
18 Belfield Road/Hamer Lane ECR Cabinet and Township 2017-2018 

HMRF 5 Ramsay Terrace ECR Cabinet and Township - 
already approved 2015 

HMRF 7? Gower Street ECR Delegated Decision 
Panel 2016-2017 

HMRF 49? Central Core (Land 
Pooling) - Priority 2 Langley Langley Steering Group 

Delegated Decision 2015 

Langley 
Primary 

Willow Park S (Land 
Pooling) - Priority 4 Langley Langley Steering Group 

as above 2018-2019 

Langley 
Primary 

Willow Park N (Land 
Pooling) - Priority 5 Langley Langley Steering Group  2018-2019 

not RMBC Stainton Drive Langley Langley Steering Group  2020-2025 

HMRF 21 Mosedale Road Langley Langley Steering Group  2020-2025 

LPA 1 Threlkeld Park (Land 
Pooling) - Priority 6 Langley Langley Steering Group  2020-2025 

LPA 8 Borrowdale Park (Land 
Pooling) - Priority 7 Langley Langley Steering Group  2020-2025 

HMRF 22 / 
23 

Winderere Crummock Link 
(Land Pooling) -Priority 8 Langley Langley Steering Group  2020-2025 

HMRF 10 / 
41 

Bonscale Park (Land 
Pooling) - Priority 3 Langley Langley Steering Group  2020-2025 

LPA 2 / LPA 
3? 

Lakeside Park (land 
Pooling) - Priority 9 Langley Langley Steering Group  2020-205 

70 Page 98



site ref: Key Initiative Sites: Area / Project Disposal Process 
Potential 
Development 
Timetable (Start on 
site) 

HMRF 14 / 
48 /  

Furrows Park (Land 
Pooling) - Priority 1 Langley Langley Steering Group 

all as above 2015 

  Balderstone school - 
Priority 1 Kirkholt Delegated Decision 

Panel - approved 2016 

HMRF 33 Hill Top School- Priority 2 Kirkholt 
Delegated Decision 
Panel – Site now sold to 
Gleeson 

2015 

Kirkholt 
Community 
Centre 

Central Kirkholt (The 
Strand) - Priority 2 Kirkholt Cabinet and Township 2016 

HMRF 25 Queens Drive - Priority 2 Kirkholt Delegated decision 2018-2020 

HMRF 29 Daventry Road 1 Kirkholt Delegated decison 2016 

HMRF 30 Daventry Road 2 Kirkholt  As above 2018+ 

  
Hartley Lane (ex 
Queensway school) site -
Priority 1 

Kirkholt Cabinet and Township Development 
completed 

HMRF 19 Lincoln Street (Station 
Approach) - Priority 2 Inner Rochdale Delegated Decision 

Panel 202-2025 

HMRF 44 Process Plastics/Norwich 
Street Inner Rochdale Delegated Decision 

Panel 2016-2017 

  Former Wellfield Surgery Inner Rochdale 
Cabinet and Township 
Approved for discposal 
awaiting scheme details 

2016 

  Dale and Arkwright Mill  ECR Delegated Decision  2016-2017 

 

   

  Hill Street Heywood Cabinet and Township 2015 

  Boots, Mary Street Heywood 
Cabinet and Township 
Approved 

2015 

  Longridge Drive Heywood 
Cabinet and Township 
approved 

2015 

  Mossfield School Heywood 
Delegated Decision 
Panel approved has gone 
fror commercial use 

2016-2017 

  George Street Heywood Delegated Decision 
Panel approved 2015 

  Claybank Street - Priority 
3 Heywood Delegated Decision 

Panel 2020-2025 

71 Page 99



site ref: Key Initiative Sites: Area / Project Disposal Process 
Potential 
Development 
Timetable (Start on 
site) 

  Claybank Street/Cedar 
Lane - Priority 2 Heywood Delegated Decision 

Panel 2020-2025 

HMRF 9 Sparth Bottoms road Sparth Cabinet and Township 2015 

  Kingsway Plot S - Priority 
1 Kingsway Cabinet and Township On site 

  Kingsway Plot V Kingsway Cabinet and Township 
 

HCH Sutherland Road School - 
Priority 1 other Cabinet and Township 2016 

  Alderman Kay Playing 
fields - Priority 1 other 

Cabinet and Township 
Approved with 
Countryside  

  
41-43 Drake Street 

Town Centre East Cabinet and Township 

2018-2020 

  
45-47 Drake Street, 20 
River Street 2018-2020 

  
20 River Street 

2018-2020 

  
Land at River Street Town Centre East Cabinet  

on site (March 2015) 

  
Hollingworth House Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

  
Telegraph House Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

  

Baillie Street Health 
Centre and Penn Street 
Clinic 

Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 
Agreement)  2016 

  
Pentagon Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

  
17-21 Baillie Street Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

  
Former bus station / 
MSCP  Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

  
Municipal Offices Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

  
Broadwater Centre Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

  
St Andrews Church Town Centre East Cabinet (Development 

Agreement)  2016 

 

72 Page 100



Appendix H.i: Assets for Growth and Prosperity (continued) 

Investment Assets 

 
 

 
Number 

of 
Assets 

Number 
of Units 

Total 
Floor 

Area (m2) 
Rental 
Income 

Average 
Rental 

Income per 
Unit 

Rental 
Income 
per m2 

Staff 
Costs 

Staff Costs 
as a 

percentage 
of Income 

% 
Occupied 
Units by 
Number 
of Units 

% 
Occupied 
Units by 

Floor Area 

No of 
businesses 
supported 

Industrial Estates 9 (1) 88 (1) 6,841  (1) £361,368  

(2) 
£4,106.45  

(2) 
£52.82 

(2) 
£114,217 

(2) 31.61% (2) 100% (1) 100% (1) 68 (1) 

Managed Workspace 3 (1) 93 (1) 2,874.04 
(1) 

£212,527 
(2) 

£2285.24 

(2) 
 £73.95 

(2) 
£126,964 

(2) 59.74% (2) 44.08% 
(1) 55.35%.(1) 33 (1) 

Commercial/Industrial 
Ground Leases 

Information breakdown subject to verification of the categorisation of assets. Refer to action 2.15 

 

  

 

Reference: 
(1) As at 01 April 2016 
(2) Full year figure 2015/16 

73 

P
age 101



Appendix H.ii - Assets Supporting Council Services 

PROPERTY Directorate Service Use 

Alkrington Bowling Club Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Alkrington Day Centre Adult Services Adult Social Care Day Centre 

Alkrington Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Balderstone Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Belfield Children's Centre Children’s Services Early Help and Schools Children’s Centre 

Belfield Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Boarshaw Children's Centre Children’s Services Early Help and Schools Children’s Centre 

Bowlee 
Nursery 

 

Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Plant Nursery 

Bowlee Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Outdoor Sports 

Brassey Clough Bowling Club Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Broadfield Depot Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Depot 

Broadfield Park Pavilions Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Brook House Resources Legal Offices 

Buersil Park Bowling Club Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Bullough Moor Bowling Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Castleton Children's Centre children’s Services Early Help and Schools children’s Centre 

Castleton Community Centre Neighbourhoods Community Services Community Centre 

Castleton Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Chesham Park Bowls Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Childrens Home, Middleton children’s Services children’s Social Care children’s Home 

Childrens Home, Rochdale children’s Services Childrens Social Care Childrens Home 

74 Page 102



PROPERTY Directorate Service Use 

Children's Home, Rochdale Childrens Services Childrens Social Care Childrens Home 

Childrens Home, Rochdale Childrens Services Childrens Social Care Childrens Home 

Darnhill Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Deeplish Sure Start Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Derby Street Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

3 Dodgson Street Neighbourhoods Trading Standards Storage 

4 Dodgson Street Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Storage 

Employment Links, Drake Street Economy Economic Affairs Offices 

Falinge Park Depot/ Gardeners Store Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Depot 

Falinge Park Bowling pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Falinge Park Play barn Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Youth Base 

Fashion Corner Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Offices 

Firgrove Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management OutdooS sports 

Globe House Neighbourhoods ICT Offices 

Green Lane Depot Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Depot 

Hamer Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Hanson Corner Adult Services Adult Social Care Offices 

Hare Hill Depot Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Depot 

Hare Hill Park Bowling Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Heady Hill Community Centre Neighbourhoods Community Services Community Centre 

Heybrook Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Heywood Central Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Highwood Centre/ Whittaker Moss Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Music Service 

Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Leisure and Culture 

Hollins Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

75 Page 103



PROPERTY Directorate Service Use 

Hopwood Rec Bowling Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Howard Street Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Jumbo Community Centre Neighbourhoods Community Services Community Centre 

Junction Library/Jumbo Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

King George V Bowling Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Kirkholt Bowling Green Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Kirkway Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Langley Children Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Langley Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Littleborough Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Littleborough Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Matthew Moss Youth Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Youth Base 

Meanwood Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Schools Childrens Centre 

Middleton Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Milnrow  Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Milnrow Youth Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Youth Base 

Milnrow Memorial Depot/Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Depot 

Moorhouse Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Moss Street Youth Base Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Youth Base 

Newbold Buildings Adult Services Adult Social Care Offices 

Newbold Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Norden Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Norden Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

 

76 Page 104



 

PROPERTY Directorate Service Use 

Number One 
Riverside 

 

Neighbourhoods Facilities Management Offices and Library 

Phoenix Centre Neighbourhoods Coroner and Registrars Offices 

14 Phoenix Close Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Storage 

Queens Park Bowling Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Queens Park Lodge Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Leisure and Culture 

Queen Street Contact Centre Childrens Services Childrens Social Care 
 

Renaissance House Neighbourhoods Community Safety Offices 

Rhodes Bowling Club Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Rhodes Youth Centre Neighbourhoods Community Services Community Centre 

Richard Street/NSL Resources HR Offices 

Richard Street/Unison Neighbourhoods Highways Offices 

Rochdale Town Hall Neighbourhoods Coroner and Registrars Offices 

Sandbrook Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens Centre 

Smallbridge Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Smithybridge Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Spotland Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Springhill Resource Centre Adult Services Adult Social Care Resource Centre 

Springvale Youth Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Youth Base 

Stannycliffe Comm Centre Neighbourhoods Community Services Community Centre 

Summit Bowling Green Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Syke Bowling Club/Cronkeyshaw Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

77 Page 105

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCIKx0quri8kCFUE3FAod1soF3A&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mixinteriors.com%2Fjune-x2012%2Fen%2Fc42%2Fi%2F302%2Fdesc%2Frochdale-met-council%2F&psig=AFQjCNHYOvdtbxEUdkXHJ5r4kcXd8_p_1g&ust=1447433278492730


PROPERTY Directorate Service Use 

Thistleyfield Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Truffet Park Depot Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Depot 

Tudor Court Adult Services Adult Social Care Resource Centre 

Wardle & Hamer Youth Base (Gower St) Childrens Services Early Help and Schools Youth Base 

Wardle & Smallbridge Community Centre Neighbourhoods Community Services Community Centre 

  

 

Wardle Library Neighbourhoods Customers and Communities Library 

Wardle Park Pavilion Neighbourhoods Environmental Management Bowling Green 

Woodland Children's Centre Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Childrens 
Centre 

Youth Zone, 15 The Strand Childrens Services Early Help and Sschools Youth Base 

 

78 Page 106

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCPiJ6fWji8kCFUhWFAodkFYDnA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.washg.co.uk%2FFindContact%2FFindUs.aspx&bvm=bv.107406026,d.d24&psig=AFQjCNEdH9-dlDxaEkHLWSinGW-REFU2Lg&ust=1447431291454164
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCPiJ6fWji8kCFUhWFAodkFYDnA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.washg.co.uk%2FFindContact%2FFindUs.aspx&bvm=bv.107406026,d.d24&psig=AFQjCNEdH9-dlDxaEkHLWSinGW-REFU2Lg&ust=1447431291454164


Appendix H.iii - Assets in the Community 

 

Organisation / Group Property Township Use 

COMMUNITY CENTRES 
   

Alkrington Community Centre Alkrington Community Centre, 
Hardman Road, Middleton Middleton Community Centre 

Back O' Th' Moss Community Centre Back O' Th' Moss Community 
Centre Heywood Community Centre 

Bamford Community Centre Bamford Community Centre, Dixon 
Fold, Rochdale Rochdale Community Centre 

Brookside Community Centre Brookside Community Centre, 
Lincoln Road Middleton Community Centre 

Castlemere Community Centre Castlemere Street, Rochdale Rochdale Community Centre 

Cleworth Community Centre Cleworth Community Centre, 
Cleworth Road, Rochdale Middleton Community Centre 

Crimble Croft Community Centre Crimble Croft Community Centre, 
Aspinall Street, Heywood Heywood Community Centre 

Demesne Community Centre Demesne Commmunity Centre, 
Asby Close, Langley Middleton Community Centre 

Elm Street Community Centre Elm Street Community Centre, Elm 
Street Middleton Community Centre 

Meadowfield Community Centre Meadowfield Community Centre, 
Eafield Road Rochdale Community Centre 

Sparth Community Centre Sparth Community Centre, Norman  
Road Rochdale Community Centre 

Spotland and Falinge Community Centre Spotland CommunityCentre, 
Spotland Road, Rochdale Rochdale Community Centre 

Sudden Community Centre Sudden Community Centre, 
Cheltenham Street Rochdale Community Centre 

Wardleworth Community Centre Wardleworth Community Centre, 
South Street Rochdale Community Centre 

SPORTS AND LEISURE 
   

Alkrington Anglers Alkrington Lakes Middleton Fishing rights 

Alkrington Anglers Myrtle Lodges, Middleton Middleton Fishing rights 

Boarshaw Gym (Boxing Club) Stannycliffe Lane, Middleton Middleton Gym 

Heywood St James FC Shepherd Street, Heywood Heywood Football pitch 

Hamer Boxing Club Unit 4 Rugby Road Industrial Estate, 
Rochdale Rochdale Gym 

Hollingworth Lake Rowing Club The Boat House, Lake Bank, 
Littleborough Pennines Rowing club 

Hollingworth Lake Sailing Club Sailing Club, Lake Bank, 
Littleborough Pennines Sailing club 

Limefield Pavilion Manchester Old Road, Middleton Middleton Bowling Green 

Middleton Anglers Rhodes Lodges, Middleton Middleton Fishing rights 

Middleton Gymnasts The Lakeside Centre, Bowness 
Road, Langley Middleton Gym 

79 Page 107



New Street Bowling Club New Street Pennines Bowling Club 

Organisation / Group Property Township Use 

SPORTS AND LEISURE (cont) 
   

Wardle FC Rutherford Park, Wardle Road, 
Wardle Pennines Football pitch 

Bridge Colts Top o th Lane Changing Rooms, 
Hollin Lane, Bamford Rochdale Football pitch 

Hooley Bridge Celtic F.C. Queens Park Road Heywood sports 

Lanctan Bowling Club Wardle Road, Wardle Pennines Bowling Club 

Link4Life Bowlee Sports Centre Middleton Sports Centre 

Link4Life Castleton Baths Rochdale Swimming Pool 

Link4Life Heywood Leisure Centre Heywood Sports Centre 

Link4Life Hollingworth Lake WAC Pennines Water Sports 

Link4Life Littleborough Sports Centre Pennines Sports Centre 

Link4Life Marland Golf Course Rochdale Golf Course 

  

 
Link4Life Middleton Arena Middleton Sports Centre 

Link4Life Rochdale Leisure Centre Rochdale Sports Centre 

Middleton Lads and Girls FC Limefield Park, Middleton Middleton Football Pitch 

Rochdale Catholic Cricket Club St Cuthberts School, Oldham Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale Cricket pitch 

Rochdale Olympic Gymnastics Club Springfield Park Barn, Bolton Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale Gym 

Rochdale Harriers Springfield Park Barn, Bolton Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale Club room 

Rochdale Hornets Mossway, Alkrington Middleton Football Pitch 

Rochdalians FC Springhill Playing Fields, Crompton 
Avenue Rochdale Football pitch 

Roche Dynamos Argyle Parade, Darnhill Heywood Football Pitch 

Roche Dynamos Former Heywood Community School 
Playing Fields. Darnhill Heywood Football Pitch 

Rugby Road Bowling Club Rugby Road Recreation Ground, 
Rugby Road, Rochdale Rochdale Bowling Club 

Springfield Golf Club Springfield Park Barn, Bolton Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale Club room 

Springfield Park Junior FC Springfield Park, Bolton Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale Football pitch 

Springfield Park Ladies Golf Club Springfield Park Barn, Bolton Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale Club room 

80 Page 108



Springfield Park Weightlifting club Springfield Park Barn, Bolton Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale Gym 

Organisation / Group Property Township Use 

SPORTS AND LEISURE (cont) 
   

St Clements FC Sandy Brow Playing Fields, 
Claremont Road, Rochdale Rochdale Football pitch 

Trustees Of The Middleton Angling Society Cobblers Dam, Asker Dam & Franks 
Dam Middleton Angling Club 

Trustees Of Rochdale Angling Society Buckley Wood Reservoirs 
 

Angling Club 

Whitworth Valley Anglers Broadley Wood Lodge Rochdale Fishing rights 

Whitworth Valley Angling Society Broadley Wood Lodge Rochdale Angling Club 

UNIFORMED ORGANISATIONS 

Air Training Corps Bamford Road, Heywood Heywood Uniform 

9th Heywood Scouts Scout Pavilion, Dixon Fold Rochdale Scout Hut 

Hopwood Scouts Scout Pavilion, Hopwood Recreation 
Ground, Heywood Heywood Scout Hut 

Kent Walk Scouts 
Scout Pavilion, Bullough Moor 
Recreation Ground, Regent Street, 
Heywood 

Heywood Scout Hut 

North West Reserve Forces & Cadets Assoc.  Army Cadet HQ, Ashton Lane/Sunk 
Lane, Middleton Middleton 

Uniform 

1st Rochdale Scouts Darlington House, George Street Rochdale Scout Hut 

37th Rochdale Scouts Scout Pavilion, Silk Street Rochdale Scout Hut 

Springfield Park Guides Springfield Park Barn, Bolton Road, 
Rochdale Rochdale 

Club room, bunk 
house and camp 
ground 

St Lukes (Heywood) Scouts and Guides Scout Pavilion, Starkey Street, 
Heywood Heywood Scout Hut 

T.A.V.R.A Air Training Corps HQ, Ashfield 
Road Rochdale Uniform 

T.A.V.R.A Bamford Road, Heywood Heywood Uniform 

FAITH 
   

Heywood Jehovah’s Witnesses Kingdom Hall Heywood Worship 

Manchester /Middleton Jehovahs Witnesses Hilton Fold Lane Middleton Worship 

Manchester /Middleton Jehovahs Witnesses Hilton Fold Lane (Kingdom Hall) Middleton Worship 

St Patricks/Diocese St Patricks RC Church Car Park Rochdale worship 

St Paul's Church Blackpits Road, Norden Rochdale Car park 

Trustees Of Rochdale (Wardle) Congregation 
Of J.W Kingdom Hall Pennines Worship 

SOCIAL CARE       

Alzheimer's Society Newbold Buildings Rochdale Office 

Brentwood 115 Long Street, Middleton Middleton Day care 

Petrus 73 Great George Street Rochdale Day Centre 

81 Page 109



Petrus Greave House, Greave Avenue Rochdale Hostel 

Organisation / Group Property Township Use 

SOCIAL CARE (cont)       

possAbilities Cherwell Centre, Cherwell Avenue, 
Heywood Heywood Day care 

possAbilities Leighton House, Milnrow Road, 
Smithybridge Pennines Respite Care 

possAbilities Saxon Centre Rochdale Day care 

possAbilities Witley Road, Rochdale Rochdale Day care 

possAbilities Woodclough Middleton Day care 

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Leopold Court, Leopold Street, 
Rochdale Rochdale Hostel 

Sandon House Taylor Street, Heywood Heywood Day care 

Springhill Hospice Broad Lane, Rochdale Rochdale Medical Care 

ARTS & CULTURE       

Demesne Media Arts Asby Close, Langley Middleton Offices 

Link4Life Heywood Civic Centre Heywood Civic Centre 

Link4Life Touchstones Rochdale Museum 

Littleborough Band Hartley Street, Littleborough Pennines Rehearsal room 

Littleborough Historical & Archaeological 
Society Site Of 32, 34, 36 Victoria Street Pennines Historical Society 

M6 Theatre Albert Royds Street, Rochdale Pennines Theatre 

COMMUNITY SERVICES       

Friends of Hopwood Park Hopwood Park - Former Bus 
Shelter/WC Heywood Café 

Heywood Magic Market The Market Hall, Hartley Street, 
Heywood Heywood Market Hall 

Kashmir Youth Project Unique Enterprise Centre Rochdale Youth Centre 

Milnrow Pre-school Nursery Charles Lane, Milnrow Pennines Nursery 

Moor End Trust Hare Hill House, Littleborough Pennines Community   

Newhey Pre-school Nursery Cedar Lane, Newhey Pennines Nursery 

Norden Community Trust 

 

Norden Old Library Rochdale Community 

Rhodes Playgroup Emerson Centre, Boardman Lane, 
Rhodes Middleton Nursery 

Rochdale Community Transport Mere Lane Depot Rochdale Yard 

RSPCA Redcross Street Rochdale Rescue Centre 

The Urban Gallery (Falinge Park) Falinge Park, Falinge Road Rochdale Gallery / café 

 

82 Page 110



 

Organisation / Group Property Township Use 

EDUCATION 
   

Beech House School (Reception) Mandale Park Rochdale Sports 

The Real Trust Highwood Centre Rochdale Training and 
development 

 

83 Page 111



Appendix H.iv - Assets Adding Value 

Reference: 

(1) As at 01 April 2016 

(2) Full year figure 2015/16 

 

Asset Type Number of 
Assets/Plots 

Total land Area 
(Hectares) Rental Income Rental Income per 

Asset/Plot 
Rental Income per 

Hectare 
 

Shops 1 (1) n/a £10,000 (1) £10,000 (1) n/a  

Farms 5.(1) 64.12.(1) £5,900 .(2) £1,180 (2) £92.10.(2) 

Garage Sites 403 (1) n/a £55,583 (2) £137.92 (2) n/a 

Gardens 668 (1) n/a £66,322 (2) £99.28 (2) n/a 

 

Grazing Licences 52 (1) 87.3 (1) £22,718 (2) £436.88 (2) 260.23 (2) 
Telecoms 3.(1) n/a £14,258 (1) £4,752.67 (1) n/a 

Advertising 
Hoardings 14 (1) n/a £29,677 (2) £2,119.79 (2) n/a 

Residential Ground 
Leases Information breakdown subject to verification of the categorisation of assets. Refer to action 7.4 

Miscellaneous Information breakdown subject to verification of the categorisation of assets. Refer to action 7.4 

 

 

84 

P
age 112



 

Appendix I: Properties Disposed of/Capital Receipts, 2013-2016 

 

Property Former Use Date of Sale Capital Receipt 

2013/14    

46 Fenton Street, Rochdale  29 Apr 13 £13,500 

Adjacent The Nowster, Oldham Road, Middleton Land 22 Apr 13 £40,000 

Milton Street, Middleton (former CAB) Building 30 Apr 13 £60,000 

Land at Halifax Road / Cliff Street Land 03 Jul 13 £330,000 

The Adult Training Centre, Durnford Street, Middleton Land and 
Buildings 12 Jul 13 £180,000 

Dairycrest premises, Crawford Street, Rochdale  04 Oct 13 £38,000 

Land adjoining 30 John Street, Heywood Land 15 Nov 13 £17,000 

Land at Broad Lane, Rochdale Land 10 Jan 14 £0 

Back Drake Street, Rochdale Land 04 Mar 14 £15,000 

Heywood Community School (Capital Receipt Phase 2) Land 31 Mar 14 £600,000 

Totals for 2013/14   £1,293,500 

2014/15    

M60 Land 09 May 14 £64,000 

Innes School, Ings Lane, Rochdale Land and 
Buildings 24 Jul 14 £805,000 

Newgate House (Capital Receipt Phase 1) Freehold 
Reversion 01 Sept 14 £49,000 

Land at Cowm Top Lane, Rochdale Land  £22,500 

Site of 53 - 61 Tweedale Street Clearance Land 05 Feb 2015 £196,000 

Elizabethan Way, Milnrow Land 05 Dec 14 £30,000 

Furrow Park, Langley Land 09 Dec 2014 £1 

Town Head Land and 
Buildings 27-Mar-15 £340,000 

Totals for 2014/15   £1,506,501 

85 Page 113



Property Former Use Date of Sale Capital Receipt 

2015/16    

Land adjacent to 211 Spotland Road Land 01 Apr 15 £35,000 

Dean Street, Rochdale Land 02-Apr-15 £205,575 

Heywood Community School (Capital Receipt Phase 3) Land 09-Apr-15 £967,000 

Wellfield Surgery, 291 Oldham Road, Rochdale - Chimneys 
Site 

Land and 
Buildings 29 May-15 £18,000 

Land at Nile Street, Rochdale Land 28-Jul-15 £0 

Whitworth Road Depot Land and 
Buildings 14-Aug-15 £576,000 

 

   

Gilbrook Way / Oldham Road Clearance Land 14-Aug-15 £40,000 

Longridge Drive Land 21 Aug 15 £1 

Worsley Street Garage Site 22 Oct 15 £11,000 

Newgate House (Capital Receipt Phase 2) Freehold 
Reversion 11 Nov 2015 £45,000 

Hill Top School (Capital Receipt Phase 1) Land 19-Nov-15 £236,000 

Wood Street, Middleton Shop 20 Nov 15 £47,000 

Foxholes Road Garage Site 04 Dec 15 £94,000 

Totals for 2015/16    £2,274,576 

 

 

86 Page 114



Appendix J: Property Information Strategy 
 

Function SYSTEM 

Terrier – a graphical record 
of the whole of the Council’s 
land ownership, categorised 
by title deeds, maintained by 
the Head of Property & 
Highways. 

Asset Mapping – a graphical 
record of each individual 
asset within the Terrier, 
categorised by the use or 
occupation of the asset, 
maintained by the Head of 
Property & Highways 

 
Swiftmap 

  
A textual record for each of 
the assets identified by 
Asset Mapping, maintained 
by the Head of Property & 
Highways for property 
management purposes 

 
Atrium 

  
A record of each of the 
Council’s assets, reconciled 
with Atrium, maintained by 
the Head of Corporate 
Finance for financial 
accounting purposes. 

 
 
 

 

87 Page 115



Asset Strategy 2016-2019 
 

  

Rochdale Borough Council 

Number One Riverside 

Smith Street 

Rochdale OL16 1YH 

 

  rochdale.gov.uk 

  01706 647474 

  council@rochdale.gov.uk 

rochdale.gov.uk 2 
Page 116



Asset Strategy 
2016-2019 

  

Rochdale Borough Council 

Number One Riverside 

Smith Street 

Rochdale OL16 1YH 

 

  rochdale.gov.uk 

  01706 647474 

  council@rochdale.gov.uk 

rochdale.gov.uk 2 
Page 117



Equality Impact Assessment of a Strategy or Project

Service:
Property and Highways

Section: 
Estates & Assets

Responsible Officer:
Peter Gregory

Name of strategy or project  assessed:
Asset Strategy

Date of Assessment:
09 February 2016

Officers Involved:
Peter Gregory, Senior Property Manager Estates & Assets

1.What is the purpose of the strategy/project?
(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purposes of the strategy / project

The strategic, planned, consistent and efficient use of Council land and property resources

2.Who are the key stakeholders?

All Council Services
All Council service users accessing Council property
All tenants/prospective tenants of Council property, including commercial organisations, 
voluntary sector organisations, individual residents

3.Are there any other documents/strategies linked to this strategy/project?

No

4.Which needs is the strategy/project designed to meet?

The scope of the assessment is the high level strategy for the management of all Council 
land and property. As such it has an impact, direct or indirect on all Council services and 
service users, and on all third party occupiers of Council land and premises.

The goal of the strategy is to balance the efficient management of land and property, and 
the organisational goal of reducing property holdings and property-related costs, with the 
changing demands of service delivery and increasing partnership working.

Two issues are considered:
 The impact of the physical buildings on access to services. It specifically excludes 

consideration of the impact on the organisation of the Service itself.
 The impact of the strategy on a group or individual’s application for rights over 

Page 118



Council land and buildings. 

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

Yes

6.Who is affected by the strategy/project?

All Council Services
All Council service users accessing Council property
All tenants/prospective tenants of Council property, including commercial organisations, 
voluntary sector organisations, individual residents

7.Who has been involved in the development of the strategy/project and who has 
been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.

This proposed Asset Strategy was considered and approved by the Council’s Strategic 
Asset Management Group (SAM), and subsequently by the Council’s Leadership Team.

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data 
been identified.  What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

The data used is the information currently available in respect of the Council’s property 
portfolio. This information is extensive, but there is an ongoing project to improve and add 
to the body of information available

9.What impact will the strategy/project have on all the protected groups?

The following comments are relevant to all the groups and communities referred to in this 
section below:

Is there any evidence of, or potential for unequal outcomes or disadvantage?
No. The strategy promotes greater consistency in the use and management of Council 
assets, and greater objectivity and transparency in the decision-making processes.

Are there, or could there be barriers to accessing the service?  E.g. language, 
physical access etc
No. One of the goals of the strategy is to provide a property portfolio that is becoming 
increasingly more suitable for the purposes of the Council’s service delivery. The profile of 
the property portfolio will be created by the front-line Council Services. This will lead to the 
Council providing buildings that are increasingly in better locations for service users, are in 
better condition generally, and that are fully compliant with all statute related to 
accessibility.

The Strategy does strongly promote the need for efficient management of the Council’s 
property, specifically to manage the Council’s risks and financial liability, for example in the 
universal use of agreements of occupation.. The demands of efficient property 
management can sometimes be incorrectly perceived as creating barriers. The uniform 
implementation of the Strategy will result in consistent treatment of all groups in the 
community.

Is there any evidence of unmet needs, or potential that needs will not be met?
Page 119



No. The Council’s capability to meet needs is constrained by the size and nature of the 
property portfolio, and by the resources available to deliver properties that are suitable for 
the aspirations of individual Services.  The Strategy improves the opportunities for all 
groups and organisations to obtain rights over land and buildings, and seeks the use of 
standardised criteria to evaluate applications.

Could the policy/service encourage greater participation by a particular group or 
community where this is low?
No. The policy promotes inclusion by recognising that the Council’s partnerships with the 
voluntary sector and other public sector organisations is critical to service delivery. 

The policy encourages a consistent and objective approach to the management and use of 
assets, linked to the objectives of the Council’s Services. It should, therefore, result in 
improved ability for groups who may currently feel marginalised to present their case for 
support from Council services

Information on the Council’s properties for sale or to let are available to all on the Council’s 
website.

Could the policy/service be developed to further foster good relations between 
different groups/communities?
No. The policy encourages partnership working and the joint use/sharing of property to 
deliver improved services and efficient building use. 

Race Equality 

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified

Disabled People

Access to buildings and/or Services - Property Services considers the Disability 
Discrimination Act to identify access issues with regard to Council buildings. Some 
buildings may not be reasonably capable of adaptation.

Carers

Access to buildings and/or Services - The strategy supports Council services in making 
access to support and guidance easier.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

Gender

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified

Page 120



Older People and Younger People

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

Ex-Armed Forces Personnel

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

Religion or Belief

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

Sexual Orientation

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

Gender Reassignment

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

Marriage or Civil Partnership

Access to buildings and/or Services – no issues of disadvantage for this group have been 
identified.

Page 121



Application for rights over land and buildings - no issues of disadvantage for this group 
have been identified.

10.What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

The Asset Strategy is designed to provide support to the Council front-line services, by 
ensuring that the Council can provide a property portfolio that is increasingly suitable for 
the needs of service delivery. Successful application of the policy should therefore result in 
an enhanced experience for all Council services, partners and users.

The Strategy seeks to ensure consistent and objective standards and approaches exist to 
consider the position of partners, voluntary groups and other organisations that wish to 
take occupation of Council land and buildings. 

11.What are your recommendations?

It is recommended that the goals of the Asset Strategy be recognised as supporting 
greater equality and accessibility and that the strategy be approved and implemented

12.What equality targets and actions have you set based on the findings of this 
assessment?  Please attach an action plan including details of designated officers 
responsible for completing these actions.

None, beyond the implementation of the Asset Strategy itself

Signed (Completing Officer):___________________ Date:_____________

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________

Page 122



Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion

Resource Implications Lead Officer

P
age 123



P
age 124



 

Subject: Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 
Guidelines and Timetable

Status: For Publication

Report to: Cabinet
Corporate Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee
Middleton Township Committee
Heywood Township Committee
Rochdale Township Committee
Pennines Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday 6th June 2016
Tuesday 12th July 2016

Monday 21st July 2016
                     Wednesday 27th July 2016
                     Wednesday 27th July 2016
                     Wednesday 3rd August 2016

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email: vicky.crossland@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Vicky Crossland

Tel: 01706 925409 Tel: 01706 925409

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision: Yes

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To recommend the budget guidelines and timetable to be used in preparing the 
detailed 2017/18 budget and provisional budgets for 2018/19 and 2019/20.

2 Recommendations

2.1 Members are requested to consider and approve the following:

1. The proposed budget timetable detailed at Appendix 1.

2. The revenue assumptions detailed in paragraph 3.4 be incorporated into the      
budget setting process.

3. The revenue and capital budget principles referred to in paragraph 3.6.1 and 3.6.2. 

4. In principle to work towards acceptance of the Government’s four year minimum 
settlement offer as outlined in paragraph 3.4.2. Further reports will be presented to 
Cabinet. 

2.2.      Reason for recommendation

To approve the proposed timetable and planning process for setting the 2017/18 
Budget and Provisional Budgets for 2018/19 and 2019/20.

3 Main Text including alternatives considered/consultation carried out

3.1 Alternatives and Risks considered

Page 125

Agenda Item 10

tel:+441706925409


3.1.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting process is 
complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally important that 
assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, reasonable and 
consistently applied by all services.

3.1.2 The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels of 
expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of these 
assumptions will not be received/ finalised until November/December this year.  There 
are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to the projections contained 
in this report have been identified. The most significant of these are:-

 The Finance Settlement for Rochdale Borough Council - the level of resources 
received from Central Government from the Revenue Support Grant may be 
different to those assumed. The decrease assumed is 24.1% for 2017/18, 21.5% 
for 2018/19 and 27.6% for 2019/20.  

 Monitoring of the 2016/17 budget will provide Cabinet with regular updates on any 
pressures/savings for the Council. Any associated on going implications will be 
incorporated into the budget projections for 2017/18 and future years.

 Savings – the level of savings required for 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 is 
currently being considered. There is a risk to the overall budget of the non-
achievement of these savings due to the identification and/or implementation of the 
proposals. A three year budget is to be set in February 2017 which provides time 
to implement the level of savings required to balance the budget over the period 
2017/18 to 2019/20.

 Specific Grants and Contributions – the number and amount of specific grants 
received by the Council may be lower/higher than anticipated. The budget currently 
assumes a reduction in grant for Education Services Grant from September 2017 
and New Homes Bonus from 2017/18 based on recent consultations which 
propose changes the basis of funding for these specific grants. If a grant 
increases, a process has been introduced to review all additional income received 
and the decision is made whether the resource is allocated to that area. If a grant 
decreases, Cabinet will consider the financial implications on the Council services 
provided.

 Council Tax – Central Government provided a cap on the amount of Council Tax 
increase a Local Authority could make before a referendum of the local residents 
was required.  The budget assumes a 3.75% increase in 2017/18, 2018/19 and 
2019/20, comprising a 1.75% increase for general purposes and a 2% increase in 
respect of the adult care precept. These percentage increases are included for 
planning purposes only, and will be revised by Cabinet leading up to a 
recommendation at Budget Fixing Council. 

 Council Services- the impact of the economic climate on the residents of Rochdale 
Borough and the increased demand this may lead to for Council services could 
impact on cost of services as could general demographic changes.

 Waste Disposal Levy – the waste disposal levy is calculated by a formula across 
Greater Manchester (GM) which takes account of recycling levels. Should 
Rochdale Borough not increase recycling at the same level as other GM 
Authorities this will impact on the levy and would lead to an increased cost to 
Rochdale Borough Council’s budget.

 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used by the 
Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget projections. 

Page 126



 Fees and charges income – impact of any economic slowdown on levels of usage 
of charged for Council services could lead to income levels not being achieved.

 Investment income – impact of low interest rates and implications of the economic 
slowdown on the level of dividends/ interest received by the Council.

 Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooled budgets in closing the 
locality gap, for which the Council is a key partner.

 Public Health – impact of the reduction in Public Health funding.

 Academies – impact of the Government’s policies regarding the conversion of 
schools to Academies.

3.2 Consultation Undertaken/Proposed:
3.2.1 Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget preparation 

process. The Council is intending to carry out a Public Engagement initiative during 
Summer 2016, involving residents, businesses and their representative bodies and 
other stakeholders.

3.2.2 Consultation with the Trade Unions via the JCC at Corporate level and via SCG`s at 
service level will be undertaken and the outcome of consultations will be considered by 
the Employment and Equalities Committee.

3.3 Introduction
3.3.1 Timetable
3.3.2 The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March each year. 

This is a statutory requirement. The process begins in June with approval being sought 
for the assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These will be 
used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position

3.3.3 Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  Financial 
projections are updated as further information becomes available for the Government 
Funding Settlement and other known changes, including local decisions. The updated 
budget and feedback from consultations are reported back to Cabinet in January with 
recommendations for Budget Fixing Council, who will in turn set the budget.
Services are notified of their resource allocations following Budget Fixing Council in 
February/March. The full budget timetable is detailed at Appendix 1.

3.4 Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2017/18 – 2019/20

3.4.1 As part of the budget setting process the Council makes a number of assumptions in 
respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue budget.  Appendix 2 provides a 
summary of these assumptions for 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20. Future reports will 
make Cabinet aware of any changes that impact on the current budget assumptions. 
These are outlined below.

3.4.2 Local Government Finance Settlement

As part of the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement the Government stated 
that it will offer any council that wishes to take it up a four-year funding settlement to 
2019-20. The Government has made a commitment to provide minimum allocations for 
each year of the Spending Review Period, should councils choose to accept the offer 

Page 127



and if they have published an efficiency plan. Members are asked to consider taking 
up the offer of the four year settlement.

The funding streams that are included in the multi-year settlement offer, where 
appropriate, are:
 Revenue Support Grant (received by Rochdale BC); 
 Transitional Grant (not received by Rochdale BC);  ; 
 Rural Services Delivery Grant allocations (not received by Rochdale BC).

In addition, business rates tariffs and top-ups in 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 will not 
be altered even if needs have changed for local authorities. However, in the final year 
of the Spending Review Period, 2019/20, the tariffs and top ups may be subject to 
change due to the implementation of 100% business rates retention.

The new burdens doctrine operates outside the settlement, so accepting the four-year 
offer will not impact on any new burden payments agreed over the course of the four 
years.

The Government will also take account of future events such as the transfer of 
functions to local government, transfers of responsibility for functions between local 
authorities, mergers between authorities and any other unforeseen events. However, 
barring exceptional circumstances and subject to the normal statutory consultation 
process for the local government finance settlement, the Government expects the 
amounts set out in the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement to be the 
amounts presented to Parliament each year.

3.4.3 Revenue Support Grant
The assumptions included in the budget for Revenue Support Grant are based on the 
amounts included in the four-year settlement. The decrease assumed is 24.1% for 
2017/18, 21.5% for 2018/19 and 27.6% for 2019/20.

3.4.4 Council Tax Increases - Assumptions 2017/18 – 2019/20
The 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement assumed and an average 
increase of 1.75% per year in council tax over the four year period to 2019/20.

The Government’s Spending Review 2015 announced that for the rest of the current 
Parliament, local authorities responsible for adult social care will be given an additional 
2% flexibility on their current council tax referendum threshold to be used entirely for 
adult social care. 

The Council Tax referendum limit will differ, depending on whether authorities choose 
to raise the social care precept. For those authorities wishing to use the social care 
precept powers the referendum limit will be triggered at 4% or more above the 
authority’s relevant basic amount of council tax in 2015/16. For those choosing not to 
levy a social care precept the limit will remain at 2%.

The Council’s budget assumes for planning purposes an increase in Council Tax for 
2017/18, and 2018/19 and 201920 of 3.75%, comprising a 1.75% increase for general 
purposes and a 2% increase in respect of the adult care precept.

Any variation in the level of Council Tax increase approved will have an impact on the 
forecast budget position.

3.4.5 Council Tax Taxbase
Our Council Taxbase is 52,114 representing  the number of Band D equivalent 
properties that we collect Council Tax from.  The Council Tax base will be reviewed 
and formally considered by Planning and Licensing Committee in January of each 

Page 128



year. The level of Council tax base is a key component in the calculation of resources 
available to the Council.

3.4.6 Business Rates Baseline
Our Business Rates baseline is £63.098m, representing the value of Business Rates 
income we estimate will be collected from businesses. The Business Rates baseline 
will be reviewed and formally considered by Planning and Licensing Committee in 
January of each year.
The budget assumes for planning purposes a 2% increase in 2017/18, 2018/19 and 
2019/20 in respect of the level of business rates income received and the business 
rates top-up grant received from the Government. The business rates increases are 
based on the assumed RPI at September over the next four years.
The Government will be consulting in Summer 2016 in relation to the move to 100% 
business rates retention by 2020/21.

3.4.7 Pay Inflation
The budget assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 1% for 2017/18 
to 2019/20. The Government will implement a 1% pay settlement for most local 
government staff for both 2016/17 and 2017/18. Any settlement above 1% will 
increase the expenditure requirement for 2018/19 and 2019/20. Every change of 0.5% 
equates to approximately £429k. 

The salary budget includes assumptions for planning purposes for the rise in the 
Government National Living Wage for 2017/18 – 2019/20, and also assumes the cost 
of maintaining the Council’s current pay above the level of the National Living Wage 
through to 2019/20.

3.4.8 Superannuation Rates
The employer superannuation contribution rate increases assumed are 0.9% in in 
2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20. These are based on the advice by Greater Manchester 
Pension Fund (GMPF). The next valuation of the fund is due in 2016, therefore the 
rate of increase assumed are subject to change following this valuation and future 
decisions by Members.

3.4.9 Price Inflation
The budget assumes 0% inflation across the majority of the Council’s non-pay 
expenditure budgets including grants that the Council provides. Contractual 
arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be considered on a case by 
case basis. 

3.4.10 Discretionary Fees and Charges
Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. For 2017/18 to 2019/20 the 
amount of increase assumed for planning purposes is recommended to be 2%. 

3.4.11 Waste Disposal 
The Waste Disposal Levy (WDL) provided for in the 2017/18-2019/20 budget is based 
on the latest projections provided by GMWDA. The assumptions are based on the 
revised increase in recycling rates for Rochdale. The impact of this means that the 
increase in levy is limited to 12.2 % in 2017/18, 7.4% in 2018/19 and 2.4% in 2019/20.

Page 129



This will be subject to consideration/agreement as a consequence of the Waste 
Disposal Authority’s budget setting process in 2017/18 and subsequent years and 
consideration of referendum levels.

3.4.12 Passenger Transport Levy
The Passenger Transport Levy (PTL) provided for in the 2017/18 budget assumed for 
planning purposes a 2% increase over the previous year. It is currently assumed for 
planning purposes that there will be an increase of 2% for 2018/19 and 2019/20. This 
will be subject to consideration/agreement as a consequence of the Passenger 
Transport Authority’s 2016/17 budget setting process in 2017/18 and subsequent 
years and consideration of referendum levels.

3.4.13 Budget Pressures
The budget is presented with a provision of £2m new recurrent funding to meet any 
unforeseen significant budget pressures. It is prudent to assume this level of resource 
will be required in future years. 

3.5 Capital
3.5.1 A review of the capital programme is currently being undertaken. This review will 

provide a three year capital programme for 2017/18 to 2019/20 taking into 
consideration the estimated reduction in capital resources and the limited revenue 
funding available for Capital Schemes in these years. A report to Cabinet in October 
will recommend a Capital Programme for 2017/18 to 2019/20 for consideration this will 
then be included as part of the 2017/18 budget consultation.

3.5.2 Aims of the Capital Programme

The Capital Programme aims to deliver:

 Investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide priorities including 
economic benefit to the Borough and bring in additional resources

 Investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings
 Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets
 Support Devolution
 Meet Statutory provision
 Provide Value for Money

3.5.3 A review of the Capital Programme is currently being undertaken and will be reported 
to a future meeting of Cabinet.

3.6 Budget Principles
3.6.1 Detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant staff to ensure that revenue budgets for 

individual services are prepared consistently. These guidelines contain details of the 
assumptions that are to be made in setting the revenue budget and also set out broad 
principles that are to be adhered to. The principles that are proposed for inclusion in 
the budget guidelines for 2017/18 to 2019/20 are provided at Appendix 3.

3.6.2 The Capital Principles have been developed to enable focus on the purpose of the 
Capital Programme and to seek agreement for the use of limited resources. The 
principles for the Capital Programme are provided at Appendix 4.

Page 130



3.7 Conclusions
3.7.1 This is an initial report on the budget process which identifies the decision making 

timetable, assumptions and principles.

3.7.2 The forecasts will be refined over the coming months and further reports will be 
presented to Cabinet leading up to the approval of the Budget and Council Tax in 
February 2017.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 See the main body of the report.

5 Legal Implications

5.1 The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with Section 32 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three calculations namely: an 
estimate of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure; an estimate of anticipated 
income; and a calculation of the difference between the two. The amount of the budget 
requirement must be sufficient to meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure 
a balanced budget. The amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with 
adequate financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 
unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax payers 
and non-domestic rate payers.  

5.2 Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11 March could have serious 
financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to an Order from the 
Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council Tax.

5.3 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on local 
authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their financial 
affairs'.

 
5.4 Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand notice. The 

Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging authorities to issue 
demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed by these regulations. 

5.5 There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or bodies 
appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic rates in each area 
about proposals for expenditure (including capital expenditure) for each financial year.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 The report outlines the proposed timetable for preparing the detailed 2017/18 budget 
and this timetable includes the requirement to undertake formal workforce consultation 
with the staff and trade unions.   The consultation will be undertaken in accordance 
with the Council’s established formal staff consultation processes including meetings 
of the Joint Consultative Committee and Service Consultative Groups. 

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 This report meets all the corporate priorities identified in the Council’s Corporate Plan. 
This report supports governance arrangements remaining strong during this period of 
significant change.

8 Risk Assessment Implications 

Page 131



8.1 There are a number of risks identified with this report as outlined below:

 Decisions may not be taken in a timely manner to ensure that a balanced budget is 
set.  The approval of the timetable attached at Appendix 1 will mitigate this risk;

 A number of risks are contained in section 3.1 of this report and these will be 
reviewed throughout the budget cycle.

9 Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

9.1.1 Workforce equality impact assessments will be provided with any savings proposals 
and an overall workforce equality impact assessment on the budget will be presented 
to facilitate final decision making.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

9.2.1 Equality Impact assessments will be provided with any savings proposals and an 
overall equality impact assessment on the budget will be presented to facilitate final 
decision making.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection
Budget 2017/18 Files Finance Services

Page 132



APPENDIX 1

Budget Timetable for 2017/18 to 2019/20 Budgets – Revised 

Date Group / Body Consideration
2016
6th June Cabinet Approve: 

 Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable 
Report (including revenue and capital principles).

 Engagement with the Public
28th June Joint Consultative 

Committee (JCC)
Consultation
 Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable 

Report (including revenue and capital principles).
 Engagement with the Public

12th July Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Scrutinise
 Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable 

Report (including revenue and capital principles).
 Engagement with the Public

21th July and 
Week 
Commencing 
25th  July

Township Committees and 
residents

Consultation
 Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable 

Report (including revenue and capital principles).
 Engagement with the Public

12th September Cabinet To agree:
 September Budget update report 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 – 2021/22.
 Saving proposals to be presented for consultation – 

Service Delivery and workforce only proposals.
13th  September 
TBC*

Employment and 
Equalities Committee

Consultation on:-
 Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable 

Report
 Engagement with the Public
 September Budget Update report
 Saving proposals to be presented for consultation – 

workforce only proposals 
15th September 
TBC*

JCC Consultation on:-
 Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable 

Report
 Engagement with the Public
 September Budget Update report
 Saving proposals to be presented for consultation – 

workforce only proposals 

15thth 
September

Commence Service Delivery Consultation (For proposals 
requiring longer consultation these will be dealt with on an 
individual basis).
Workforce consultation only commences
15th September to 2nd November – minimum of 45 days 
consultation

15th September 
and w/c 19th 
September 

Township Committees and 
residents

Consultation on :
 September Budget update report 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 – 2021/22
 Saving proposals to be presented for consultation – 

Service Delivery proposals 

Page 133



3rd October Cabinet To consider and approve
 October Budget Update report to reassess overall 

financial position.
 The capital programme and revenue implications for 

consultation
 Discretionary Fees and Charges

11th October Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Scrutinise:
 September Budget update report 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18 – 2021/22
 Saving proposals to be presented for consultation – 

Service Delivery and workforce only proposals 
 Scrutiny of October Cabinet reports

2nd November Conclusion of service delivery and workforce consultation
21st November 
2016
TBC*

Cabinet To consider and approve 
 Reports re outcome of service delivery and workforce 

consultation for member decision making 
 Members to approve commencement of workforce 

consultation following outcome of service delivery 
consultation.

 Feedback from Public engagement sessions
22nd  November
TBC *

Employment and 
Equalities Committee
JCC

 To present Saving Proposals – following consultation
 To consult on savings proposals for the workforce 

consultation following outcome of service delivery 
consultation.

24th  November Consultation for Workforce proposals commences for 45 
days. (24th t November to 2nd  January 2017.)

W/C 28th 
November

Township Committees and 
residents

Consultation on: 
 Discretionary Fees and charges 
 October Budget Update Report 

20th December Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Scrutiny on :
 Outcome of Service Delivery and workforce consultation.
 Workforce consultation proposals following outcome of 

service delivery consultation . 
 Feedback from Public engagement sessions

December Provisional Funding 
Position

DCLG announces Provisional Funding Position including 
Base line position 2017/18 and updated forecasts 2018/19 – 
2019/20.

2017
2nd  January  Conclusion of Workforce only consultation.
17th  January Planning and Licensing  

Committee
Approval of 2017/18 Council Tax Base.
Approval of 2017/18 Business Rates Tax Base.

TBC January Funding Position DCLG announce Funding Position 2017/18. Any 
amendments will need to be agreed at Budget Fixing 
Council. 

2nd February 
TBC*

Cabinet To consider and approve:
 Budget update report including confirmation of provisional 

funding position and Dedicated Schools Grant settlement.
 Capital Programme Update
 Treasury Management Strategy
 Outcome of Workforce consultation

3rd February Employment and  Outcome of Workforce consultation.

Page 134



TBC*
Equalities Committee
JCC

7th February Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

 To scrutinise the outcome of the Workforce consultation
 Pre-scrutiny of Budget to be submitted to Budget Cabinet 

on 9th February 2017.
 Local Government Act 2003 Report on the robustness of 

the budget.
 Capital Programme Update
 Treasury Management Strategy
 Medium Term Financial Plan

15th February
TBC *

Cabinet To consider and agree :
 Local Government Act 2003 – Robustness of the Budget 

Report.
 Final recommendations of Cabinet to Budget Fixing 

Council including saving proposals. 
 Capital Programme Update
 Treasury Management Strategy.
 Medium Term Financial Plan

1st March Budget Fixing Council To consider recommendations of the Cabinet revenue and 
capital budgets.  Approve or propose amendments.

9th March Budget Fixing Council (If 
required)

Further consideration of budget proposals if required.

TBC* Meeting dates to be confirmed with respective Chairs

Page 135



Area of Budget 2017/18 
Assumption

2018/19 
Assumption

2019/20 
Assumption

Council Tax

General Increase 1.75% 
Increase

1.75% 
Increase

1.75% 
Increase

Adult Care Precept 2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase

Total Council Tax 3.75% 
Increase

3.75% 
Increase

3.75% 
Increase

Revenue Support Grant 24.1%      
Decrease

21.5%       
Decrease

27.6 %    
Decrease

Business Rates 
(NNDR) 2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase

Top Up Grant 2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase
General Grants 4.3% Increase 0% 0%
Settlement Funding 
Overall Impact

7.6% overall 
decrease

5.4% overall 
decrease

5.8% overall 
decrease

Pay 1% Increase 1% Increase 1% Increase

0.90% 0.90% 0.90%
Increase Increase Increase

Contribution Rate (20.6%) 
(contribution)

(21.5%) 
(contribution)

(22.4%) 
(contribution)

Prices* 0% 0% 0%
Discretionary Fees & 
Charges 2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase

Waste Disposal Levy 12.23% 
Increase

7.36% 
Increase

2.39%    
Increase

PTA Levy 2.00%   
Increase

2.00%   
Increase

2.00%     
Increase

Superannuation

* Prices – Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation 
issues will be considered on a case by case basis. 

APPENDIX 2 

Budget Assumptions 2017/18, 2018/19 and  2019/20

Page 136



APPENDIX 3

REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18 TO 2019/20 – PRINCIPLES

1. Budget Preparation

1.1 Service estimates are required at service level for the years 2017/18 through to 
2019/20.  The format of the service submissions, which are to be supported by 
appropriate working papers, will be determined by the Director of Resources in 
consultation with Directors.

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued from time to 
time on local authority accounting practices and other related issues.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2 Existing Service Level Budgets

2.1 The budget will initially be prepared on the basis that current resources support 
existing service levels and with the exception of the schools budget should be varied 
to reflect:

(a) The full year effect of previous year’s savings proposals.
(b) Consequences of the approved capital programme.
(c) Adjustments in relation to specific ‘one year only’ allocations and other time 

expired funding.
(d) Other specific Council decisions.

2.2 Most education and related budgets are funded through a specific grant namely the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Separate systems and procedures relating to DSG 
funded budgets operate outside of the mainstream budget guidelines.  

2.3 Salary budgets are to be prepared with reference to the 2017/18 budget (net of any 
vacancy factor) adjusted for pay awards, approved service changes, savings and other 
approved variations. The salary budgets can only be used to employ staff in 
established posts on approved grades in line with the following conditions:

(a) All changes to the establishment where Council funding is available in full must 
be approved by the Equalities and Employment Committee, or within the 
requirements of the Scheme of Delegation.

(b) All changes to the establishment where resource implications arise, even if the 
costs are met entirely from external funding, must also be approved by Cabinet, 
or within the requirements of the Scheme of Delegation.

(c) Posts funded from external sources must be established as temporary or specific 
purpose posts unless it can be demonstrated that:

 the external funding is permanent or

 specific approval has been given, or

 future years costs can be contained within current budgets.

Page 137



(d) Directors must balance service requirements against the need to manage within 
their budgets when taking decisions to fill vacant posts or employ temporary 
staff.

3 Discretionary Fees and Charges

3.1 Fees and charges must be reviewed on an annual basis.  A report should be 
submitted by each Director to the Cabinet in September each year on proposals for 
the following year. 

3.2 Fees and charges are to be varied to achieve an overall annual increase in income for 
each Service in line with the level approved by Cabinet. Increases can be 
implemented at any time subject to the overall financial target being achieved.  

3.3 If the target cannot be achieved by increasing fees and charges then alternative 
savings must be identified.  Claims by Directors to exempt or apply a lesser increase 
to any part of their service must be justified in the context of their Service policies and 
plans and referred to Cabinet.

4 External Funding

4.1 Wherever possible external funding should be used to reduce pressure on current 
expenditure, thereby releasing resources for redirection into priority areas.

4.2 All legal, human resources, financial and administrative support costs required to 
manage grant conditions and fulfill the role of the accountable body should be 
charged, wherever possible, against the funding regime.

5 Consultation

5.1 Members will take account of consultations with stakeholders at appropriate stages 
throughout the budget preparation process.  This will include Townships, Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, Trade Unions, Local Strategic Partnership, other partners 
and the public.

Page 138



APPENDIX 4 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME PRINCIPLES

1. Capital Programme Preparation

1.1 The Capital Programme is compiled at project level for the years 2017/18 through to 
2019/20.  The format of the capital schemes submissions, which are to be supported 
by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the Director of Finance in 
consultation with Directors. 

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued from time to 
time on local authority accounting practices and other related issues. The profiling of 
capital expenditure into the correct financial years and over the projects development 
will be key to ensure the amount of re phasing of capital resources from one year to 
another is kept to a minimum, and to reduce the amount of revenue budget required to 
finance the project.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Principles for the Capital Programme

2.1 Capital Resources are to be used as follows:

 Decisions on the use of Capital Receipts will be considered as part of the budget 
process.

 Un-ring fenced and ring fenced externally funded grants are considered on a case 
by case basis.

 Any new borrowing is considered with the implications for the revenue budget 
position.

2.2 Capital projects for approval are:

 Considered by Portfolio Holders for the service who agree to the services requests 
for funding.

 Completed to ensure all implications of the Capital Scheme are included in the 
“Business Cases”.

 Inclusive of Multi Year Schemes with the spend profiled accurately across the 
financial years.

Page 139


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	5 Minutes
	6 Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub-Committtee
	7 Rochdale Township Planning Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 05/07/2016 Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee

	8 Disposal of Surplus Land adjacent to 9 Leach Street, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Disposal of Surplus Land adjacent to 9 Leach Street, Rochdale

	9 Asset Strategy 2016/2019
	Asset Strategy 2016.19.Approved Version.060616.pdf
	Asset Strategy Front Sheet Final 2
	Asset Strategy Document Control Sheet
	Asset Strategy 201619.Final Draft.020316
	4
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY….………………………………………………………………………………..
	MONITORING COMPLIANCE AND EFFECTIVENESS………………………………….
	Foreword
	Executive Summary
	1. Introduction
	2. Corporate Context
	3. Policy Context
	“We will need a significantly reduced level of assets and use our assets to deliver quality, efficient services”
	4. Quality Context
	5. Looking Back: 2013/2016
	6. Mission Statement and Core Ambitions
	7. Strategic Objectives for 2016/19
	8. Assessing Outcomes
	9. Portfolio Scrutiny
	10. Workstreams
	WORKSTREAM 1: ACQUISITIONS, INVESTMENTS AND NEW DEVELOPMENTS
	WORKSTREAM 2: ASSETS FOR GROWTH AND PROSPERITY
	WORKSTREAM 3: ASSETS SUPPORTING COUNCIL SERVICES
	WORKSTREAM 4: ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
	WORKSTREAM 5: ASSETS AND THE ENVIRONMENT
	WORKSTREAM 6: ASSETS IN THE COMMUNITY
	WORKSTREAM 7: ASSETS ADDING VALUE
	WORKSTREAM 8: ASSETS FOR EDUCATION

	11. Consolidated Action Plan
	12. Property Performance Indicators 2016/2019
	14. Strategy Review Date
	Appendix A: Organisational Governance Structure for Asset Management
	Capital or Revenue?

	Asset Strategy Final 4
	Asset Strategy back sheet

	Append. 2 for Asset Strategy 2016/2019

	10 Budget 2017/18 to 2019/20 Guidelines and Timetable



